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PPEARANCES : 

CHARLES J .  BECK and JACK SHREVE, Deputy Public 

ounsel, Of f ice o f  Public Counsel, 111 West Madison Street, 

.oom 812, Tallahassee, Flor ida 32399-1400, appearing on behalf 

I f  the Cit izens o f  the State o f  Florida. 

KIMBERLY CASWELL. Post Of f ice Box 110, FLTCOOO7, 

‘ampa, Flor ida 33601, appearing on behalf o f  Verizon Florida, 

nc . 
C. LEE FORDHAM, F1 or ida Pub1 i c Service Commi s s i  on, 

Hvis ion o f  Legal Services, 2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard, 

‘allahassee. Florida 32399-0870, appearing on behalf o f  the 

:ommission S t a f f .  
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P R O C E E D I N G S  
MR. FORDHAM: Pursuant to notice published June 1st. 

2001, this time and place have been set for hearing in docket 
number 991376-TL for purposes set forth in the notice. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Take appearances. 
MS. CASWELL: Kimberly Caswell for Verizon Florida. 
MR. BECK: Charlie Beck and Jack Shreve, Office of 

the Public Counsel appearing on behalf of Florida citizens. 
MR. FORDHAM: Lee Fordham, legal staff for the 

Florida Public Service Commission. 
CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Very well. My indications are that 

there are no preliminary matters. 
the parties? 

Is that the case with all 

MR. FORDHAM: None by Staff, Commissioner. 
CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Wonderful. Do I see that we do 

have a time for opening statements? 
MR. FORDHAM: Yes, Commissioner, they had asked for 

opening statements. 
CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Okay. And that will be - -  I guess, 

I didn't see, is there a time limit on that? 
MR. FORDHAM: Ten minutes. 
CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Very well. We'll allow ten minutes 

for opening statements. 
exhibits. Why don't we do that after we swear the witnesses 
in. Is that fine? 

I see that you have some initial 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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MR. FORDHAM: That w i l l  be f ine,  Commissioner. S t a f f  

rould ask t h a t  S t i p  1, which i s  the O f f i c i a l  Recognition L i s t  

,e admitted as Exhib i t  1. This was c i rcu la ted t o  the par t ies 

;o it, i n  essence, has the input o f  a l l  the part ies.  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Okay. We'l l  make sure there are no 
)bjections a t  the proper time. 

MS. CASWELL: M r .  Chairman, I do need t o  br ing up one 

M r .  Beck and I have agreed t o  s t ipu late i n  the 

leposi t ions o f  Russel 1 Diamond. There were two depositions, 

me on Apr i l  20th, 2001 and one on February 23rd, 2000. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Since we brought i t  up, why don't  

le go ahead and take care of those. 

MS. CASWELL: Okay. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Since those are st ipulated, w e ' l l  

io ahead and take care o f  - -  there seems there are no 
)bjections t o  S t a f f ' s  St ipu lat ion l? 

MR. BECK: No objections. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Okay. So 

:xhi b i  t 1. 

(Exhibi t  1 marked f o r  ident 

w e ' l l  mark tha t  as 

f i ca t ion .  1 

MR. FORDHAM: Commissioner, also, we'd l i k e  a t  t h i s  

Arne. i f  there's no objection, t o  go ahead and move S t i p  2 i n t o  

widence as Exhib i t  2. S t i p  2 i s  the co l lec t i ve  responses t o  

X a f f  interrogatories. 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

7 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: I don't see a copy. I s  t ha t  t h i s  

tack o f  information here? Show tha t  marked as Exhib i t  2. 

i a t  i s  S t a f f ' s  St ipu lat ion 2. 

(Exhibi t  2 marked f o r  i den t i f i ca t i on .  1 
CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Without objection, then, show 

xh ib i t  1 and Exhibi t  2 are entered i n t o  the record. 

(Exhibits 1 and 2 received i n  evidence.) 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: And, Ms. Caswell , we're going t o  

ark yours as Exhibi t  3, and t h a t ' s  the - -  
MS. CASWELL: The depositions. I s  t ha t  - -  
CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Yes, the depositions. 

MS. CASWELL: Should we have a d i f f e r e n t  exh ib i t  

umber f o r  each one or consider them a composite? 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: 

MS. CASWELL: 

I ' m  a t  your - -  
I think,  probably i t  would be better t o  

ave two exh ib i t  numbers. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Very we1 1 .  So, well 1 mark - - 
MS. CASWELL: 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: 

MS. CASWELL: Russell Diamond. And then, the Apr i l  

February 23rd, 2000, can be Exhibi t  3. 

And t h a t ' s  the deposition o f  whom? 

Oth, 2000 deposition can be Exhib i t  4. 

liamond deposition. 

That's also a Russell 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: 

MS. CASWELL: Apr i l  30, 2001. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Show tha t  marked as Exhib i t  4. 

I ' m  sorry, the date on tha t  again? 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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(Exhibits 3 and 4 marked fo r  i den t i f i ca t i on . )  

MS. CASWELL: Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: And without objection, show 

xh ib i t s  3 and 4 are entered i n t o  the record. 

(Exhibits 3 and 4 admitted i n t o  the record.) 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: That takes care o f  a l l  the 

, t ipu la t ions and preliminary matters, then we w i l l  swear a1 

:he witnesses a t  t h i s  time. Would everyone who i s  here t o  

i e s t i f y  please stand and ra ise  your r i g h t  hand. 

I n  t h i s  matter before the Flor ida Public Service 

:ommission do you swear or a f f i r m  tha t  the testimony you're 

ibout t o  give i s  the t ru th ,  the whole t r u t h  and nothing but the 

;ruth? 

ALL: I do. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Thank you very much. You may be 

;eated. And I show f i r s t  witness i s  - -  I ' m  sorry, already I 

Forgot. Opening statements. The order - - 
MR. BECK: Doesn't matter. 

MS. CASWELL: I th ink,  since the publ ic  counsel i s  

;he accuser, as it were, they customarily go f i r s t .  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: They were the pe t i t ioner .  

MR. BECK: We'd be happy t o  go f i r s t .  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Go r i g h t  ahead. 

MR. BECK: Thank you. 

Good morning, Commissioners. My name's Charlie Beck 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 
2 
3 
4 

5 
6 
7 
8 
9 
10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 

9 

iith the Office of Public Counsel. The thrust of the case 
iefore you this morning involves Verizon's repeated violations 
if your minimum service standards continuously over a four-year 
ieriod. Your rules involve fundamental measures o f  service, 
"epairing service when it goes out and repairing it in 24 
iours. and installing new service when a customer requests it, 
your rule mandating that it be installed within three working 
jays. 

Your rules are not absolute in that they give the 
company a certain amount of leeway. On repairs, they have to 
30 95% of the repairs within 24 hours in each exchange. And 
for installation it's 90%. so you have a certain built in 
margin for error for the companies. 

Each single rule violation means that in an exchange 
during a month the company, in totality for that exchange, 
failed to meet your requirements and exceeded the threshold 
that you allowed for failing to meet the 24-hour or three 
working day requirements . 

There are a number of things the Commission should 
keep in mind about what was happening throughout this four-year 
period. 
number of violations. With regard to your repair rule, there 
were 179 violations in 1996. 124 in 1997, 164 in 1998, and 102 
in 1999 for a total of 569 violations. 

First of all, there's really no dispute about the 

With regard to your installation rule, there were 26 
FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

10 

i io la t ions  i n  1996, 13 i n  1997, 18 i n  1998 and 147 i n  1999 fo r  

3 t o t a l  o f  204 i n s t a l l a t i o n  v io lat ions.  That makes a t o t a l  

:ombined o f  773 v io la t ions f a i r l y  continuously over the 

four -year period. 

They v io la ted your rules i n  good weather and i n  bad 

Meather. They v io la ted your rules, whether it was summer, 

f a l l ,  winter, or  spring. They violated whether there i s  

2xcessive r a i n  and they violated when they were i n  a drought. 

Verizon points you t o  t h e i r  record subsequent t o  the 

four-year period a t  issue i n  t h i s  case, but what they d id  then 

?as nothing do w i th  t h i s  case. And you would th ink  tha t  they 

Mould have come i n t o  compliance wi th  your r u l e  ea r l i e r  than 

2000, since the f i r s t  year o f  the current three-year drought 

xcurred i n  1999. Even during that  f i r s t  year o f  drought, they 

violated your repair  r u l e  102 times and your i ns ta l l a t i on  ru le  

204 times. 

A t  the same time as the company was continuously 

v i  o l  a t i  ng your r u l  es , they were re1 en t l  essl y cu t t ing  the i  r 

budget, diminishing the resources avai lable t o  provide good 

service t o  customers. The b i g  p ic tu re  o f  t h i s  can be seen i n  

rlr. Poucher's Exhib i t  Number 22, which i s  the f i r s t  exh ib i t  

attached t o  h is  Surrebuttal. 

Verizon's 1995 cost per l i n e  was $62.33. From there, 

they a i m  fo r  the mid 50s i n  1996 t o  around 50 i n  1997. By 

1999, Verizon was aiming f o r  the mid 40s compared t o  what they 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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nad i n  1995 of $62.33. The president of the company, during 

the first  three years a t  issue i n  this case, was constantly 
pleading w i t h  headquarters staff i n  Texas for more money so 
they could f i x  the problems w i t h  their old p lan t ,  particularly 
i n  Clearwater and S t .  Petersburg where the plant  was very old.  

B u t  their answer was repeatedly for him t o  make due w i t h  w h a t  
was allotted t o  him. 

Let me read t o  you from one of the exhibits t h a t  we 
will offer into evidence, which i s  Mr. Poucher's Exhibit 5 a t  
Page 2. And this i s  a letter from Peter Daks, who was 
president of Verizon Florida a t  t h a t  time t o  the Texas 
superiors . 

He to ld  them t h a t  I know my continued position on 
this subject may not be popular, but the TAC focus program, 
which is  a maintenance program of the company, presently i n  

place does not have sufficient analysis t o  provide a 
maintenance program we need t o  f i x  areas like S t .  Petersburg 
and Clearwater. We have got t o  identify those outside p l a n t  
issues and f i n d  the dollars t o  f i x  outside p l a n t  and prevent 
the amount of trouble t h a t  we have experienced this year i n  the 
future. This i s  affecting our a b i l i t y  t o  deliver qual i ty  and 

cost objectives. 
These are the facts. We've offered you 42 separate 

exhibits sponsored by Mr. Poucher, and the great preponderance 
of these exhibits are the company's own documents. They made 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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jrastic budget reductions, and they were very successful i n  

a t t i n g  their costs. They may point  out t o  you t h a t  they went 
wer budget year after year, i t  was about $8 million t h a t  they 
year after year missed their budget, bu t  what  was happening was 
tha t  their drastic budget reductions were having service f a l l  

apart, and as they scrambled t o  try t o  bring their standards up 
a b i t ,  they s t i l l  failed. In other words, budget cuts were so 
jrastic t h a t  even by going over budget they couldn't come i n t o  
zompliance w i t h  the rule. Tha t  shows you t h a t  the cut t ing  
zosts was the priority a t  Verizon and the service qual i ty  was 
secondary. 

Now, could the company have met the rule i f  they 
danted to? We'd ask you t o  look, as one example, t o  look a t  
the service they provide t o  their business customers. We'll be 
asking John Ferrell during cross examination about documents 
showing the time it takes t o  clear troubles for businesses as 
Dpposed t o  residential. In 1999, they were - -  the clearing 
interval for business was 10.04 hours, while for residence i t  

das 21.3 hours, more t h a n  twice as long as for business. 
Under Mr. Ferrell's leadership, the time for business 

clearing came down a b i t  from 11.7 hours i n  1998 t o  the 10.4, 

b u t  residential clearing times actually got worse from 1998 t o  
1999. 

the 21.3 i n  1999. We'll be asking Mr. Ferrell t o  explain these 
changes t o  you and let  h im explain why he could meet service 

I t  was 19.3 hours for residential i n  '98. compared t o  

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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ules for business, but not for residential customers and we'll 
ee if he tells you it has nothing to do with the money. 

The point is that the company can comply with your 
ervice rules and it can do it for all their customers, if they 
hoose to, but it takes money to have the necessary people 
nboard to provide the service that complies with your minimum 
ervice requirements. We certainly have no problem, if they 
ant to provide superior service to business, as long as they 
eet the minimum standards for residential in the process, and 
hey failed on this with their residential customers. 

What should you do about the 773 violations of your 
ules incurred year after year? A substantial fine, as we 
'ropose, is necessary to show the company you're serious about 
he quality of service the company provides its customers. The 
hree-year drought we're in won't last forever and it won't be 
s easy for Verizon to comply with your service standard as it 
ias been for the last year and a half for them. 

If you expect the company to comply with your minimum 
,ervice standards when the rainfall returns to more normal 
evels, you've got to show them you're serious about your 
,ervice rules and that they have to provide at least the 
iinimum service your rules require for all their customers. 

We recommend the fine of $19.3 million. The company 
Ind perhaps even the Staff thinks that's an excessive fine. 
lell, consider the size of this company, Commissioners. Their 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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!xpenses for network services alone, and that's the 
irganization responsible for installing and repairing service, 
lggregated to about $600 mi 1 1 ion over the four -year period. 
'he $19.3 million is about 1/30 of that amount. And again, the 
.9.3 is for the entire four-year period. But cutting the 
iudget so much that they couldn't comply with your rules, the 
:ompany profited by more than this. 

You can't make violation of your rules profitable for 
:he company, because if you do then it surely will be that they 
rill violate your rules again, because it's a profitable 
lecision for them. We think that given the circumstances of 
:his case that the $19.3 million fine is appropriate and 
,easonabl e. 

Thank you. 
CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Ms. Caswel 1 . 
MS. CASWELL: Commissioners, this case shouldn't even 

ie in the hearing room. Public counsel alleges that Verizon 
ias committed a1 1 sorts of intentional wrongs, i ncl udi ng 
!xtreme neglect o f  plant and forsaking service quality for net 
iperating income. We are made out to be a corporate villain 
:hat cares nothing for its customers. We categorically deny 
:hose allegations and will prove on a point-by-point basis that 
:hey are false. But the best way I can show you in a snapshot 
iust how baseless the allegations are, just how unbelievable 
ublic counsel's theories are, and just how outrageous a 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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.equest for an unprecedented $19 million fine is ,  i s  t o  look a t  
)ur overall performance, so l e t ' s  step back and review the 
nagnitude of the offense we're charged w i t h .  

The Commission requires Verizon t o  make repairs 95% 

if the time i n  24 hours. 
chis standard 569 times over four years. And how many repairs 
j id  Verizon make on time during t h a t  period? Over 1.4 million. 

The standard was met more t h a n  90% of the time. 

Public counsel alleges Verizon missed 

Commission requires Verizon t o  install service w i t h i n  

three days 90% of the time. Public counsel alleges Verizon 
nissed t h a t  standard 204 times during four years. To gain some 
ierspective on t h a t  number, Verizon completed over 1.2 million 

installations on time during t h a t  period. The standard was met 
iearly 95% of the time. 

Let's use some common sense. Does anyone really 
Ielieve t h a t  these numbers show any intention on Verizon's part 
to violate the Commission's rules? Do they reflect the kind of 

2gregious offense public counsel claims? Do they support a 
theory of intentional corporate mal feasance t o  sacrifice 
service qual i ty  for profits, ignoring for the moment t h a t  
iudget was exceeded i n  each of the years under examination? 
I t ' s  ridiculous t o  even entertain the notion. 

Verizon provides good service today and i t  provided 
good service during the four-year period a t  issue i n  this 
jocket. For the past year and a half, Verizon has had an 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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ilmost perfect compliance record for the repair and 
installation rules. Over about the same period, Verizon's had 
the top repair and installation scores among the large ILECs. 
Iven in 1998 and 1999 when Verizon missed some of the 
standards, it repai red out - of - service conditions in 24 hours 
almost 93% of the time. 
Mithin three days almost 96% of the time in 1998, and it had 
the best scores of any Florida ILEC on its Commission service 
audits in 1997 and 1998. 

It completed service installations 

Verizon has been able to do all this, despite some of 
the toughest repair and installation measures in the country. 
Jnlike most states, Florida requires each standard to be met 
for each exchange every month, a much harder objective to meet 
than a statewide standard. Most states would consider 
Verizon's service record here to be cause for praise, not for a 
Show Cause proceeding. 

As the Commission knows and as public counsel knows, 
the Commission can assess penalties for rule violations only if 
it finds they were willful. 
legal standard of willfulness, which is the same as the common 
meaning, deliberate, voluntary or intentional. The Commission 
has to look at the circumstances of each and every miss to 
determine whether it was willful. At the end of the case, it 
has to make a specific determination of exactly how many 
violations Verizon intended to commit. 

The Commission has to apply the 

It can't guess or 
FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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speculate that some may have been willful. Each willful 
vi ol ation must be proven by competent and substanti a1 evidence. 

Publ ic counsel has failed to produce any evidence, 
let alone competent and substantial evidence, showing that any 
of Verizon's misses were willful. Not even public counsel 
would claim that Verizon ever had a plan to violate the 
standards, but failing to find any evidence of intent, public 
counsel fabricates a convoluted theory. 

According to this theory, Verizon deliberately let 
its network fall into an extreme state of disrepair without any 
regard for service quality in a single-minded pursuit of 
profits. Publ ic counsel claims that corporate headquarters 
forced the Florida region to adhere to target budgets without 
any regard for service or compliance with PSC standards. 

We will show that there's absolutely no truth to 
public counsel's allegations. 
any evidence of a massive underfunding and corporate disregard 
of PSC standards that it claims. To the contrary, you will see 
that the company considers compliance with PSC obligations to 
be a baseline requirement of the Florida president's job. 
Plainly speaking. a region president's failure to comply with 
the PSC service measures can cause him to lose his job. 

It has utterly failed to produce 

The fact that the president must also remain aware of 
cost considerations in running the business has never 
diminished the importance of meeting the service standards. 
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4r. Ferrell's compliance record has proven that effective and 
2fficient use of resources is the key to sustaining compliance 
rJith PSC measures. More money does not necessarily equal 
letter service, which is the simplistic conclusion that public 
zounsel asks you to draw. 

Where Verizon missed the standards in the limited 
instances alleged in this case, there were good reasons and we 
discuss them in our testimony, but let me focus on just one 
here and that's the weather. The weather deserves particular 
consideration. Tampa Bay is a tough place to operate a 
telephone company for no other reason than it gets more 
lightning than anywhere in the world except for the Amazon 
River Basin. And over the period at issue here, Verizon 
service area had some of the most extreme weather ever, 
including the appearance of El Nino. We had record rain, 
lightning, and flooding at several points. 

Public counsel, though, would not excuse Verizon for 
meeting the standards even for any of this weather, no matter 
how dramatic. In public counsel's view, even acts of God are 
willful violations on Verizon's part. That's how extreme their 
position is. 

It's unfortunate that this case was initiated just as 
Mr . Ferrel 1 ' s service improvement initiatives were beginning to 
pay off to close the small compliance gap that was present. 
There's no reason for us to be here and no justification for 
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ny penalties. Verizon never wil l ful ly  violated any service 

tandards, and the company has already voluntarily paid many 

.housands of residential customers $25 for each missed repair 
lr installation commitment through i t s  voluntary service 
lerformance guarantee. 
;ha t  Verizon did  not willfully violate the repair or 
nstallation rules a t  any time and t o  decline t o  assess any 

ienalties. 

Verizon urges this Commission t o  f ind 

Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Thank you. Unless there's anything 

!1se, we're prepared t o  go t o  testimony. Looks like there will 

le rebuttal, except for Mr. Poucher, there will be rebuttal and 

li rect a t  once. 
MR. BECK: Mr. Chairman, I don ' t  t h i n k  any testimony 

s combined. There's the S ta f f ,  then ourselves, then the three 
:ompany witnesses, and then Mr. Poucher for surrebuttal . 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Okay. And I show Mr. McDonald's up 
'irst; i s  t h a t  correct? 

MR. BECK: Yeah. 
CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Okay. 

MR. FORDHAM: Yes. Mr. Chairman, as the first  
ritness, S taf f  will call Don McDonald. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: You may proceed. 
_ _ _ _ _  

DON MCDONALD 
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as ca l led as a witness on behalf o f  the Flor ida Public Service 

ommission and, having been duly sworn, t e s t i f i e d  as follows: 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

#Y MR. FORDHAM: 

Q Good morning, M r .  McDonald. Would you please state 

'our name and business address fo r  the record, please. 

A My name i s  Don McDonald. I work a t  2540 Shumard Oak 

loul evard, Tal 1 ahassee. 

Q 

A 

And by whom and what capacity are you employed, s i r ?  

I ' m  employed by the Flor ida Public Service Commission 

IS Communi cations Engineer Supervi sor . 
Q And d i d  you cause t o  be f i l e d  i n  t h i s  proceeding 

I i r e c t  Testimony f i l e d  on April 7th. 2000, consist ing o f  seven 

)ages? 

A Yes, I did. 

Q Do you have any changes or  corrections t o  make i n  

:hat testimony a t  t h i s  time? 

A No, I don't.  

Q I f  I were t o  ask you the same questions contained i n  

four testimony today, would your answers be substant ia l ly  the 

same? 

A Yes, i t  would. 

Q Commissioner, a t  t h i s  time I ' d  l i k e  t o  move 

4r. McDonald's testimony i n t o  the record as i f  read, including 

2xhibits - -  or  Attachments, rather, 1 through 10. 
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CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Well, we haven't marked those yet. 

Ihy don' t  we move the testimony f i r s t .  Without objection, show 

he pref i led Di rect  Testimony o f  Mr. McDonald entered i n t o  the 

mecord as though read. And you'd l i k e  t o  mark the exhibi ts as 

Ittached. I show DBM-1 through DBM-10. 

MR. FORDHAM: Correct. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: We'll mark those as composite 

l xh ib i t  5, and w e ' l l  w a i t  u n t i l  the end o f  h is  testimony before 

re move those in .  

(Exhibi t  5 marked fo r  iden t i f i ca t ion . )  

MR. FORDHAM: Okay. Thank you, s i r .  
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Please state your name and business address. 

Donald E. McDonald, 2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, 

Florida 32399-0850. 

Where are you employed and in what capacity? 

I am employed by the Florida Public Service Commission in the 

Division of Telecommunications as Communications Engineer- 

Supervisor in the Bureau of Service Evaluation. 

Please describe your communications and regulatory experience. 

I joined the Commission in November 1991, after thirty-one 

years telecommunications experience with GTE-Florida and GTE 

Data Services. I have a degree in Industrial Engineering from 

the University of Florida. 

What are your responsibilities in your current position? 

Since joining the Florida Public Service Commission, I have 

been supervising the Engineers who perform service 

evaluations. These evaluations include initiating test calls, 

analyzing company data, making inspections and reporting the 

results of the tests and inspections. 

Have you previously testified before the Commission? 

Yes, I filed testimony in previous cases involving BellSouth 

(Docket Number 920260-TL), Alltel Communications (Docket 

Number 920193-TL) as well as other LECs. 

What is the purpose of your testimony? 

To show that GTE Florida, during the period of January 1996 

through December 1999, was in violation of Rule 25-4.070(3)(a) 
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which requires 95% restoration of interrupted service (out of 

service) within 24 hours of the report and Rule 25-4.066(2) 

which requires installation of primary service within 3 

working days in each exchange. 

With respect to whether GTE Florida failed to meet the 

requirements of these rules, what kind of review did Staff 

undertake to make a determination? 

Staff usually conducts annual service quality reviews of the 

Company by sampling Company records in selected exchanges. In 

regard to whether the rules are being met concerning 

restoration of interrupted service and installation of primary 

service, Staff reviews Company records, usually covering a six 

month period, in the selected exchanges. 

Did Staff conduct this review in 1996? 

Yes, Staff conducted a service quality evaluation from May 13, 

1996 through June 28, 1996 in the Clearwater, Hudson, New 

Port Richey, and Tarpon Spring exchanges. Company records 

were reviewed for the period from January 1996 through June 

1996. 

What did this review indicate? 

The Company records indicated that they met the rule in three 

of the four exchanges evaluated for restoration of interrupted 

service. The standard was missed in the Hudson exchanges as 

they repaired 93.3% within 24 hours rather than the standard 

of 95%. On installation of service, the Company also met the 
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standard of 90% in three out of four exchanges as they missed 

the standard in the Clearwater exchange (86.5%). See Exhibit 

DBM-1. 

Did Staff also review the Company's 1996 periodic reports? 

Yes, Staff reviewed the periodic reports issued by the Company 

for the period for 1996. 

What did these reports indicate? 

That the Company missed the repair standard in all of its 

exchanges in January and had only two months (September & 

December) in which GTE missed the standard in less than 50% of 

its exchanges. The results of installation of new service 

were better than the repair results as the Company met the 

standard in all of its exchanges for five of the twelve 

months. November was the worst month as it missed the 

objective in 37.5% of the exchanges. See Exhibit DBM-2. 

Did Staff conduct a service quality review in 1997? 

Yes, Staff conducted an evaluation in the Lakeland, Bartow, 

and Lake Wales exchanges from June 16 through July 25, 1997 

covering the period from January through June 1997. 

What did the 1997 review indicate? 

The Company met the repair standard in the three exchanges 

reviewed. However, on installation of service, it missed the 

standard in all three exchanges. The results for the three 

exchanges are shown in Exhibit DBM-3. 

What did the Company's periodic reports show for 1997? 
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The interruption of service indicated that the Company met the 

standard for four of the first five months in 1997. However, 

beginning in June, the Company's results showed that they 

missed the standard in 58.3% of its exchanges and by November 

the results had further declined as they missed the standard 

in 100% of its exchanges. The Company reported that on 

installation of new service they made the standard 1 of the 12 

months. See Exhibit DBM-4. However, during the service quality 

evaluation that was conducted, Staff raised a question 

concerning the Company's accuracy in reporting installation 

data. Staff found during the evaluation "28 service orders, 

that while closed out, were not f u l l y  completed; these 

resulted in out-of-service trouble reports by the customers." 

What was the result of this apparent inaccuracy? 

The result was that instead of counting these service orders 

as completed on time they should have been classified as not 

completed on time. GTE pledged in their response to the 

evaluation "to ensure complete information on the orders as 

well as accurate reporting" in the future. See the 

correspondence regarding this issue in Exhibit DBM-5. 

Did Staff conduct a service quality review in 1998? 

Yes, staff reviewed GTE Florida's records for the period of 

March 1, 1998 through September 1, 1998 in the Bradenton, 

Englewood, Sarasota and Venice exchanges. 

What did the 1998 review indicate? 
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A sample of the Company records in the previ’ously mentioned 

exchanges indicated that the Company met the rule in three of 

the four exchanges evaluated for restoration of interrupted 

service. The Company missed the repair standard in the 

Sarasota exchange (91.2% which was below the 95% standard). 

On installation of service, the standard was met in all four 

exchanges. See Exhibit DBM-6. 

What did the periodic reports indicate for 1998? 

Exhibit DBM-7, which shows the Company’s results for 1998, 

reveals that the Company missed the repair standard in 100% of 

its exchanges in January, 91.7% in February and 83.3% in 

March. The results for April and May improved greatly and 

ranged from 4.2% to 8.3%. However, beginning in June the 

results began to decline and ranged from 37.5% of the 

exchanges failing in June to 79.2% in October. On 

installation of new service, the Company‘s results were 

somewhat better as they met the standard in all exchanges for 

three of the twelve months with September being the worst 

month when the standard was missed in 25% of the exchanges. 

Did you conduct a service quality evaluation in 1999? 

Yes, from October 25 through December 24, 1999, Staff 

conducted a follow-up evaluation of out of service troubles 

(See exhibit DBM-8). The records reviewed covered the period 

from April 1, 1999 through September 30, 1999 in the same 

exchanges that were evaluated in 1998, Bradenton, Englewood, 
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Sarasota and Venice. The evaluation showed that the Company 

missed the repair standard in all four exchanges. 

What did the periodic reports show for 1999? 

Exhibit DBM-9 shows that repairing out of service in 1999 

varied from not missing the standard in any exchange in 

February to missing it in 79.2% of the exchanges in August. 

The worst months were August through October when the standard 

was missed in all exchanges. However, for the last two months 

in 1999 the objective was met in all exchanges. For 

installation of new service, the Company missed the standard 

in all exchanges for five of the twelve months and only made 

the standard in all exchanges in December. 

Did GTE Florida meet the quality of service standards for 

installation of new service and repair of service 

interruptions for the period from January 1996 through 

December 1999? 

No. The Company averaged missing the standard f o r  repair in 

62.2% of its exchanges in 1996, 43.0% in 1997, 56.9% in 1998 

and 35.4% in 1999. There was only a slight improvement in 

1999 over the previous three years. In installation of new 

service, the Company average missing the standard in only 9.0% 

of its exchanges in 1996, 4.5% in 1997, and 6.3% in 1998. 

But for 1999, GTE missed the standard in 51.0% of its 

exchanges. This indicates a degradation of service in the 

area of installation. 
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During the period of January 1996  through December 1999, how 

many violations of the rule on restoration of interrupted 

service within 24 hours of the report occurred? 

There were 569  violations of the rule on the repair interval 

(see Exhibit DBM-10). 

During the period of January 1996 through December 1999, how 

many violations of the rule on installation of primary service 

within three working days occurred? 

There were 204 violations of the rule on the installation 

interval (see Exhibit DBM-10). 

Does this complete your testimony? 

Yes. 
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Y MR. FORDHAM: 
Q 

est i mony? 
Mr. McDonald. do you have a summary of your 

A Yes. 
Q 
A 1 certainly will. 

Would you give that at this time, please. 

The company, such as Verizon, submits periodic 
eports usually on a quarterly basis and we review them as they 
end them in and, basically, they explain why they made misses. 
,nd what we'd look for on an ongoing basis on periodic reports 
s a trend over time. 

And I reviewed the apparent report from the time 
'rame of January 1996 through December 1999 in the area, 
rincipally, of repair involving Rule 25-4.070, which says all 
epair must be made within 24 hours 95% o f  the time in each 
!xchange. And on installation, which is Rule 25-066 - -  .066 - -  
,066, I'm sorry, it says installation must be done 90% in each 
!xchange within three days. So, in reviewing the trends over a 
beriod of time, it's already been stated how many violations 
!ach exchange - -  there's 24 exchanges in Verizon, at least at 
:he time we did the evaluation on the periodic reports. 

And a violation would be if those 24 exchanges missed 
,epair during the month that would be considered 24 violations, 
;o totalling those violations up for 1996 was 179 on repair, 
97 was 124, '98 was 164. and '99 was 102, as Mr. Beck started 
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Iutlining for a total of 569. And on installation again, that 
i s  by exchange, there are 24 of them; '96 there were 26 

iiolations, '97, 13; '98, 18, and then it jumped up to in '99 

147 for a total o f  204: 

Some of the reasons outlined by the company for 
We have a rule, the repair Rule nissing was bad weather. 

!5-4070, which says, if you have emergency conditions, such as 
)ad weather or whatever and over 10% of an exchange is out of 
service. you can - -  you do not have to count that day. To my 
mowledge, Verizon, during that time frame, had never come to 
the Public Service Commission and said we want to exclude data 
juring that time for any problems. 

And that concl udes my opening comment. 
MR. FORDHAM: Thank you. Mr. Chairman, at this time 

Staff tenders the witness for cross. 
CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Mr. Beck, any cross? 
MR. BECK: Yes, thank you. 

CROSS EXAMINATION 
BY MR. BECK: 

Q Good morning, Mr. McDonald. 
A Good morning. 
Q Mr. McDonald, the 24 exchanges that Verizon has, do 

they vary somewhat in size? 
A Oh, yes, anywhere from Myakka, which is probably one 

of their smallest ones up to the Tampa exchange, which is 
FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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lrobably their biggest, Tampa-St. Pete. 
Q Now, t o  make one rule violat ion,  they'd have t o  

' io la te  the standard for  the entire month i n  an exchange: i s  

:hat correct? 
A That 's  correct.  

Q Could you give us an example, both for  a large 
!xchange and a small exchange, about how many individual 
:ustomers would have had service outside the rule, i f  there was 

I violation for  the month, i f  you can? 
A Well, take S t .  Petersburg, a s  an example. As I 

,eca l l ,  the data for  another reason, they'd run somewhere 
&ween 5 and 6,000 repair  tickets i n  a month, so i n  order t o  
i i s s  t h a t  exchange they would have t o  basically miss 5% - -  over 
i4; of those. So, i f  they got 90% then, i n  essence, they'd miss 
.O% of those trouble tickets, which would be 500 or  600, 

lepending on the number of trouble tickets during the month. 
Now, Myakka, I don't  know how many trouble tickets 

:hey may have i n  a month. I t  might be, you know, 100, so there 
:hey would only have - -  they would miss, you know, cer ta in ly  a 
o t  less numbers t o  get below 95%. 

Q And what you've described is  the c r i t e r i a  t o  have one 
ule violation of the - -  

A If  Myakka had 100 trouble tickets and they missed 15 

)f them, obviously, t h a t  would be a violation. 
Q Okay. I t ' s  S t a f f ' s  posit ion t h a t  Verizon's 
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io la t ions  were w i l l f u l  on Verizon's part;  i s  t ha t  correct? 

A 

Q Well, what's your posit ion? 

A 

I believe, t h a t ' s  what the wr i te-up said, yes. 

Well, i t ' s  not f o r  me t o  determine whether i t  was 

, i l l f u l  o r  not. 

o make tha t  determination, whether i t ' s  w i l l f u l  or  not. 

I believe t h a t ' s  the Commission's prerogative 

Q So, are you saying - - you're not saying whether i t  

'as or was not, you j u s t  have no pos i t ion on whether i t  was 

r i l l  f u l ?  

A That's correct. 

Q What i s  your pos i t ion  regarding the f i n e  tha t  should 

le imposed i n  t h i s  case? 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

I believe t h a t ' s  outside o f  my scope o f  my testimony. 

Do you have any posi t ion? 

I have no pos i t ion on that. 

So, you have no pos i t ion  on whether i t ' s  w i l l f u l  or 

rhether there should be a f ine? 

A That's correct. 

MR. BECK: I have no other questions. Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Ms. Caswell . 
CROSS EXAMINATION 

1Y MS. CASWELL: 

Q Good morning, Mr. McDonald. 

A Good morning. 

Q I think, you mentioned tha t  when Verizon submits i t s  
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luarterly reports it includes explanations of the misses of 
,ervice standards for that month: is that correct? 

A That's correct. 
Q And did you review any of Verizon's explanations for 

iissing the standards at certain points? 
A Yes, we do. 
Q And in the four years at issue, do you know if the 

:ommission has ever questioned Verizon's explanations for its 
ii sses? 

A Well, again, when we look at periodic reports, we 
lon't look so much at a single month, but we look for trends, 
ind if we see an ongoing trend, then we have a problem. I 
,elieve, in '97 we raised that question to Verizon that we 
lidn't like the trend we saw and we got explanations for that, 
ut you still - - if you violate a rule - - I mean, even though 
;here's bad weather or whatever the reason is, you still have 
;o meet the rule, unless you can exclude that data from the 
;otal, and nowhere, that I recall, did Verizon ever ask that 
'or any o f  the data be excluded. 

Q So that perhaps in one instance the Commission or the 
:ommission Staff went to Verizon, asked them for greater 
!xplanation of the misses, and that was it? 

A 
Q 

I'm sorry, would you restate that? 
Was that in one instance where the Staff went back 

ind asked Verizon to explain its misses? 
FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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A Yes, i n  '97 we did.  

Q In 1997? 

A Right. 

Q And do you know i f  the S ta f f  or the Commission ever 

indicated t h a t  any of the service standard misses was 
intentional or deliberate rather t h a n  the result of the factors 
leri zon 1 i sted i n  i t s  expl anati  ons? 

A Well, we never raised the issue whether i t  was 
leliberate or not when we asked t o  review your, you know, i n  

'97 or even since then. 
Okay. And you talked about trends when you look a t  Q 

:he service results. Now, looking a t  the charts i n  your 
Lestimony on the compliance levels from '96 through '99, do we 
;ee peaks and valleys there: i n  other words, compliance was 
letter a t  some points t h a n  other points or do you see a 
jteadi 1 y increasing trend toward 1 ess and 1 ess compl i ance? 

A In '99? 

Q No, I'm t a lk ing  about over the period from 1996 

through 1999 when you look a t  graphs - -  
A Well, i n  looking a t  the data ,  i f  you start w i t h  '96, 

3s an example, repair, the best you did was you made i t  i n  half 

if your exchanges on several months and the work you did,  you 

nissed i t  i n  every exchange i n  '96. 

Q B u t  the results varied from month t o  month. You 
J i d n ' t  see any - -  
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A They varied, r igh t .  In some months you made the 
ibjective i n  every exchange, but like '97, the f i r s t  three 
nonths of the year you were fine, you met i t  i n  every exchange, 
) u t  then by the end of the year you were - - your results 
steadily got worse i n  '97, went from 16% of the exchanges 
nissed t o  100% by the end of the - -  by November, actually.  And 

that continued on i n  '98. u n t i l  April of '98. And then for  two 

nonths i t  got better, 4% of your exchanges missed a t  '98 and 8% 

i n  April and 8% i n  May and then i t  got worse again. From June 
through December the best month you had was 37% of misses and 
the worst you had was about 79%, so.. . 

Q So, there were variations from month t o  month? 
A They were varying, yes, but the trend d i d n ' t  look too 

good. And on - -  the main t h i n g  on i n s t a l l a t i o n ,  i t  wasn't too 
bad during '96, 7 and 8, except for  a few isolated months; 
towards the end of '96, it trended up, but then i t  went back 

down again, like, you got it back under control.  B u t  i n  '99. 

then t h a t ' s  when you had the biggest problem. First par t  - -  
first few months i n  '99 you had every exchange where you missed 
and t h e n  it got better for  two months, and then i t  got bad 

again u n t i l  the end of the year, and November i t  got better 
again. 

Q So, they were up and down trends. 
A They were up and down some, yeah. 
Q Okay. A t  Page 6, Lines 24 through 25 of your 
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estimony, you indicate there was a degradation of service i n  

he area of installation - -  
A Yes. 
Q - - i n  1999? 

A That's right. 

Q - -  because GTE missed the standard a high percentage 

f time t h a t  year. Do you recall t h a t  i n  the reports for 
ebruary and March of 1999 the company explained t h a t  due t o  a 
eport system problem, i t ' s  reported installation results for 
hose months d id  not accurately reflect the actual results for 
he period? 

A Yes. And what  I question on t h a t  i s  i f  the report 
rasn't accurate then why d i d n ' t  Verizon fi le an accurate report 
.o the Commission, because the rule is on periodic reports they 
lust be accurate. 

Q Do you understand t h a t  Verizon may not have had the 
lata t o  f i le an accurate report because of the systems 
rob1 ems? 

A Well, then, we have t o  take the data you send i n  as 
e ing  accurate. 

Q Okay. So, your conclusion about the degradation of 

iervice doesn't consider t h a t  reported results may not have 
)een accurate? 

A Not a t  a l l .  

Q In any event, the downtrend you may have perceived i n  
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.he 1999 installation numbers has not continued in that 
lirection for 2000, has it? 

A No, and 2000 has been very good. 
Q Okay. And for 2000 and 2001, so far the company has 

let repair and installation standards for the most part? 
A I believe, if my memory serves me right, from January 

,f 2000 through March of 2001 you've missed installation in 
'our exchanges and repair in five, if I'm not mistaken. 

Q 
A 
Q 

So, you would say that's a - -  
I would say that's very good. 
And in preparing your testimony you also relate - -  
COMMISSIONER DEASON: Let me ask the question at this 

boint. First, I'll direct it to our legal Staff, then I'll let 
;he parties address it, if they wish. We're here for service 
ri ol ati ons or apparent service vi ol ati ons which occurred over a 
'our-year period, '96, '97, '98, and '99. Is it relevant what 
iappened in 2000 and 2001? Is that something we should 
:onsider or something that is outside the scope? 

MR. FORDHAM: Commissioner, I would think since one 
If the purposes of the hearing is to determine the monetary 
)enalties involved that it might be helpful to the Commission 
mly for that purpose in determining future efforts, but I 
rould - -  Staff would not object at this point to the question. 
: think, it could be admissible based on that factor. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Ms. Caswell? 
FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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MS. CASWELL: Yeah, and I agree w i t h  Mr. Fordham on 

.ha t  point ,  t h a t  the Commission, i n  assessing whether penalties 
Ire due, typically looks a t  what  i t  will take t o  achieve 
:ompliance i n  the future; i n  this case, the 2000 results, 2001 

besults are relevant i n  t h a t  regard. 
Further though, there's another reason why they're 

Selevant. Pub1 i c  counsel has made them relevant, because i t s  
:heory is  t h a t  the company failed t o  devote the funds 
iecessary, the personnel necessary, the resources necessary t o  
meet the service standards through 1996 through 1999. t h a t  i t s  
'esources were necessarily inadequate. And the only way we can 
rove t h a t  they were not i s  t o  show you results from 2000 and 

;how you t h a t  we had no more resources, t h a t  i t  was better 
ianagement . 

So, I would emphasize t h a t  they're directly relevant, 
I would also Iecause o f  public counsel's theory i n  this case. 

Ioint out t h a t ,  I t h i n k ,  public counsel itself has attached 
;ome 2000 information t o  i t s  testimony and expenses and things 
if t h a t  nature. They've talked about costs per line and some 
)ther things relevant t o  2000. The 2000 results were discussed 
in Mr. Ferrell 's testimony. Mr. Poucher rebutted some of t h a t  

:estimony. There was no move t o  strike any of i t ,  so I would 

irge the Commission t o  hear a l l  o f  the evidence, including the 
!OOO results. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Mr. Beck. 
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MR. BECK: Commissioner, we haven't objected. I 

lon't th ink  i t ' s  p a r t i c u l a r l y  relevant t ha t  they could do 

letter during 2000. which i s  the second year o f  a drought, 

l f t e r  the Commission has opened a show cause i n  t h e i r  scrutiny, 

ut I ' m  not going t o  object t o  it. 

.hat's f ine.  

I f  they want t o  put i t  i n ,  

I t ' s  a t  the Commission's pleasure. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Well, I guess, my question goes 

Ieyond you a l l  permitted t o  present evidence, and you can 

ibject o r  not, but j u s t  because you present i t  doesn't mean 

:hat we have t o  consider it. And my question i s  should tha t  be 

:onsidered as par t  o f  whether there were v io la t ions i n  the 

'our-year period and when i t  goes t o  determining the amount o f  

I f i ne ,  i s  tha t  something w i th in  our discret ion? We're not 

imited one way o r  the other lega l l y .  We can consider it, i f  

re wish or we can ignore it, i f  we wish: i s  t ha t  - -  
MR. BECK: That would be my understanding, 

:ommi ssi  oner . 
COMMISSIONER DEASON: Ms. Caswel l? 

MS. CASWELL: I would agree. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: S t a f f  agrees w i th  that? 

MR. FORDHAM: S t a f f  agrees as wel l .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay, thank you. 

iY MS. CASWELL: 

Q 

A 

I think, we were - -  were we ta l k ing  about the audits? 

Well, you asked about how you were doing l a te l y .  
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Q Yeah. Well, i n  preparing your testimony, you've 
.eviewed the service qual i ty  audits over the four years a t  
issue; i s  t h a t  right? 

A Yeah. 

Q 

A Right.  

Q And i n  terms o f  overall audi t  scores from 1996 

:hrough 1999, Verizon has consistently exceeded the passing 
;cores: isn't t h a t  right? 

And those audits are performed by Commission Staff?  

A That's correct. One t h i n g  you have t o  realize on 
audits, i t  i s  a snapshot of a few exchanges w i t h i n  the company 
and a few central offices i n  the company, not all 24 of them. 
So, we might look a t  four or five exchanges and you might do 

ikay i n  those four or five and you might have done a l l  right 
luring the periodic report on those companies, because we do 

:ompare our review w i t h  the periodic reports t o  see i f  they're 
i n  sync. 

Q B u t  you do consider them relevant i n  assessing 
service quality, correct, or the Staff wouldn't  do them a t  a l l ?  

A Right.  

MR. FORDHAM: Commissioner, S taf f  a t  this time, i f  

ve're pursuing this, has t o  object, because the service 
?valuations are not a part of the docket and we have not used 
those i n  any way i n  making the i n i t i a l  charges against the 
:ompany . 
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MS. CASWELL: Can I respond? I ' m  a l i t t l e  puzzled by 

hat, because I th ink  M r .  McDonald does discuss the service 

sudits i n  h i s  testimony, and t h a t ' s  why I ' m  asking the 

luestions about the audits. 

THE WITNESS: It was i n  my testimony, but the 

l io lat ions are based s t r i c t l y  on the per iodic reports. 

MS. CASWELL: Okay. I understand. I have no mor 

luestions on the audits, i n  any case. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: You're withdrawing tha t  so I don't  

lave t o  deal w i th  the objection? 

MS. CASWELL: Yeah. I ' m  not sure I - -  I think,  we're 
.. 'ine. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Okay. 

MS. CASWELL: I th ink,  we're f ine .  

iY MS. CASWELL: 

Q M r .  McDonald, do most states measure service resul ts  

it the exchange 1 eve1 ? 

A Yeah. 

Q They do? 

A 

Q 

I ' m  sorry, would you repeat tha t?  

Do most states measure service resu l ts  a t  the 

ixchange level  or  perhaps the statewide level? 

A Well, I th ink  - -  
MR. BECK: Objection, relevance. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Excuse me, j u s t  a moment, M r .  
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4cDonal d. 
THE WITNESS: I'm sorry. 
MR. BECK: I object to relevance. 
THE WITNESS: That's outside the scope of my 

testimony. 
CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Hold on just a second, we've got an 

lb jecti on. Ms. Caswel 1 . 
MS. CASWELL: That's fine. I withdraw the question. 

I have nothing further, Mr . McDonald. 
CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Redirect? 
MR. FORDHAM: Staff has no redirect, Commissioners. 
CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Commissioners, any questions? 
Mr. McDonald, do you attribute any particular 

relevance to the nature of the violations in the level to which 
they rose and decline throughout the course of the year? Is it 
seasonal, is it - - 

THE WITNESS: We1 1 , somewhat. A1 though, it 1 ooks 
like it varies somewhat, it's not due - -  you can't say, well, 
Mhen they have all the tourists in their area, then they have 
nore compliance. They probably do, but they should staff for 
that. And they have bad weather normally in the summer which 
they know they're going to have, and they should staff for 
that. I mean, it's not unusual conditions, other than once in 
a while when they may have an El Nino or something problem, but 
as long as the plan i s  maintained in proper condition it 
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shouldn't cause any extraordinary outages, I wouldn't th ink,  i n  

ny opinion. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Okay. Very wel l .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: I ' m  sorry, I do have a 

question. The rules and the standards which are w i th in  the 

rule,  primarily f o r  repairs 95% and 90% ins ta l la t ions .  

THE WITNESS: Right. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: What i s  your understanding as 

to  why there i s  a standard o f  lesser than loo%? I guess, my 

question i s ,  i s  t ha t  t o  ant ic ipate changes i n  weather or  

perhaps changes i n  demand, seasonal demand, i s  t ha t  the reason 

that i t ' s  not 100% the requirement, there 's  leeway i n  there fo r  

the company t o  be able t o  manage w i th in  normal weather, normal 

demands, tha t  sor t  o f  thing? 

THE WITNESS: That's r i g h t .  I would th ink  i t ' s  there 

p r inc ipa l l y  t o  take care o f  s l i g h t l y  unusual conditions t h a t ' s  

not an emergency type si tuat ion,  yes. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. 

THE WITNESS: Otherwise, would be 100%. it could be 

100%. 
COMMISSIONER DEASON: You mentioned a provision 

wi th in  the r u l e  which allows the company t o  request data t o  be 

excluded f o r  severe weather: i s  t ha t  correct? 

THE WITNESS: I f  10% o f  an exchange i s  out o f  service 

due t o  whatever reason, it could be bad weather or  other 
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emergency conditions. Acts o f  God i s  defined as 10% o f  an 

exchange up, yes. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON : But you in te rpre t  tha t  it ' s 

incumbent upon the company t o  request tha t  data t o  be excluded? 

THE WITNESS: Yes. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: And there were no requests 

nade? 

THE WITNESS: A l l  they'd have t o  do i s  - - wel l ,  they 

could exclude it and reference tha t  ru le  and. we cer ta in ly  

douldn't object t o  tha t  a t  a l l .  

an exchange was out o f  service due t o  E l  Nino and we had, you 

know, f looding and a l l  that ,  we would - -  tha t  would be okay fo r  

them t o  exclude it. And as long as they wrote i t  up i n  t h e i r  

periodic reports t h a t ' s  why they were excluding it, otherwise, 

de would challenge i t  i f  they d idn ' t .  

I f  they said, you know, 15% o f  

I f  i t  wasn't 10% o f  an exchange - -  normally, they 

dould l e t  us know a t  tha t  time. They wouldn't w a i t  t o  do a 

periodic report.  So, they would come t o  the Commission and say 

delve had an emergency s i tua t ion  and the S t .  Petersburg 

Ixchange, 10% o f  i t  i s  out o f  service due t o  the fol lowing 

reason, we would have already known tha t  and then they could 

2xclude i t  out o f  t h e i r  per iodic report,  whenever they do that,  

dhich i s  usually w i th in  30 days a f te r  the end o f  t ha t  quarter 

for tha t  par t i cu la r  period o f  time. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Very wel l .  That takes care o f  i t . 
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hank you, M r .  McDonald, you're excused. 

(Witness excused.) 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Next witness. 

MR. BECK: The c i t i zens  c a l l  Mr. Poucher. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Well, before I - -  because we d i d n ' t  

- hold on, M r .  McDonald. 

lecause we d i d  ask some questions tha t  no - -  

I guess, I should j u s t  make sure, 

MR. FORDHAM: No more questions, Commissioner, but I 

rould l i k e ,  a t  t h i s  point ,  t o  move the testimony wi th  

ktachments as a composite Exhib i t  Number 5. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: We've moved the testimony i n  

Without objection, w e ' l l  admit Exhib i t  5 i n t o  the ilready. 

hecord. 

(Exhibi t  5 admitted i n t o  the record. 1 
CHAIRMAN JACOBS: You may proceed, M r .  Beck. 

R. EARL POUCHER 

ras ca l led as a witness on behalf o f  the Cit izens o f  the State 

)f Florida and, having been duly sworn, t e s t i f i e d  as follows: 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

IY MR. BECK: 

Q 

A My name i s  E a r l  Poucher. I ' m  a Legis lat ive Analyst 

f i t h  the Of f ice o f  Public Counsel a t  111 West Madison Street, 

Tallahassee. Florida. 

Would you please s tate your name? 

Q Did you cause your Direct  testimony t o  be f i l e d  i n  
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h i s  case on Apr i l  27th, 2000? 

A Yes, 1 did. 

Q Do you have any changes or corrections t o  make t o  

'our testimony? 

A Yes, I do. On Page 10 o f  my testimony, Line 1, 

meplace the i n i t i a l s  PUC wi th  PSC. 

Q 

A 

Q 

I s  t ha t  the only change you have? 

That's the only change I have. 

And d i d  you also have exhib i ts  w i th  your testimony 

larked REP-1 through REP-21? 

A Yes, I did. 

MR. BECK: M r .  Chairman, I ' d  ask tha t  Mr. E a r l ' s  

:xh ib i ts  REP-1 Through REP-21 be marked as Exhib i t  6 fo r  

dent i  f i cat i on. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Show them marked as Exhibi t  6. 

(Exhibi t  6 marked fo r  i den t i f i ca t i on . )  

IY MR. BECK: 

Q And wi th  your changes you mentioned ea r l i e r ,  

Ir. Poucher, i f  you were t o  give t h i s  testimony today would 

four answers be the same? 

A Yes. they would. 

MR. BECK: I ' d  ask tha t  Mr. Poucher's Direct  

restimony be inserted i n t o  the record as though read. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Without objection, show 

Ir. Poucher's Di rect  Testimony entered i n t o  the record as 
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DIRECT TESTIMONY 

R EARL POUCHER 

FOR 

THE OFFICE OF PUBLIC COUNSEL 

BEFORE THE 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

DOCKET NO. 991376-TL 

4 8  

1 Q. Please state your name, business address and title. 

2 A. 

3 

My name is R. Earl Poucher. My business address is 11 1 West Madison St., Room 

812, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1400. My title is Legislative Analyst. 

4 Q. 

5 A. 

6 

7 

0 

9 -  

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

Please state your business experience. 

I graduated from the University of Florida in 1956 and I was employed by Southern 

Bell in July 1956 as a supervisor-trainee. I retired in 1987 with 29 years of service. 

During my career with Southern Bell, I held positions as Forecaster, Gainesville; 

Business Offce Manager, Orlando; District Commercial Manager, Atlanta; General 

Commercial-Marketing Supervisor, Georgia; Supervisor-Rates and Tariffs, Florida; 

District Manager-Rates and Tariffs, Georgia; General Rate Administrator, 

Headquarters; Division Staff Manager--Business Services, Georgia; Profitability 

Manager-Southeast Region, Business Services; Distribution Manager-Installation, 

Construction & Maintenance, West Florida and LATA Planning Manager-Florida. 

In addition, I was assigned to AT&T in 1968 where I worked for three years as 

Marketing Manager in the Market and Service Plans organization. I joined the Office 

of Public Counsel in October 1991 where I have performed analytical work and 

presented t&mony primarily in telephone matters. I am currently serving as a staff 
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member for the Federal-State Board on Universal Service. 

Have you ever appeared before this Commission? 

Yes I have. I testified on behalf of Public Counsel in United Telephone’s Docket No. 

910980-TL on rate case matters and Docket No. 910725-TL on depreciation matters, 

GTE Docket 920188-TL on Inside Wire, and in Southern Bell’s depreciation Docket 

No. 920385-TL. I filed testimony in Southem Bell’s Dockets 920260-TL, 900960-TL 

and 910163-TL, in the GTE Docket No. 950699-TL, in Docket No. 951123-TP 

dealing with Disconnect Authority, in Docket No. 9708820-TI dealing with 

slamming and in Docket No. 970109-TL dealing with “I Don’t Care, It Doesn’t 

Matter”. In addition, as an employee of Southern Bell I testified in rate case and 

anti-trust dockets before the Public Service Commissions in Georgia and North 

Carolina. 

What is the purpose of your testimony? 

The purpose of my testimony is to present to the Commission the recommendations 

of the Office of Public Counsel regarding the appropriate measures the Commission 

should take to penalize GTE for its willful failure to comply with the Commission’s 

rules that apply to the installation and repair of telephone service in the GTE 

operating territory in Florida since January 1, 1996. 

Did any of your previous job assignments with BellSouth include responsibility 

for installation and repair services? 

Yes. I was responsible for BellSouth’s Construction, Installation, Repair and Repair 

Center forces in Pensacola from 1982 until 1985. During the last year of that 

assignment I also assumed responsibility for the Panama City Construction, 

Installation, Repair and Repair Center organization. This latter move essentially gave 

me the responsibility of managing all of BellSouth’s outside construction, installation 

2 
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and repair personnel from Havana to the Alabama line. 

What is the basis for the recommendations you are making? 

I have evaluated the results of the company’s measurements since January 1, 1996, 

including the quarterly reports filed by GTE with the FPSC and various company 

internal reports that were furnished at the request of Public Counsel. In addition, I 

have reviewed company correspondence regarding service issues and our office has 

taken the deposition of Russ Diamond, who is responsible for the reporting of service 

results and budgetary matters for GTE’s Florida operations. 

What is the significance of the January 1,1996 date as it relates to this docket? 

January 1, 1996 was the starting point for price cap regulation implemented in 

Florida pursuant to the 1995 revision of Florida Statutes. Effective January 1, 1996, 

GTE was relieved of the regulatory processes we know as rate of return regulation 

and was allowed to price its services without regard to service performance or 

earnings of the company. 

What is the significance of the PSC’s service rules in a price cap regulatory 

environment as opposed to a rate of return environment? 

Under the prior rate of return regulatory environment, GTE was allowed to price its 

services to produce total revenues sufficient to provide a reasonable return on the 

investment made by the company. This regulatory process required the FPSC to 

continually monitor the revenues, expenses and earnings of the company to ensure 

that the rates charged to customers were fair and reasonable. The Commission was 

also obligated to ensure that customers received satisfactory levels of service as part 

of the PSC regulatory oversight. As part of rate case proceedings, the Commission 

would schedule service hearings in the operating territory of the company for the 

purpose of determining if the quality of service was satisfactory. Thus, the threat of 

3 
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regulatory action in the determination of rates of return on investment was a powerful 

motivator for the companies to meet the standards of service that have been adopted 

by the PSC in past years. 

1 

2 

3 

4 

In a price cap mode, the power of the commission to reward good service with higher 

earnings or to penalize bad service with lower earnings is eliminated. The only 

method the Commission can use to ensure that the quality of service meets the 

minimum standards established by the PSC is to fine the company for willful 

violation of its rules. 

Please identify the specific rules the company has violated in respect to 

installation and repair service. 

The company has violated Florida PSC rule 25-4.066 as it relates to installation 

service and PSC rule 25-4.070(3)(a) as it relates to repair of out of service troubles 

reported by customers. It is important for the Commission to recognize that even 

though the Florida Statutes adopted price cap regulation for incumbent LECs starting 

January 1, 1999, the legislature retained FPSC regulatory oversight over service 

quality both for the new competitive local exchange companies and the LECs such 

as GTE. 
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The statutes provided the commission exclusive jurisdiction in order to protect the 

public health, safety, and welfare by ensuring that monopoly services provided by 

telecommdcations companies continued to be subject to effective price, rate, and 

service regulation. (Section 364.01, F.S., 1998) The legislature further directed that 

the term “service” be construed in its broadest and most inclusive sense. (Section 

364.02(1 I), F.S., 1999) 
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Please summarize the PSC’s installation service rules. 

The Florida PSC rule, 25-4.066, requires telephone companies to install primary 

residential and business service within three days, where facilities are readily 

available. The performance benchmark stated in the rules requires the company to 

install at least 90% of its orders for primary service within three days on a monthly 

basis for each exchange in which the company operates. GTE has 24 exchanges in 

Florida and, therefore, it must comply with the requirements of the rule in each of its 

24 exchanges, calculated separately, on a monthly basis. 

Please summarize the PSC’s repair service rules. 

The PSC rule relating to repair service, 25-4.070(3)(a), requires that the company 

repair telephone service that is reported by the customer to be out of service (unable 

to make outgoing or receive incoming calls) to be repaired within 24 hours, as 

measured on an exchange by exchange basis, per month for each of the 24 GTE 

exchanges. The rules recognize that temporary overloads may occur, therefore the 

company is required to complete 95% of its out of service troubles within the 24 hour 

time frame. The company is also exempted from the rule when it encounters 

emergency conditions where more than 10% ofthe exchange lines are affected, when 

customer action is responsible for the outage, and when the trouble is determined to 

be beyond the network interface in either inside wiring or equipment. Closely related 

to the out of service rule is the rule that applies to service affecting troubles. If the 

telephone service is working, but subject to a service affecting trouble, such as static, 

the company is required to repair the trouble report within 72 hours. The rule is 

important because the same work forces that engage in repair of out of service 

troubles also repair the service affecting troubles. 

What is the significance of the PSC’s rules regarding installation of primary 
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senrice and repair of out of service trouble reports? 

These two rules govern the activities of a majority of the GTE work forces that are 

employed in Florida and many others that are located elsewhere. The installation 

process requires extensive investment and personnel, working together to ensure that 

facilities and work forces are readily available to install new telephone service in a 

timely manner when requested by the customer. The same is true when the customer 

reports a trouble. Timely installation of service and prompt repair are the two most 

important expectations of the customer, and it follows that these two major activities 

trigger the largest amount of company expense. Florida’s service rules recognize the 

importance that Floridian’s place on the need for reliable and readily available 

communications services. 

Why is it important that Florida customers receive installation and repair 

service that meets or exceeds the PSC service standards? 

The most important reason is that the customers are paying for the quality of service 

that is spelled out clearly in the PSC’s installation and repair rules. These same 

measurements have been in place in the FPSC rules since the 1960’s, and in other 

form before that. Multi-million dollar budgets revolve around the delivery of 

installation and repair service that is assumed to be designed to meet the minimum 

standards established by the PSC. Florida telephone rates are based on the 

assumption and expectation that primary service will be installed in three days and 

an outage will be repaired in 24 hours. If these measurements were not important, 

the PSC could have established a lesser standard many, many years ago, reduced the 

expenses of the companies and reduced the prices customers were paying for basic 

service. 
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The bottom line is that the Florida PSC and Floridians place a high value on quality 

of telephone service and the rates we pay reflect that expectation. The prices and 

earnings established by the PSC for Florida’s telephone companies are hinged 

directly on the assumption that the quality of service delivered to Florida customers 

will meet the minimum standards of the PSC. If it is no longer important that these 

standards be met, then consumers should get refimds and lower rates reflective of 

lower standards and lower costs. 

Please summarize the rule violations committed by GTE regarding the 

Commission’s installation rule since January 1,1996. 

GTE violated the PSC’s installation rule 26 times in 1996, 13 times in 1997, 18 

times in 1998 and 147 times in 1999 for a total of 204 violations during the four year 

period. 

Please summarize the rule violations committed by GTE regarding the 

Commission’s repair rule since January 1,1996. 

GTE has violated the PSC’s out of service repair rule 179 times in 1996, 124 times 

in 1997, 164 times in 1998 and 102 times in 1999 for a total of 569 violations during 

the four year period. 

Did your service review include the results of any of the periodic service audits 

performed by the PSC staff? 

While I have generally reviewed each of the service audits as they are released, I have 

not used the results of those audits in reaching my conclusions regarding the overall 

service quality performance of GTE. The periodic audits are best used as a process 

to validate the company’s procedures and to ensure that company practices are 

consistent with commission rules in the processing of orders, trouble reports, refunds, 

etc. 
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Please provide an overview of the conditions of GTE’s facilities that are used t o  

provide service to its customers. 

In recent years, GTE has allowed its outside plant facilities to deteriorate to the 

extent that today they are highly susceptible to weather phenomena. The company’s 

installation and repair results are failing to meet the PSC’s expectations because of 

high trouble loads due to poor quality in construction and repair, improper bonding 

and grounding of its facilities, temporary plant closures, and a host of other problems 

that are symptomatic of a network that has been allowed to deteriorate over an 

extended period of time. Excessive reductions in capital and labor expenses have 

been directed by GTE’s company headquarters in recent years that could have only 

been made with the short term goal of increasing profits. GTE is now paying for its 

past failures to properly maintain and modernize its network facilities. While this 

Docket was originated due to the apparent violations of the PSC’s service rules, our 

discovery actually reveals that GTE is also in violation of PSC Rule 25-4.069 which 

states, “Each telecommunications company shall adopt and pursue a maintenance 

program aimed at achieving efficient operation of its system so as to permit the 

rendering of safe, adequate, and continuous service at all times.” 

Why should the Commission fine the company for violating the installation and 

repair rules? 

20 A. 

21 

22 

23 

24 improve profits. 

25 

GTE has continually violated the PSC service rules since 1996 and the violations 

were willful. The key points I would make regarding the issue of willfulness are: 

1. 

2. 

Senior management was fully aware of the service violations. 

The company’s preventive maintenance efforts were sacrificed in order to 

3. Service quality was sacrificed in order to meet the profit goals and 
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3 that GTE acted willfully. 

Q. Please discuss each of the points the Commission should consider in determining 
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GTE was hlly aware of service deterioration that was created when GTE chose 

budget and profit priorities over its service obligations. The increasing network 

report rate that started rising in early 1997 (Exhibit REP-1) shows clearly that the 

company’s network facilities were in decline and highly subject to weather 

phenomena starting early 1997. 

What is the significance of the report rate shown on the exhibit? 

The report rate is generally reflective of the quality of the outside plant 

maintenance effort and the impact of the weather. The failure to replace 

deteriorating outside plant facilities makes the network more susceptible to weather ~ 

phenomena, and it is more difficult for a company to meet its service obligations 

when trouble volumes are rising to insurmountable levels during the bad weather 

that is a natural and continuing event in Florida. 

Q. Was higher management aware that the budgetary process was 

shortcircuiting the company’s requirement to meet the PSC objectives? 

A. GTE’s decline in service quality and violations of the PSC rules have always been 

well understood by GTE top management. It’s difficult not to be fully aware of these 

problems. The question is whether you are willing to do anything about it. 

The Commission need look no further than the company’s own statements. On May 

1, 1998, the Florida President, Peter Daks, wrote to his boss in GTE Headquarters, 
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John Ferrell, regarding the Florida measurements that the company was failing 

to meet. Mr. Daks outlines all of the steps the company is taking to meet the trouble 

loads they were faced with. And then he states: 

“There has also been a need to balance cost and quality, which again has 

forced this region to make decisions on prioritizing activities.” (Exhibit 

- 

REP-2) (Bold face, underlining added) 

This clearly shows the problem Peter Daks was facing ... compliance with the budget 

or meeting the PSC service rules. GTE Headquarters budget priorities were 

hamstringing the Florida operations ability to meet PSC objectives while the 

company was in the process of accumulating the 182 rule violations it experienced 

in 1998. It wasn’t until after this docket was initiated that the GTE head of Network 

Operations, John Appel, told the Florida Region in late 1999 that meeting the PSC 

objectives was non-optional. 

Obviously, GTE Florida Region management has no choice but to follow the dictates 

of its company headquarters operation. GTE Operations i s  in control and determines 

the budget and level of service provided by the GTE Florida Region. The corporate 

solution appears to be not to comply, but to change the rules. 

When John Appel brought up the problem of the Florida PSC misses to M.L. “Red” 

Keith in April of 1998, one of the responses was provided by Brad Krall, who said: 

“The only Real answer to this issue is to change the Regulation in Florid a...” 

(Exhibit REP-3) 

- 

GTE has actually been advocating less stringent service standards since 1996. Peter 
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Daks, the Regional President in charge of Florida operations stated clearly in a letter 

to company headquarters on May 13, 1996 that GTE was “working with BellSouth 

and other major LECs lo advocate to the Florida Commission revisions to current 

service rules”. Mr. Daks characterized the goal as “movement to fewer objectives 

and less rigid standards . . . 

(Exhibit REP-4). 

,‘ 

Rather than to make a firm corporate commitment to meet the PSC rules, GTE chose 

to advocate less stringent service standards, which would automatically increase the 

profits they were taking out of Florida and reduce the quality of service for Florida 

customers. 

What is the second point the Commission should consider? 

THE COMPANY’S PREVENTIVE MAINTENANCE EFFORTS WERE 

SACRIFICED IN ORDER TO IMPROVE PROFITS: 

Has GTE spent too little on preventive maintenance? 

Here again, the commission need look no further than GTE’s own words. On 

January 7, 1998, Peter Daks wrote to M.L. Keith at company headquarters regarding 

the service emergency they had declared in Tampa due to rainfall. Daks shows the 

connection between the report rate and GTE’s primary preventive maintenance 

program--TAC Focus: 

“I know my continued position on this subject may not be popular, but the 

TAC Focus program presently in place, by itselc, does not have sufficient in- 

depth analysis to provide the maintenance program that we need to fix areas 

like St. Petersburg and Clearwater. We have got to identify those outside 

plant issues and find the dollars to fix outside plant and prevent the amount 

11 
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of trouble that we have experienced this year in the future. This is affecting 

our ability to deliver quality and cost objectives.” (Exhibit REP-5) 

The company budgetary constraints have failed to provide the necessary ongoing 

effort needed to meet the service expectations of the PSC. The company has simply 

failed to spend the necessary dollars to keep ahead of the ongoing deterioration of its 

extensive outside plant facilities. 

The significance of the close correlation of network report rates and capital 

expenditures for defective plant replacement can be more fully appreciated by a chart 

prepared for GTE top management in October 1998, about the time they were 

finalizing the 1999 budget. The chart demonstrates the close conelation between 

expenditures for preventive maintenance and the number of customer trouble reports. 

- 

It shows the following: 

YEAR REPORT RATE DOLLARS SPENT* 

1990 2.3 

1991 2.0 

$24.1 M 

21.3 M 

1992 1.7 10.0 M 

1993 1.8 5.2 M 

1994 1.8 4.1 M 

1995 1.6 5.8 M 

1996 1.8 7.4 M 

1997 1.9 5.4 M 

1998 2.2 5.0 M 

*Annual Capital Expenditures--Defective Outside Plant 

(Exhibit REP-6) 
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The trouble rate declined significantly from 1990 through the end of 1992 when GTE 

was spending an average of $18.4 million annually to replace defective outside plant. 

When those expenditures stopped, the report rate first stopped declining, and by 1998 

it was back up to the 1990 level. This was the point Peter Daks was trying to make 

to GTE Headquarters. By replacing defective plant before it generated trouble 

reports, the company would have been better able to handle the trouble loads during 

heavy rains and meet the PSC objectives. It’s just like changing the oil in you car. 

You either change out the bad oil or wait until the engine blows. GTE willfully 

chose to curtail its expenditures for replacement of defective outside plant and the 

company willfidly violated the rules of this commission. 

Peter Daks was the president of GTE operations in Florida. His opinions were 

unpopular because he wanted the company to spend more money on preventive 

maintenance in 1998. Not only did GTE spend less money on preventive 

maintenance in Florida in 1998 that it did in 1997, but it also replaced Peter Daks 

with John Ferrell. 

What about the excessive levels of lightning and rainfall that the company has 

blamed for its failures? 

GTE dwells on the correlation between rainfall, lightning strikes, and trouble reports 

in its reports to the Commission. Since Tampa Bay is well known as the 

thunderstorm capital of the world, it should come as no great surprise to a company 

that should have anticipated the norm -- high thunderstorm activity, heavy 

rains and associated lightning (Exhibit REP-7). 

The weather conditions in Tampa Bay also include the saltwater corrosive problems 
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6 1  
associated with coastal communities. These factors should have been considered 

over many years as the company placed ongoing priorities for such activities as: 

A. 

B. 

C. replacement of defective cable, 

D. 

E. 

Unfortunately, these areas continue to be a problem for the company. Which 

explains why troubles are so high during heavy rains and thunderstorms. 

But aren’t factors such as lightning beyond the company’s control? 

The company can’t stop lightning, but it can take measures to mitigate its impact. 

The company knows its service temtory is centered in the lightning capital of the 

copper cable replacement with fiber cable, 

replacement of air-filled cable and lead cable with jelly-filled cable, 

elimination of “soft wraps”, and 

high emphasis on bonding and grounding. 

~ 

world--Tampa Bay. Lightning can be a huge problem if you have failed to take 

adequate measures to protect yourself against it. Proper bonding and grounding 

requires employee training and funding. GTE Florida should be the industry leader 

in lightning protection, but the company’s records do not support that assumption. 

Is GTE’s lightning protection adequate? 

No. The company admits that it has a bonding problem. Every homeowner knows 

the importance of bonding and grounding around the home. Its even more important 

In the telephone network that’s full of copper and electronics. I am shocked that a 

study presented to upper management in June, 1998 showed that 61 percent of the 

cross boxes they had studied had inadequate grounding. (A cross box is usually that 

big green rectangular box you drive by on the way out of your subdivision. It’s 

where all of the wires to individual homes or apartments come together to reach the 

main cable). 

14 
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A. 

The study identified 327 cross boxes with potential grounding problems and 

at the time of the report, the company had taken corrective action with only 

57 of the 327 cross boxes (Exhibit REP-8). 

It is mind-boggling to think that the company could allow its preventive maintenance 

program to deteriorate to the extent that as recently as 1998 they had significant 

problems in bonding and grounding of their facilities. It is no wonder that increased 

lightning strikes are attributed to an increase in trouble reports when their facilities 

are not grounded. The companies like to call lightning an “act of God”, but failure 

to properly bond and ground their facilities can only be attributed to the acts of some 

humans at GTE. 

Are there other indications that the company’s maintenance efforts are lacking? 

Yes. For instance, the June 22, 1998 Operational Review Report (Exhibit REP-9) 

contains this statement: “deterioration of OSP (outside planr) never stops”. This 

chart was explaining how much work the preventive maintenance program has 

accomplished, but the author points out that they had analyzed less than one percent 

of the company’s cables, and also pointed out that only one-third of the problems 

identified were being addressed. 

In the same presentation the author reveals that company employees have been 

encouraged to report unsatisfactory plant conditions to help get the employees more 

involved in the preventive maintenance program. The employees generated 1,306 

reports, 238 were completed and 1,016 were still in the pipeline. Budgetary 

constraints are obviously hurting the maintenance effort at GTE (Exhibit REP-10). 

15 
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Although the company planned to spend $5.3 million on defective plant in 1998, one 

document showed they only spent $2.6 million (Exhibit REP-I 1). GTE projected 

that if they spent $7.8 million in 1999 it would eliminate 18,000 dispatches. The final 

budget in 1999 showed that the new plan was to spend $4.4 million and reduce the 

number of dispatches by 32,000. Since data from late 1999 indicates that the 

company is still having problems implementing an effective defective plant 
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replacement program (TAC Focus), it’s doubtful in my mind that either projection 

actually materialized 

What is the third point the Commission should consider? 

~ SERVICE QUALITY WAS SACRIFICED IN ORDER TO MEET THE 

PROFIT GOALS AND COMPETITIVE STRATEGIES DICTATED BY GTE 

HEADQUARTERS: 

The problem with the company’s hudgct process is that the starting point in 

developing the budget was an existing workforce that was unable to cope with repair 

and installation loads in 1997 and 1998. Nowhere in this budget process do we see 

adjustments or mention of the need to implement a plan to provide service to satisfy 

the rules of the PSC. The company knew it was violating the PSC rules when it 

assembled the 1998 and 1999 budgets and failed to do anything about it. That’s 

willfill. 

Why were the company’s violations of the installation and repair rules willful? 

I’ve already-given you the first good example about GTE’s willfully reducing the 

budget for defective plant repacement. The choices of profit over GTE’s service 

obligations are made every day in the company. My review of the documents 

provided by the company provides clear evidence that local management has little 

16 
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control in the decision-making process that establishes the total budget. 

GTE’s basic budget assumptions place profits ahead of service obligations. The 

assumptions budget planners were required to use made it impossible for the field 

forces to meet service objectives and stay within the budget. For instance, GTE 

forecasts the expected hours needed to install or repair service. The forecast used 

to establish the 1997 budget states that GTE expected to spend 2.173 hours for each 

installation, or 1.685 hours for each repair (Exhibit REP-12). The GTE Florida 

installation and repair forces were never able to meet the productivity forecast for 

either installation or repair b c t i o n  for any month during the entire year during 

1997. With such inaccurate basic inputs to the budget process, it is no wonder that 

Florida operations were forced to choose between the budget and service, month after 

- 13 month, year after year. 

14 Q. Are earnings more important than service to GTE? 

15 A. 

16 

17 

l a  

19 

GTE’s budgeting process appears to be clearly managed more toward achievement 

of earnings goals rather than toward meeting service obligations. A good example 

of this process is shown on two charts (Exhibit REP13). The first chart is the 

forecasted actual expense on a monthly basis for 1997. The following chart shows 

the service performance for 1997. Except for June, GTE provided superior 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

installation and repair service during the first half of 1997. Actual expenses tracked 

almost perfectly with the monthly forecast, and at mid-year expenses were slightly 

below the forecast and service was O.K. 

During the second half of 1997, actual expenses also tracked the forecasted expenses 

very closely, except during December when floods, storms, and a s e r v i c e 
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emergency drove the year end budget over the actual forecast by less than % of one 

percent ($528K overage). 

GTE Florida basically held tight to its budgetary commitment to headquarters in 1997 

while service performance was allowed to deteriorate during the last six months of 

the year. The company failed to meet the PSC standard for repair 106 times during 

that six-month time period. 

Except for December, 1997, the company held to the budget while it allowed service 

to deteriorate . It is difficult to imagine that the company was not aware of the 

choices it was making throughout 1997 to place profit expectations before its service 

obligations. 

What about the 1998 budget? 

The same problems can be seen in 1998 as 1997. The company was experiencing 

substantial failures in meeting its service obligations in Florida. GTE Headquarters 

was pushing for a nationwide budget reduction of $102 million and the Florida 

Region was told to implement a $7-9 million cost reduction program, even though 

the company was repeatedly failing to provide the service required by the 

Commission rules. (Exhibit REP-14) 

The exhibit shows that the 1998 budget was set at almost the same base level as the 

1997 budget, thus erasing the 8% forecast for growth and inflation ($1 1,823,000). 

What about the 1999 budget? 

In the face of a report rate that had risen to unacceptable levels in 1998, and failures 

to meet the PSC installation and repair standards, the company again cut its budget 

18 



1 

2 

3 

A 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

- 10 

11 
I 

12 

13 

14 

15 
- 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

6 6  
for Florida operations. The target budget for GTE‘s 1999 operations was $139.4 

million, $5 million less than they actually spent in 1997. (Exhtbit REP-15) ?he 1999 

budget and force reductions reduced the company’s ability to meet the PSC service 

objectives, according to Richard Pelham, General Manager-Network Reliability 

(Exhibit REP-16). 

The 1999 budget established the authorized headcount of employees for Florida at 

3419 employees. (Exhibit REP-17) The year end 1998 budgeted headcount was 

3569 employees, a reduction of 150 employees. (Exhibit REP-18) 

The GTE Headquarters plans for growth and modernization included a 1999 budget 

cut of $144 million nationwide and the loss of 109 Florida employees, plus 50 

Florida contract employees. In January 1999, GTE announced an incentive 

retirement program for Network employees to accomplish its targeted reductions. 

In addition to expense cuts, GTE Headquarters slashed the 1999 capital spending 

program for Florida 46.1% below the 1998 level. (Exhibit REP-19) This was an 

important decision from a planning standpoint since staffing decisions include both 

capital spending and expense projections. After Florida spent 47.8% of its total 1999 

capital spending budget in the first quarter of 1999, GTE Headquarters begrudgingly 

increased Florida’s capital expense for 1999 by $14.6 million on May 14, bringing 

the total capital program to $132.8 million, a mere 40% below the 1998 total. 

To GTE Florida’s credit, there is evidence of complaints about GTE Headquarters 

budget-chopping process. On April 20, 1999, Russ Diamond wrote to Chuck 
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Lindner at GTE Headquarters stating, “I am very concerned about the Florida 

spending levels through March (47.8% of the total for the entire year) .... I am also 

concerned over the 1998 to 1999 reduction Florida is trying to achieve as compared 

to the other regions (46.1% vs. 20.9%) Given the growth and inward activity in 

Florida, this does not seem in line.” (Exhibit REP-20) After the May adjustment, 

Lindner advised GTE Florida there would be no further additions to the budget 

during the year, barring exceptional growth. 

How do the company’s competitive strategies impact GTE’s ability to meet the 

PSC’s installation and repair strategies? 

The GTE strategy as stated by President Daks was to “exercise cost controls 

directing our focus on the extremely competitive markets”. I interpret this to mean 

that in those exchanges where competition was not active and where customers had 

no competitive choices that they would receive a lesser grade of service. 

Does GTE actually have a strategy to select service areas for preferential 

treatment in the installation and repair of basic service? 

Yes. The company targets each market--wholesale, retail, business, residence, 

special services-for preferential service based on the competitive status for each 

market. For example, business customers receive installation and repair service 

based on three different classifications--Extremely Competitive, Highly Competitive 

and Moderately Competitive. Business receives better installation and repair service 

than residence. Residence customers in Extremely Competitive areas receive better 

service than Moderately Competitive areas. This is a GTE Headquarters plan. It is 

no small wonder that the company has problems in complying with PSC regulations 

that are intended to provide quality service for all (Exhibit REP-21). 
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The PSC rules state that “each telecomnmnications company shall make all 

reasonable efforts to minimize the extent and duration of trouble conditions that 

disrupt or affect customer telephone service.” That statement applies to all customers 

and to fail to process trouble reports and installation appointments on a first come, 

first serve basis is not only discriminatory, but it may also be more inefficient. 

GTE’s competitive strategies for installation and repair performance most certainly 

divert the attention of the service organization from compliance with the PSC 

standards for installation and repair. 

What was the position of GTE higher management after the Show Cause order 

was released by the PSC? 

After hearing news of the PSC report, M.L. Keith advised John Ferrell, the new 

Florida President who replaced Peter Daks, that JCA’s (John Appel-head of 

nationwide network operations for GTE) expectations were that PUC measures are 

not the measures to be traded off--he considers this to be the baseline performance 

required. He told Florida GTE to immediately bring PUC performance back in line. 

Amazingly, the results in Florida improved dramatically in the last two months of 

17 

l a  

19 

1999. The company missed the installation rule in only 3 of its 24 exchanges in 

November and it had no failures in December. GTE did not experience any rule 

violations in meeting the repair rule in either November or December. This 

20 

21 

22 Q. 

23 

24 A. 

25 

demonstrates the company can meet the PSC quality of service requirements when 

it decides to do so and when GTE Headquarters-tells them to do it. 

What is the appropriate fine that should he levied against the company for its 

willful rule violations since January 1,1996? 

The commission should fine the company a total of $19, 325,000, or $25,000 for 

each violation of PSC rules that was willfully committed by the company between 

.~ 
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January 1, 1996 and December 31, 1999. GTE violated the PSC rules 773 times 

during the four year period and the recommended fine is the maximum fine that can 

be levied by the FPSC. The maximum fine should be levied against the company 

because the company’s budgetary actions were taken with full knowledgr that GTE 

Florida was consistently violating the rules of the PSC. Adequate measures were not 

taken by the company until the presidential mandate was handed down in late 1999. 

The company’s budget reductions ($13 million in 1999 alone) were implemented 

without regard to compliance with the PSC rules. A $19.3 million fine would not be 

commensurate with the economic advantage gained by the company as it 

intentionally milked the Florida cash cow for as much profit as it could squeeze out 

over the past four years, even as it was failing to meet its service obligations to 

Florida citizens on a daily basis. While the Florida Statutes limit the fine to $19.3 

million, Florida customers have lost far more by not receiving the quality of service 

for which they were paying. 

Q. Please summarize your testimony. 

A. In essence, GTE has the revenues, the earnings and the obligation to provide quality 

telephone service in the State of Florida. That what GTE’s customers are paying for. 

Whether GTE provides good service in the future depends on the PSC’s diligence in 

enforcing its service rules and the priorities established within GTE. Ultimately, 

local management should not be required to choose between profits and service as 

they have been required to do in the past. The Commission should fine the company 

by the maximum amount to drive home the point to GTE and all other like 

companies the financial risk they incur in Florida when they choose profits ahead of 

their obligations to serve. 
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!Y MR. BECK: 
Q 
A Yes, I do. 
Q 
A 

Mr. Poucher, do you have a summary of your testimony? 

Would you please provide it? 
Commissioners, during the time period of this docket, 

lerizon consistently violated the rules of the Commission with 
-egard to installation of new service and the repair of out o f  

service. Verizon violated your rule 773 times during the 
Four-year period. Verizon committed 249 violations in 1999, 

Mhich represents their worst performance during the four-year 
ieriod. 

The majority of Verizon's expenses revolve around the 
jelivery of installation and repair service. The majority of 
their employees are located - -  that are located in Florida are 
jirectly engaged in activities that determine the speed which 
the company is able to install service and repair it. 

The budgetary i sues surrounding the company's 
installation and repair service are highly significant to 
derizon in terms of the company's overall profitability. 
Timely installation of new service and the repair of service 
iutages are the most important expectations that customers have 
2f telephone companies. 

This Commission's service rules recognize the 
importance that Florideans place on the need for reliable and 
readi 1 y avai 1 ab1 e telecommunications services . Because Veri zon 
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is no longer influenced by rate of return regulation, it 
follows that since January 1st .  1996, this Commission has 
lost a powerful enforcement mechanism that's been used in 
the past and that's motivated the companies to comply with 
your regulations or be penalized in rate of return 
proceedings . 

The Commission's only recourse today to ensure 
compliance is to resort to those rules that allow you to fine 
the companies for willful violations of your rules. 
repeated and continued violations, Verizon failed to take the 
steps necessary over a four-year period to comply. The 
company's failure to take action can only be considered to be 
willful. 

Despite 

The Commission should consider that Verizon's senior 
management was fully aware of these violations. The Commission 
should take notice that the company's preventive maintenance 
efforts were sacrificed during this period of time, service 
results were a1 lowed to deteriorate, thus, reducing expense and 
i mprovi ng prof i ts . 

Verizon's continued pursuit of budget-cutting 
strategies left the company with a head count of permanent 
employees that were significantly below the budget and 
incapable of providing service performance that was in 
compl i ance with your rules . 

II 
Following the initiation of this docket in November 
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'our rules. This demonstrates t h a t  the company has the a b i l i t y  

o comply w i t h  your rules when and i f  i t  determines t h a t  
ervice will be the highest priority. 

Because of these repeated w i  11 ful v i  01 a t i  ons , we 
mecommend a fine of $19,325,000, which is  the maximum amount as 
I deterrent against future violations of this type. Verizon 
ias the revenues, they have the earnings, they have the 
Ibligation t o  provide qual i ty  service i n  the state of Florida. 
' h a t ' s  what  Verizon's customers are paying for, and the 
liligence of this Commission i n  enforcing your rules will 

letermine whether or not Verizon places service as the top 
riority i n  the future or whether other company goals will take 
recedence. 

That  completes by summary. 
MR. BECK: Mr. Poucher i s  available for cross 

!xami nat i  on. 
CHAIRMAN JACOBS: 

MR. FORDHAM: Commissioner, I t h i n k ,  Verizon would - -  
CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Since your positions are i n  l ine 

i i t h  Mr. Poucher's posit ion,  I was going t o  allow you t o  go 

First and then have the company go after. 
{our preference be t o  go f irst? 

Staf f ,  did you have any cross? 

Ms. Caswell , would 

MS. CASWELL: Yes. s i r .  
CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Very well. Go ahead. 
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CROSS EXAMINATION 

3Y MS. CASWELL: 

Q M r .  Poucher, we're going t o  begin w i th  a chart that  

Ir. Christ ian's passing out r i g h t  now. 

'ew moments t o  look a t  tha t  chart.  

I ' d  l i k e  you t o  take a 

A 

Q 

Ma'am, what do you want me t o  do w i th  it? 

This i s  a chart on the actual number o f  repairs met 

(long w i th  percentages i n  the years a t  issue. 

MR. BECK: I ' m  going t o  object. This hasn't been - - 
;here's no foundation l a i d  fo r  t h i s  exhib i t .  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Ms. Caswel 1 . 
MS. CASWELL: A l l  o f  t h i s  information came from 

'erizon's quarter ly reports and, I believe, the number o f  

*epairs was produced i n  discovery over a number o f  documents. 

: f M r .  Beck would l i k e ,  we can spend some time t r y i n g  t o  f i nd  

:hose documents, we can proceed w i th  the cross and - - 
MR. BECK: No, I object. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: I ' m  sorry, go ahead. 

MR. BECK: I do object. They had p lenty  o f  

)pportunity t o  present t h i s  by t h e i r  own witnesses, i f  they 

:hoose to.  

ihown t o  the witness before, then there 's  no foundation fo r  it. 

MS. CASWELL: Well, again, a l l  o f  the information was 

They come i n  w i th  a new document tha t  hasn't been 

roduced i n  discovery. I f  M r .  Beck would l i k e  the foundation, 

: can d ig  up a l l  the documents tha t  he has seen and tha t  h is  
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ditness has seen. Again, these percentages come st ra ight  from 

the quarter ly reports given t o  the Commission, which are publ ic 

record, and they're i n  the record. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Well, your l a t i t ude  on cross i s  

f a i r l y  broad and so, I think,  t o  tha t  extent, the opportunity 

to present t h i s  on cross i s  a fa i r l y  broad one. However, what 

I hear the objection t o  be i s  tha t  t h i s  witness's expertise i s  

not - -  t o  t e s t i f y  t o  these numbers and t o  t h i s  chart has not 

aeen established. Therefore, i f  I ' m  not - -  l e t  me not speak 

for you; t ha t ' s  the basis o f  your objection? 

MR. BECK: My objection i s  t h i s  i s  a brand new 

document, i t  hasn't been shown t o  the witness before. 

have been appropriate f o r  the company t o  have sponsored an 

i x h i b i t  l i k e  t h i s  by one o f  i t s  own witnesses, i f  they d id  the 

compilations. These weren't compilations by M r .  Poucher, these 

are by the company. 

It would 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS : Right . 
MR. BECK: I f  they wanted t o  put i t  in ,  they should 

have had t h e i r  witness sponsor it. They have brand new 

calculations w i th  - -  
CHAIRMAN JACOBS: We're not discussing whether or not 

i t ' s  being entered i n t o  the record. I don ' t  th ink  you've asked 

fo r  i t  t o  be marked, have you? 

MS. CASWELL: No. I ' m  going t o  ask fo r  i t  t o  be 

marked. It i s  a new document, but i t ' s  j u s t  a compilation o f  
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information that's in the public - -  
CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Okay. Let's not move - -  in my 

mind, that's a separate question. Whether or not you can move 
this document in, based on this witness's testimony, is a 
different question all together from whether or not you can 
question this witness as to the content of this document. 

MS. CASWELL: Okay. 
CHAIRMAN JACOBS: If this witness has knowledge or 

expertise as to this and that's established and, I think, 
that's the first basis of the objection that you haven't 
established that he has knowledge or expertise as to these 
numbers, then on cross, I think, you can question as to this. 

Then, we get to the question later as to whether or 
not you can enter this into the record based on this witness's 
testimony. At that point we may have to deal with whether or 
not you bring it with this witness or you sponsor it with your 
witness. 

I do echo the concern, however, that normally if 
you're going to do that with a witness on cross, it is proper 
to give advance notice of that. So, for the moment, then we're 
at the point of determining whether or not this witness has any 
expertise or knowledge by which you can cross examine him on 
this docket. 

MS. CASWELL: Okay. 
CHAIRMAN JACOBS: I'll allow you to establish that 
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'oundation. 

;Y MS. CASWELL: 

Q Okay. Mr. Poucher, I ' m  not asking you t o  v e r i f y  the 

ccuracy o f  any of the numbers on t h i s  chart, am I ?  

A You want me t o  v e r i f y  the accuracy? 

Q No, I ' m  not asking you t o  do that ,  am I? 

A Not yet ,  but i n  response, I would t e l l  you tha t  I 

lon't know anything about these numbers, other than the fac t  

hat I do know tha t  there are numbers tha t  you f i l e d  w i th  your 

ua r te r l y  reports w i th  the Commission. And whether they add up 

o these numbers o r  whether you even add them up i n  your 

eports, I ' m  not sure. 

Q Right, so I ' m  not asking you t o  v e r i f y  the accuracy 

the numbers, correct? 

A You haven't yet .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Ms. Caswell, l e t  me ask the 

luestion. Okay. I don' t  know i f  these numbers are accurate or 

lot e i ther,  and I don' t  know i f  you plan t o  t r y  t o  v e r i f y  these 

lumbers but. I guess, my question goes t o  a broader - -  a t  a 

lroader leve l .  Just assuming tha t  these numbers are correct, 

t shows tha t  over a four-year period, based on companywide 

lnnual data, you missed the standards. The standard i s  95%, 

:orrect? 

MS. CASWELL: Correct. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: So, even on a - -  on an annual 
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lasis companywide fo r  a l l  exchanges, you s t i l l  missed the 

hreshold. So, I guess, my question i s  t h i s  seems t o  be 

ubstantiat ing publ ic counsel's case. 

MS. CASWELL: Well, I ' d  j u s t  l i k e  t o  ask him a couple 

luestions about it, i f  I can. 

Y MS. CASWELL: 

Q M r .  Poucher, you've t e s t i f i e d  tha t  Verizon missed the 

epair standard 209 times over a four-year - -  
A 

,ear you. 

Can you speak a l i t t l e  louder or clearer. I can ' t  

Q I ' m  sorry. You t e s t i f i e d  tha t  Verizon missed the 

epair standard 209 times over four years, correct? 

A I think,  t ha t ' s  co r - -  say tha t  again. No. 

Q How many times have you said tha t  Verizon missed the 

mepair standard over four years? 

A I think,  you're going t o  have t o  re fe r  me t o  the par t  

n the testimony where I said tha t .  

Q Okay. On Page 7. you ta lk  about the repai r  r u l e  - -  
' m  sorry, t ha t ' s  569 v io la t ions you're a l leg ing over four 

rears, correct? 

A Sounds a l i t t l e  closer. 

Q 569? 

A Yes, correct. I th ink,  t h a t ' s  correct. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: That's only f o r  - -  
THE WITNESS: Repair? 
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CHAIRMAN JACOBS: - - repairs only. There's another 

lumber fo r  i ns ta l  1 ations, I thought. 

IY MS. CASWELL: 

Q According t o  t h i s  chart,  looking a t  the bottom box, 

IOW many repairs t o t a l  did Verizon make over the four years? 

MR. BECK: I have the same objection. We don ' t  know 

.hese numbers are accurate. There's no foundation fo r  them. 

MS. CASWELL: Assuming the numbers are accurate. I ' m  

lot asking him t o  v e r i f y  t ha t  they are. 

A I think,  you could do the math - -  
CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Excuse me. Hold on a second, 

Ir. Poucher. There's an objection as t o  relevance. I s  tha t  

rhat I understood? 

MR. BECK: I t ' s  lack o f  foundation. Again, I assume 

:hat Verizon d i d  some calculat ions. 

:hem cor rec t ly  or  not. You know, Ms. Caswell gave him the 

rrong number for repairs saying i t  was 200 and it was 500. 

'hat 's my objection. There's no foundation f o r  these numbers. 

'hey wanted them i n ,  they should have had t h e i r  witness sponsor 

:hem. 

I don' t  know i f  they d i d  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Okay. Now, we're not ye t  t o  the 

pest ion o f  whether or  not t h i s  information comes i n t o  the 

.ecord, th is  document comes i n t o  the record. What we have now 

I S  a question, as I understand, from Ms. Caswell t o  the witness 

IS t o  h i s  knowledge o f  the basis o f  these numbers: i s  tha t  
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~ o r r e c t  , Ms. Caswel 1 ? 

MS. CASWELL: No, I ' m  not sure I put i t  t h a t  way. 

[ ' m  not asking Mr. Poucher t o  v e r i f y  the accuracy o f  the 

lumbers. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Then, restate your question, then, 

11 ease. 

3Y MS. CASWELL: 

Q I asked him what the chart says as t o  how many 

.epairs Verizon completed over four years. 

;o read the chart - -  
I ' m  j u s t  asking him 

A I ' m  reading - -  can I answer? Okay. I ' m  reading from 

{our chart. Nowhere i n  my testimony do I state tha t  the t o t a l  

lumber o f  repairs tha t  were handled by Verizon over the 

four-year period - -  t h a t ' s  not i n  my testimony. However, i f  

IOU want me t o  read t h i s  number, i t ' s  1,291,066 out o f  

1,427,420 over four years, and t h a t ' s  something, I ' m  not sure 

vhat t ha t  i s ,  but I would j u s t  estimate t h a t  t ha t  might be the 

total repairs that you handled over the four-year period, i f  

[ ' ve  interpreted your chart fa i r ly .  None o f  t h i s  data i s  i n  my 

testimony . 
Q I understand tha t .  And do you think a reasonable 

ierson would conclude tha t  569 misses, compared t o  over 1.4 

n i l l i o n  repairs made on time, indicates a serious problem i n  a 

Zompany del iberately disregarding the standard? 

MR. SHREVE: I have the same objection. 
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CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Sustained. The object ion 's  
ustained. 

THE WITNESS: I ' l l  answer i t .  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Your counsel objected t o  i t  and I 
'ustained your counsel ' s objection, so I suggest you probably 
lon't want t o  answer t h a t .  

THE WITNESS: Okay. 
NY MS. CASWELL: 

Q Okay. Mr. Poucher, i t ' s  your posit ion i n  this case, 
sn't i t ,  t h a t  each and every time Verizon missed the repair  
nd in s t a l l a t ion  standards over the four years a t  issue, each 

those misses was willful , regardless of why i t  happened, 
orrect?  

A I t h i n k ,  our testimony more - - t h a t ' s  not what our 
estimony says, but  I t h i n k  t h a t  our testimony basically says 
hat Verizon's performance over the four years,  i n  meeting the 
,omiss ion ' s  rules i n  t o t a l ,  produced rule violations on a 
.ontiwing basis.  And i t ' s  the t o t a l  performance of the 

.ompany t h a t  f a i l ed  and the customers of the s t a t e  o f  Florida 
iere penalized because of i t .  

Q Now, the Commission c a n ' t  fine Verizon for  violations 
inless they're wi l l fu l ,  correct? Would you agree w i t h  tha t?  

A We agree, wholeheartedly. 

Q And you've recommended t h a t  the Commission fine 
'erizon for  every single one of the 773 apparent violations;  is 
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that r igh t?  

A Correct. That's the only recourse tha t  t h i s  

:ommi ssion has. 

Q Right. And the conclusion t o  be drawn there i s  tha t  

2ach of the v io la t ions was w i l l f u l ,  i n  your opinion, correct, 

3 r  the Commission couldn't  f i ne  the company fo r  it? 

A Certainly. And I'll fur ther  explain that .  The 

uiolat ions tha t  we're t a l  k ing about are v io la t ions o f  service 

rules established by the Commission, well  -known t o  the company, 

and the company knows tha t  those standards are there. The fac t  

that they f a i l e d  t o  provide the resources t o  meet every one o f  

those ru le  requirements consti tutes w i  11 fu l  ness. 

Q Did you do any analysis o f  the circumstances 

surrounding each and every one o f  the misses? 

A No. 

Q Why not? 

A I don ' t  th ink  we had to .  That 's not the issue The 

issue i s  not whether you missed i t  i n  Myakka. The issue .J 

that you d i d n ' t  have enough resources t o  do the job fo r  Flor ida 

i n  a l l  o f  the exchanges tha t  you serve. 

Q Aren' t  the issues i n  t h i s  case framed i n  terms o f  how 

many w i l l f u l  v io la t ions there were? 

A Yes. 

Q Then, i s n ' t  the issue how many w i l l  f u l  v i o l  ations 

there were? 
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A Certainly. 

Q And wouldn't you need t o  have done an analysis o f  

!ach apparent v io la t i on  t o  determine whether i t  was w i l l f u l ?  

t th ink  tha t ' s  A We haven't done that,  and I don 

ieeded. 

Q Okay. A key element t o  your w i  l fu lness theory i s  

;hat Verizon l e t  i t s  outside p lan t  deteriorate t o  the po in t  

rhere i t  could not comply wi th  PSC's repair  and i n s t a l l a t i o n  

tandards: i s  t ha t  r i g h t ?  

A Say tha t  again. 

Q Your w i l l fu lness  theory rests  on the proposit ion that  

'erizon l e t  i t s  network deteriorate, f a i l e d  t o  perform 

revent ive maintenance t o  the point  where the company could not 

ieet the repai r  and i n s t a l l a t i o n  standards: i s  t ha t  r i g h t ?  

A I th ink,  y o u ' l l  f i n d  t h a t  i n  my testimony somewhere. 

Q Right. 

A Could you please - -  when you ask me questions, could 

rou please re fe r  t o  where I ' m  a t  i n  my testimony so I don' t  get 

:onfused? 

Q Okay. 

A But I th ink  t h a t ' s  correct, I don't th ink t h a t ' s  

irong . 
Q Okay. So, t o  make your case, you need t o  show the 

2xistence o f  t h a t  progressive network decline; would tha t  be 

-i ght? 
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A I d o n ' t  t h i n k  so a t  a l l .  

Q 
A I d o n ' t  t h i n k  t h a t  you are together. Explain your 

I'm sorry, d id  you answer? 

luestion a l i t t l e  b i t  longer. 
Q Okay. Part of your willfulness theory is  t h a t  the 

ompany let  i t s  network deteriorate and f a i l  t o  perform 
lreventive maintenance i n  disregard of the standards. Now, t o  
lrove t h a t  theory, you need t o  show the existence of the 
letwork deterioration, correct, and GTE's failure t o  correct 
ha t?  

A I t h i n k ,  we would have t o  demonstrate t h a t  there was 
eterioration of the network, t h a t  you d i d n ' t  have an adequate 
lreventive maintenance program and, I t h i n k ,  we've done t h a t .  

Q Okay. 

A You can't look any further t h a n  the letter of your 
lresident, t o  the president o f  Verizon, when he said t h a t  they 
leeded a way t o  provide an adequate funding for preventive 
aintenance for the TAC Focus program. 
eferred t o  t h a t .  That's probably the best demonstration t h a t  

'ou d id  not have an adequate preventive maintenance program i n  

11ace t o  do the job i n  Florida. 

I t h i n k ,  Mr. Beck 

Q And we will get t o  the documents, bu t  did you ever do 

,ny inspection of Verizon's plant t o  determine i t s  state over 
.he four years a t  issue? 

A Yes, I looked a t  i t .  
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Q When you say - -  
A In f a c t ,  we were there a couple - -  about a month ago, 

n Sarasota and Bradenton and we had a hearing down i n  one of 

:he older sections of t h a t  par t  of the exchange. There's a l o t  
If old plant i n  Tampa, i n  S t .  Petersburg. i n  Bradenton, 
iarasota, there's a l o t  of old plant i n  those exchanges. 

Q And so, i n  one instance,  you went and looked a t  some 
ilant and t h a t  would have been l a s t  month? 

A No, I 've been down there several times. 

Q And could you name when you've been there and what 
!xactly you've done w i t h  regard t o  inspecting Verizon's plant? 

A I took a t r i p  down about two years ago, took about 

.hree days, drove around a l l  of Clearwater, which is one of the 
,pots t h a t  Peter Daks said t h a t  they had t o  have a solution t o  
,olve the problem o f  S t .  Pete and Clearwater where everytime i t  

,ained they were d i lu ted  w i t h  trouble reports t h a t  they could 
lot handle. 

I went down and looked. However, you know, I t h i n k ,  

:he people - -  the documents t h a t  I quote i n  my testimony 
: lear ly  show t h a t  t h a t  was a problem. And those a re  Verizon 

locuments. That 's  not my opinion. And, I t h i n k ,  they should 
:arry more weight w i t h  the Commission than a visit by myself, 

in outsider,  who doesn' t know exactly what' s happening and 
{here i t ' s  a t .  

Q Okay. And we will ge t  t o  the documents, but I'm 
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;rying t o  understand the extent o f  your inspection o f  the 

I lant .  You said about two years ago. That would have been i n  

rhat, 1999 or 1998 - -  
A That time frame, yes. 

Q - -  you took a t r i p  for three days? Was tha t  t r i p  

ipec i f i ca l l y  t o  inspect Verizon's plant? 

A No, I was there fo r  another purpose. 

Q And what was the extent o f  your inspection? What 

ipec i f i c  things d id  you look a t ?  

A I looked a t  a l l  o f  the f a c i l i t i e s  from north o f  - -  
?om the beginning o f  your exchange a l l  the way down through 

ill o f  Clearwater. 

Q 

A C1 earwater, Dunedi n . 
Q 

What exchange was that ,  Clearwater? 

When you say a l l  o f  the f a c i l i t i e s ,  what do you mean 

)y a l l  the f a c i l i t i e s ,  every single piece o f  outside plant d id  

fou look a t?  

A No. I viewed aer ia l  p lant  a l l  over the exchange. 

Q 

A What? 

Q 

A Three days. 

Q 

And how long d id  you spend doing th is?  

How long d id  you spend doing these inspections? 

So, the f u l l  three days you were inspecting Verizon's 

)utside plant? 

A The major i ty  o f  the three days, yeah. 
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Q 
11 ant? 

A 

Why did you take that trip to inspect Verizon's 

I just wanted to see what it looked like. I didn't 
mow that I would find anything. 
{hen you look at a telephone pole. 

It's kind of hard to see much 

Q And that, again, was in 1999 or - -  
A Around that time, yes. 
Q 
A No, we would not normally, you know, contact your 

Did you speak to any Verizon personnel at the time? 

)eople and get them involved in a visit of that type. 
Q And there weren't any reports of results of that 

inspection in your testimony or el sewhere, were there? 
A No. 
Q And was that the only trip you took during the period 

If 1996 through 1999? 

A I've been down - -  I was raised in St. Petersburg, so 

:'ve been down a number of times, but not specifically to view 
lour plant. 

Q Okay. Let's look at the documents you've cited to 
;upport your theory of deterioration. One of the things you 
*epeatedly refer to is Verizon network trouble report rates. 
-et's look at Pages 12 to 13 of your testimony. And, I 
ielieve, you state that the report rate is generally reflective 
if the quality of the outside plant maintenance effort and the 
impact of the weather: is that right? 
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A 

Q 
A Okay. 
Q So, i n  your view, i f  the report  r a t e  is unduly h igh ,  

I wouldn't object t o  t h a t  characterization. 
I'm sorry,  t h a t ' s  on Page 9 a t  Lines 12 t o  13. 

it could be a sign of poor plant maintenance: is t h a t  r ight?  

A I t h i n k  t h a t  would be a good indication, t h a t  there 
ras poor pl ant maintenance. 

Q Okay. B u t  a high trouble report  r a t e  could a l so  
*eflect the effects of weather: is  t h a t  r ight? 

A Yeah, and t h a t ' s  the other impactor. And the worse 
tour plant i s ,  the more i t ' s  impacted by bad weather. 
:oday's tech- - 

In 

Q And what - -  
A Let me go on. 
Q Go ahead. 
A With today's technology, i f  you have modern plant,  

Fiber je l ly- f i l l ed  copper cable,  which is  the technology today. 
;he weather does not a f f ec t  you nearly a s  much, but i f  you have 
3 l o t  of  old cables i n  there t h a t  have holes i n  them t h a t  suck 
~p the water when it rains ,  then basical ly  your plant i s  going 
:o f a l l  apart  during bad weather, and i n  good weather you're 
joing t o  provide good service, which kind o f  explains the ups 
md downs of your performance a s  you go through the year. 

Q And what is  the process you use for  separating and 
quantifying the respective effects o f  bad plant and bad weather 
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on a given report rate? 

A I don't  th ink  you can separate those. They go 

together. 

Q Can't do that? I n  t h i s  case you've t o t a l l y  

discounted any e f fec ts  o f  weather on Verizon's plant:  i s  tha t  

r igh t?  

A Say tha t  again. 

Q I n  t h i s  case, you've advised the Commission not t o  

consider the e f fec ts  o f  whether on the plant; i s  tha t  correct? 

A You mean the numbers here i n  the testimony? Well, 

th is  came from a Verizon chart. 

Q I ' m  not sure what you're t a l k  

re fer r ing to? 

A Well, l e t  - -  I ' m  sorry. What 

said i n  t h i s  case? 

ng about. What are you 

d id  you mean when you 

Q Okay. I n  t h i s  case, you're advising the Commission 

not t o  excuse Verizon from compliance f o r  the resu l ts  because 

o f  any bad weather, correct? 

A Correct. 

Q Right. So, you've t o t a l l y  discounted the e f fec ts  o f  

weather on the plant.  And i t ' s  your view tha t  i t ' s  j u s t  bad 

maintenance tha t  caused those service standard misses rather 

than the weather, correct? 

A Well, I think, you've probably understated my 

testimony. Basical ly, we talked about the absence o f  an 
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Idequate force t o  maintain the plant,  we talked about the 

tbsence o f  preventive maintenance dol 1 ars, we t a l  ked about a1 1 

)f these factors together producing a report ra te  which the 

:ompany workforces were unable t o  cope w i th  during times o f  bad 

leather. And y o u ' l l  f i n d  tha t  i n  Peter Daks' l e t t e r  t o  h i s  

)OSS. 

Q And we w i l l  get t o  the l e t t e r ,  but my question fo r  

IOW i s  whether or not you have advised the Commission t o  ignore 

:he e f fec ts  o f  weather and not t o  excuse Verizon fo r  compliance 

r i t h  the rules no matter how severe the weather may have been 

luring the four years a t  issue i n  t h i s  case? 

A Two thoughts. The f i r s t  thought i s  tha t  Mr. McDonald 

.old you what the rules were, and the company never took 

idvantage o f  the rules by declaring a service emergency where 

:hey had over 10% o f  t h e i r  telephones out o f  service. 

I n  other words, i n  order t o  comply, they were 

bequired t o  comply i n  good weather and i n  bad weather. The 

u les  don ' t  make the exception, except when you're over 10%. 
ind tha t  never happened. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: M r .  Poucher, I ' m  t r y i n g  t o  

inderstand your posi t ion,  too. 

:orrectly, you're saying t h a t  had they had the appropriate 

rorkforce and budget i n  place, they could have met the service 

u l e s  i n  sp i te  o f  the bad weather? 

I f  I understand your testimony 

THE WITNESS: Certainly, yes, ma'am. 
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COMMISSIONER JABER: So, you're not asking us t o  
ignore the bad weather a s  a mitigating factor  t o  their not 

being able t o  allegedly comply w i t h  service rules. You're 
saying i f  the appropriate procedures, workforce and budgets, 

were i n  place,  they could have fu l ly  complied w i t h  the service 
rules . 

THE WITNESS: Yes. And I'm saying t h a t  w i t h  qual i ty  
plant,  i f  they had act ively pursued a preventive maintenance 
program, which their own people say they did not pursue and 
were not following, then the plant would be sufficient t h a t  the 
existing forces could have provided service t h a t  would have met 
your rules. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: A l l  r ight .  And then, i f  I'm t o  
apply the willful standard t o  this s i tua t ion ,  then i t ' s  your 
position t h a t  the f a c t  - -  t h a t  they did not have the adequate 
workforce and budget i n  place, t h a t ' s  what cons t i tu tes  willfu 

THE WITNESS: What we have tried t o  do i n  this case 
? 

is t o  f i n d  out why, because we knew t h a t  you would want t o  know 
why. Anyone would want t o  know the reasons why this company 
fa i led  t o  meet i t s  obligations t o  the Florida PSC. 

on the documents t h a t  we found i n  the company, we t h i n k  i t  

c lear ly  shows t h a t  they d id  not put your service rules as a top 
p r io r i ty .  They chose other company goals,  such a s  p r o f i t ,  and 
they d i d n ' t  have enough people t o  do the job year i n ,  year 
a f t e r  for  four years i n  a row. 

And based 

They knew i t ,  they continued t o  
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violate them, and that's willfulness. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: How do I define willful? Do you 
- -  I noticed in your testimony you don't define the word 
mywhere or reference any law. Perhaps actually, this is a 
)lace where I should ask procedurally, did the parties intend 
to discuss what constitutes willful standard in the brief? 

MS. CASWELL: Absolutely. 
MR. BECK: Yes. 
THE WITNESS: I would not - -  the lawyers say that's a 

legal term and they have all kinds of definitions. But I, on a 
:ommon sense nonlawyer type person, I see willfulness as 
;omething that happens because you either intentionally did it 
it- intentionally failed to do it. 
ghat they failed to do, and they failed to take care of their 
;ervice obligations to you and that was willful and that's my 
iwn definition. 

It's not what they did, it's 

It may not fit a legal definition. 
COMMISSIONER JABER: So you agree, then, that you 

lave to show that they intentionally did not have the workforce 
m d  they intentionally cut back their budget. 

THE WITNESS: That they chose other priorities, and 
iudget is one of them, yes, ma'am. 
3Y MS. CASWELL: 

Q And again, returning to my question, Mr. Poucher, it 
Mould be your view that every single one of the misses was 
Millful because of poor plant maintenance: is that right? 
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It's inadequate force, poor plant maintenance, A 
absence of proper bonding and grounding. The list is in our 
testimony, and we'll get to it later, I'm sure. There's about 
seven or eight items that you failed to do that you should have 
done. 

Q So, that was a yes in response to my question? 
A No. You asked me a narrow question. I gave you a 

1 i ttl e broader answer. 
Q Well, I'm trying to get yes or no answers, and I'm 

not having much success here. I just asked you - -  
A Ask your question again, then. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: I believe, the answer was no, 
because your question was limited to one item and, I think, he 
agrees with the one item, but he said there's many more items. 

Mr. Poucher. I would ask to the extent that you can 
answer - -  you answered the Commissioner's question every time 
either yes or no, and I understood completely. To the extent 
you can answer Ms. Caswell's question that way, it would be 
helpful for me and, I think, it would speed this process along. 

THE WITNESS: I'll try to do better. 
COMMISSIONER DEASON: Thank you. 

BY MS. CASWELL: 
Q And Mr. Poucher, because you feel that the network 

had deteriorated to such an extreme degree, you've advised the 
Commission not to consider the effects o f  weather on the 
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compliance resu l ts  a t  a l l :  i s  tha t  correct? 

A I ' m  having - -  you're t a i l i n g  o f f  a t  the end. Get 

closer t o  the mike, but I th ink  you said - - repeat i t  one more 

time. 

Q I t ' s  your theory, i s n ' t  it, tha t  because the network 

had declined t o  such a serious degree tha t  the Commission 

should not consider the e f fec ts  o f  weather on the plant a t  a l l  

i n  assessing the penalties on t h i s  case: i s  tha t  correct? 

A Yes. I th ink,  the company's actions were such tha t  

they allowed the p lant  t o  deteriorate - -  the force t o  be 

inadequate and they d i d  not have a chance t o  meet the service 

rules, because o f  inadequate force. 

Q And get t ing  back t o  the report  rate, because you 

focus on tha t  as symptomatic o f  p lant  decline, what i s  the 

report ra te  we can expect f o r  a company with well-maintained 

f a c i l i t i e s  and adequate service? 

A 

Q I ' m  not re fe r r ing  t o  that .  You're ta lk ing  about 

Are you re fe r r ing  t o  Page 12 o f  my testimony? 

report rates and report  rates being unduly high. 

t o  understand what a high report i s ,  we've got t o  understand 

what the report  ra te  i s  fo r  a company tha t  you would consider 

well -maintained and providing adequate service, don ' t  we? 

And i n  order 

A The purpose o f  that chart was not t o  discuss the 

report ra te  - -  
Q M r .  Poucher, can you answer me yes or no? I ' m  not 
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asking about the chart right now. I asked what report rate can 
we expect for a company with well -maintained facilities and 
adequate services? 

A 
anyway. 

That's not a yes or no question, but I'll answer it 

Q Thank you. 
A The report rate is calculated by so many different 

ways that I don't think I could give you a single number. I 
think that we could find in the Verizon documents what their 
objective report rates are, based on a wide variety of ways 
that they measure report rates. And I'm going to say, there's 
a report rate for the total network, there's a report rate for 
the outside plant. And those report rates are reflected in the 
company's reports. 

In looking at the report rate data here, I think, the 
chart was prepared by Verizon people, and what they were trying 
to demonstrate to their higher management was that the dollars 
they spent on preventive maintenance had a positive impact on 
the report rate and, therefore, the number of dispatches and 
the number of people: and when they were spending large amounts 
of money on preventive maintenance, that the report rate went 
down. 

Q Okay, we're going to get to that, but these report 
rates are measured in terms of troubles per 100 lines, correct? 

A I think, that's correct. 
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Q And i s  tha t  - -  you talked about d i f fe ren t  ways o f  

neasuring report rates. 

jo  you know, troubles per l ine?  

I s  tha t  an industry standard practice, 

A Yes, correct. 

Q Troubles per 100 l ines? 

A Mm-hmm. 

Q So, again, I ' m  t r y i n g  t o  ge, a t  your basis fo r  

ie l iev ing  tha t  some report rates are unduly high. And i f  i t ' s  

3n industry standard pract ice t o  compute these things i n  terms 

if trouble per 100 l i nes ,  what report  ra te  could we expect fo r  

3 company w i th  well -maintained plant? 

A My memory, based on my operations, was about 1.5 was 

3 good number, but I ' m  not sure tha t  t h a t ' s  correct today. 

vorked a long time ago and modern plant,  modern technology, 

iught t o  dr ive tha t  report ra te  down s ign i f i can t ly  lower than 

that. 

I 

Q And a l o t  o f  other things have changed considerably 

in the l a s t  20 years since you worked a t  BellSouth, haven't 

they? 

A Certainly, yes. 

Q And tha t  ra te  i s  based on your memory, your memory of 

dhat, the report rates a t  BellSouth? 

A Yes, correct. 

Q Do you consider any company i n  Flor ida t o  have a 

report ra te  o f  a well -maintained company? 
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A I haven't analyzed t h a t ,  so I d o n ' t  know. 

Q Okay, so you haven't - -  a l l  right. 
So, do you know i f  these report rates are unduly high 

:ompared t o  other companies i n  the industry? 
A They seem high  t o  me. bu t  the point  of this chart was 

.hat  the variation i n  the report rate is  highly significant, 
lecause that's what determines how many people you have t o  
lave, how many troubles you have t o  deal w i t h .  

Q And what's your basis for believing t h a t  these report 
ates are high? You said they seem high t o  you. What's your 
lasis for believing t h a t ?  

A My belief t h a t  1.5 i s  probably a good measure for the 
lutside plan t  for the network and, I t h i n k ,  this i s  a network 
eport rate, i f  I'm not mistaken. 

Q Have you seen any studies on report rates, any 

ndustry press, have you gone t o  seminars, anything like t h a t ,  
o determine what  kind of report rate might be reasonable for 
.hat?  

A Every one o f  your reports, which we have, deals w i t h  

I ' d  be more t h a n  happy .he objective report rate for Verizon. 
.o go look a t  those report rates t h a t  are i n  the objectives 
.ha t  you have, pul l  them out .  and tell you how this compares t o  
:he report rates. 

Q B u t  - -  I'm sorry, go ahead. B u t  those report rates 
mly show relative rates - -  Verizon's own rates relative t o  one 
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another, correct? 
A Well, you have an objective in Verizon. which is the 

only thing your people have to go on. 
Q We have an objective, an objective for what? 
A For a report rate. That's how they measure - -  that's 

one of your many measures of performance. 
Q Okay. And the report rate would customarily change 

Mith the weather, typically, for a company, correct? 
A Yes, that's correct. And the worse the weather gets, 

the higher the report rate gets, and the worse your outside 
plant rate is, the higher it gets also. 

Q So, we couldn't name one report rate, say 1.5, as a 
report rate for a we1 1 -maintained company under a1 1 
ci rcumstances , could we? 

A No. 
Q So, those rates would vary, even for a 

Me1 1 -maintained company, correct? 
A Correct. 
Q Okay. Let's look at Page 12 where you do have the 

chart listing the report rates. Actually, I've taken your 
chart, the information here, and added two years for 1999 and 
2000, so this i s  your REP-6 with two additional years, 1999? 

A 
discovery. 

I have no knowledge about 2000. That was not in our 

Q I understand. 
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A I have not looked a t  anything from your company i n  

.erms of discovery on 2000, so I can ' t  speak t o  it. 

Q You haven't seen anything i n  the discovery on 2000 i n  

he report ra te  i n  the documents we gave you? 

A I don' t  th ink  tha t  there was anything tha t  we were 

riven i n  2000 tha t  - - 

Q Okay. I understand your qua l i f i ca t ion ,  i f  we could 

ust look a t  the chart.  What year had the worst report rate? 

MR. BECK: I ' m  sorry, are you asking about the chart 

'ou j u s t  handed out? 

MS. CASWELL: Yes, I ' m  sorry. Can I have t h i s  marked 

,s an exhib i t?  

MR. BECK: I ' m  going t o  object, lack o f  foundation. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: We'll mark it, and l e t  me hear your 

ib j e c t i  on. 

(Exhibi t  7 marked f o r  i den t i f i ca t i on . )  

MR. BECK: Lack o f  foundation. Apparently, t h i s  i s  

komething they've prepared, t h e i r  witness i s  not sponsoring, 

md i t ' s  not been - -  there 's  no foundation f o r  it. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: 

me o f  your witnesses, Ms. Caswell? 

Is t h i s  a pa r t  o f  an exhib i t  from 

MS. CASWELL: This i s  M r .  Poucher's exh ib i t  w i th  199 

And, again, tha t  information was produced t o  publ ic ind 2000. 

:ounsel i n  discovery. 

l i ke  or I can j u s t  ask him the questions. 

I can p u l l  out the documents, i f  you'd 
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CHAIRMAN JACOBS: He's not t e s t i f y i n g  - -  as he's 

indicated, he's not t e s t i f y i n g  t o  2000 data. 

MS. CASWELL: Correct. I understand that .  I ' m  not 

3sking him t o  v e r i f y  the accuracy o f  the data. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Okay, so we're on the same track 

I'll mark t h i s ,  but a t  the time you move i t  i n ,  I'll jgain. 

m te r ta in  the objection - -  
MS. CASWELL: I understand. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: - -  as t o  i t s  relevance t o  be 

mtered on h i s  testimony. And t h i s  witness you, again, have t o  

s t a b l i s h  a foundation as t o  h i s  a b i l i t y  t o  t e s t i f y  t o  these 

lumbers. 

3Y MS. CASWELL: 

Okay. M r .  Poucher, e i ther  by your chart on 12 or  the Q 
:hart I ' v e  handed you, what year had the worst report rate? 

It would appear t o  me tha t  i t  was 1998. A I s  tha t  what 

it appears t o  you? 

Q No. It appears t o  me t o  be 1990, which says 2.3. 

rhat 's the highest report  ra te  on there, i s n ' t  it? 

A Correct. 

Q So, i f  the report  ra te  re f l ec ts  the qua l i t y  o f  the 

3utside plant,  as you contend, would you say tha t  outside p lant  

naintenance was the worst i n  1990? 

MR. BECK: M r .  Chairman, I ' m  going t o  object again. 

4s. Caswell ' s  going i n t o  asking questions about the numbers 
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without first asking whether the witness can validate them or 
not. And if he can't validate them, then there's no basis for 
asking questions about it. 

MS. CASWELL: Mr. Poucher included this chart in his 
testimony to demonstrate what he believes is a correlation 
between expenditures and number of customer trouble reports. 
Now, I'm just using his data, his own data, to ask him 
questions about what appears - -  I mean, it's in black and white 
here, highest report rate 2.3 in 1990. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Excuse me. As I understood this 
chart, you simply supplemented his filing with year 2000 data. 

MS. CASWELL: Well, right now, Mr. Chairman, we're 
looking at his own testimony on Page 12. 

at that chart. This is in his testimony. He offered this 
evidence on the basis of a chart that we produced during 
discovery, which is REP-6, and he's offering this chart for a 
certain conclusion, and I'm asking him about the chart to get 
at the validity of that conclusion. 

I'm not even looking 

MR. BECK: Right. And, Mr. Chairman, just to be 
clear, I have no question about questioning Mr. Poucher about 
the data on Page 12 of his testimony, which is taken from 
REP-6. 

MS. CASWELL: Right. 
MR. BECK: But I do object to the document 

Ms. Caswell just handed out, which is not the same. 
FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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other numbers added t o  i t  that they added t o  it, and there's 

foundation fo r  that .  So, i f  Ms. Caswell's not going t o  ask 

about the document she handed out, I have no objection. 

MS. CASWELL: I ' m  not asking about the document r i g h t  

low, I ' m  s t i ck ing  t o  the chart. 

ibout the document. 

I w i l l  t e l l  you when I ask 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Okay. 

MS. CASWELL: Okay? 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: You may ask your question. 

3Y MS. CASWELL: 

Q Okay. According t o  your testimony, the highest 

*eport ra te  on here i s  2.3 i n  1990, correct? We've already 

s tab1 i shed that.  

A Correct. 

Q And i f  the report ra te  re f l ec ts  the qua l i t y  o f  

iuts ide plant,  which you contend i t  does, would you say outside 

i l a n t  maintenance was the worst i n  1990? 

A I believe, t ha t  I conceded a few minutes ago tha t  the 

"eport ra te  i s  a re f l ec t i on  o f  the qua l i t y  o f  the outside plant 

jnd the weather, which also has an impact on the report ra te  

md, I th ink,  tha t  the Verizon people would agree tha t  both of 

those factors are s ign i f i can t  and 2.3 i s  the worst number here, 

Mhich means they have the highest report ra te  i n  1990 o f  the 

m t i r e  10-year period. 

Q Well, i f  you're going t o  eliminate - -  
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COMMISSIONER DEASON: Excuse me, Ms. Caswell. Let me 

ask a question so I can fol low t h i s  a l i t t l e  b i t  bet ter .  

M r .  Poucher, under the column - -  on Page 12 o f  your 

testimony under the column Dollars Spent, what i s  your 

Inderstandi ng o f  what tha t  represents? 

THE WITNESS: Mr. Commissioner. I th ink,  the best 

Source o f  t h a t  i s  REP-6. I t ' s  the chart, Page 1 o f  1, REP-6, 

Mhich has a l l  o f  the same data and these numbers come o f f  o f  

that chart. And t h i s  chart was prepared by Verizon personnel. 

It was ac tua l l y  prepared, I think,  by M r .  Diamond a t  the 

direct ion o f  h i s  Florida president t o  t ry t o  demonstrate t o  

i igher management i n  Verizon tha t  there were s ign i f i can t  

mounts o f  money spent on Defective OSP, a t  the top, stands fo r  

>utsi de p lan t  capi ta l  . 
COMMISSIONER DEASON: This was money spent t o  replace 

defective equipment i n  outside plant? 

THE WITNESS: Correct, mostly defective cable, and 

th is  i s  what you w i l l  see and hear today as the - -  pr imar i ly  

the TAC Focus program. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: And i f  t h i s  i s  - -  these are 

cap i ta l  dol lars,  these are expenditures fo r  plant which i s  

going t o  have a useful l i f e  more than one year, correct? 

THE WITNESS: Correct. And these are expenditures 

that the company targeted t o  t h e i r  defective outside plant 

cable f o r  the purpose o f  improving the report ra te  and 
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improving their service. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Would you anticipate, for 
?xample, if there were a higher expenditure in 1990, that it 
Mould have an immediate impact on the trouble report rate in 
1990 or would it have an impact over a number of years 
following that expenditure? 

THE WITNESS: You ' re correct, yes. The expenditure 
If TAC Focus dollars, preventive maintenance dollars, is a 
long-term program, and it's based at going towards the very 
torst facilities that you have in the outside plant and 
*eplacing them, which would have the maximum impact on your 
-eport rate. But this is the long-term program, and you don't 
;ee results from increased funding or decreased funding for 
{ears. 

So you can look at how this chart shows how they were 
;pending a lot of money back in 1990 and they spent a lot of 
noney back in 1991 and the report rates were coming down very, 
rery well. And then, in '92, '93, '94 they continued to cut 
:his budget and cut the preventive maintenance expenses, and 
that happened? This chart shows that the report rate stopped 
ieclining, leveled off, and then started going back up, and 
:hat's exactly what I would expect to happen on a long-run 
rogram. This is exactly what Peter Daks was writing to his 
loss about when he said we have got to find the dollars to fix 
the outside plant. 
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COMMISSIONER DEASON: Thank you. 

IY MS. CASWELL: 

Q M r .  Poucher, I ' d  l i k e  t o  explore exactly what you 

.hink these numbers are. Can you explain t o  me what t h i s  money 

ras spent on? I s  t h i s  apparent from the chart from your 

,eview from the - -  
A 

Q Yeah, what exactly. 

A 

What i t  was spent on? 

No, i t ' s  not a t  a l l  apparent from the chart, but I 

hink tha t  Verizon and I both would agree tha t  i t ' s  pr ncipal 

he TAC Focus program, which i s  targeted towards o ld  cable, 

opper cable, and i t  does not involve central o f f i ces  or 

ui ld ings or any o f  those other things. 

Q So, you're assuming these do l la rs  are from the TAC 

ocus program? 

A Say again. 

Q You're assuming these dol lars  r e f l e c t  the TAC Focus 

Irogram? 

A The TAC Focus, according t o  - -  
Q I s  t ha t  a yes or a no? 

Y 

A Yes. However, could I explain a l i t t l e  b i t  fur ther? 

Q Yes, you can. 

A TAC Focus i s  your primary preventive maintenance 

rogram, and there 's  some other ways tha t  the company spends 

ioney, but most o f  the dol lars  are found i n  TAC Focus. I don't 
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believe t h a t  this chart was prepared solely w i t h  TAC Focus 
dollars. 
p l an t  cable, which would be a variety of programs. 

I t h i n k ,  they were prepared using defective outside 

Q 
A 

Q 
this - -  

But  you really have no idea, do you? 
No, this is a chart - -  this i s  your chart. 
Right ,  so you have no idea what  these numbers - -  what 

A A l l  tha t  I know from this chart, and based on our 
depositions of Mr. Diamond, was t h a t  these were the dollars 
going t o  replace defective outside p lan t  cable. 

Q Do you know i f  the TAC Focus program was i n  place i n  

1990? 

A No, I do not, but I do know t h a t  a preventive 

naintenance program was i n  effect, because your chart shows 
that, and you spent $24 million on it .  

Q Okay. And getting back t o  the report rate for 1990, 

you wouldn't necessarily say t h a t  outside p lan t  maintenance was 
the worst i n  1990, just because the report rate i s  high? 

A That's not i n  my testimony, no. 
Q So, do you believe the p lan t  was properly mainta 

i n  1990? 

ned 

A I d o n ' t  t h i n k  I can give you a yes or no on t h a t .  We 
did no discovery on 1990. All we know i s  t h a t  they had a 
report rate of 2.3. 

period, and they spent $24 million on capital. That's a l l  I 

I t  was the highest of the entire 10-year 
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:an tell you. 
Q So, we can't tell from that report rate if the 

'acilities were adequate or not? 
A 
Q Okay. And Verizon was under rate of  return 

I wasn't around here in 1990. 

.egulation in 1990, wasn't it? 
A Say that again. 
Q Verizon was under rate o f  return regulation in 1990; 

I S  that true? 
A Correct. 
Q And were you involved in Verizon's last rate case in 

.992? 

A Correct. 
Q And the Commission would have reviewed Verizon's 

;ervice quality in that case, right? 
A Yes, I'm sure they did. 
Q And the service they would have reviewed would have 

leen 1991, correct? 
A Correct. 
Q 
A 

And did they find service to be adequate in 1991? 

I don't think that there's any showing, one way or 
;he other, but my remembrance of Verizon's service, based on 
just review o f  the old reports, was that in that time period it 
{as pretty good. 

Q Yeah, and I will show you the rate case decision just 
FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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:o v e r i f y  that .  

A I f  you're asking me t o  say tha t  you had good service 

)ack i n  those days, I ' d  be glad t o  say yes. 

Q Okay, then we don't  need t o  look a t  the decision. 

\nd the report ra te  i n  1991 was 2.0, correct? 

A Correct. 

Q And tha t  was higher than the rates f o r  the pr ice  cap 

Ieriods o f  1996 and 1997, correct? 

A Correct. 

Q Do you th ink  the Commission made the wrong conclusion 

ibout Veri zon ' s service qual i t y  given the higher report ra te  

ind your contention tha t  the report ra te  re f lec ts  qua l i t y  o f  

11 ant? 

A I f  I heard your question properly - -  you ought t o  

:alk a l i t t l e  slower. 

Q Okay. 

A The Commission d id  not f i ne  the company. We had 

jervice hearings i n  Verizon t e r r i t o r y .  The report ra te  has 

iothing t o  do wi th  the compliance w i th  the Commission rules. 

But doesn't the report  rate,  i n  your view, r e f l e c t  Q 
:he qual i t y  o f  the plant? 

A Well, sure, but what t h i s  Commission i s  concerned 

3bout i s  whether the company complies wi th  i t s  rules.  The 

:ommission doesn't care about the report rate. 

Q I n  your view, though, i s  that  the qua l i t y  o f  p lant 
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,irectly affects the company's compliance with the rule, 
,orrect? 

A It is my position during the time frame of this 
locket and the time frame of our discovery that it had a 
,ignificant impact. 

Q So, there's a connection, in your mind, between 
luality of service and quality of plant, correct? 

A Yes. And, I think, if you go back to 1990, 

ibviously. you had enough people on the payroll to fix the 
iutside plant problems, no matter what that report rate was, 
iecause you were not held in violation of the rules and, I 
;hink, you had reported good service. 

Q Mr. Poucher, I'm trying to understand when you 
elieve the decline in Verizon's outside plant began. At Page 
1 ,  Lines 7 through 10, you say that the increasing network 
'eport rate that started rising in early 1997, Exhibit REP-1, 
ihows clearly that the company's network facilities were in 
lecl ine and highly subject to weather phenomena starting early 
,997. That statement seems to indicate that the alleged 
ietwork decline started in 1997; is that right? 

A Yes. 
Q Okay, so would you agree that the network was 

idequatel y maintained in 1996? 

A No. 
Q Well, then, if the network decline started in 1997, 
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then, isn ' t  the conclusion to  be drawn t h a t  the network was 
Idequate i n  1996? 

A What I've pointed out t o  you is t h a t  the trouble 
report rate started leveling off i n  1992 when the company 
stopped funding adequate amounts of money t o  replace i t s  
jefective outside p lan t  cable, and t h a t  report rate remained 
level for a number of years and f inal ly  i t  began t o  rise a t  the 
level of funding i n  '97 and i t  continued go up i n  '98 and i t  

$it another high i n  1999 and a year o f  drought, I might add. 

4nd what I'm saying i s  exactly what your company president said 
to his boss, t h a t  we've got t o  have a TAC Focus program t h a t  
dill deal w i t h  the outside problems so t h a t  we do not have 
?xcessive report rates i n  periods of bad weather. 

Q So, w h a t  i s  your response as t o  when the network 
started to  decline? When d i d  it start t o  deteriorate? Was i t  

1997 or was i t  sooner t h a n  tha t ?  
A From this chart? 

Q I'm asking you when i t  was. You d o n ' t  need t o  refer 
to the chart. 
the network started t o  decline. 
testimony t h a t  i t  was starting i n  1997. 

I'm asking you what your opinion i s  as t o  when 
I t  seems t o  indicate from your 

A My recollection of the documents t h a t  we reviewed was 
t h a t  there was dissatisfaction on the part of t h a t  Florida 
Verizon operations w i t h  the amount of money t h a t  was allotted 
to do preventive maintenance i n  either late 1996 or 1997. 
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Q SO - -  
A And that dissatisfaction clearly stated that we have 

a problem with our outside plant. And, I think, that's a 
problem that extended over a period of years. 
you a specific date, and I don't think they provided a specific 
date in their correspondence as we1 1. 

I cannot give 

Q So, you don't have a particular date as to when 
Verizon started to let its network deteriorate, a particular 
year, whether it was 1996, 1997, or 1992? 

A Might have been '94: no, I do not. It might have 
been '94, it might have been '95. Our correspondence that you 
furnished to us started with '96, I think, but there was great 
dissatisfaction at that point and time. So, I assume, based on 
those letters, that the outside plant was inadequate to provide 
good service. 

Q You assume, so you're making assumptions based solely 
on the letters as to when the network started to decline, 
correct? 

A Correct. 
Q You don't have any letters before 1996, correct? 
A No, we do not. 
Q Okay, so but you seem to indicate that the decline 

really got worse in - -  started to get worse in 1997. correct, 
from this statement; the increasing network report rate that 
started rising in early 1997 shows clearly that the company's 
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letwork f a c i l i t i e s  were i n  decline and highly subject t o  
leather phenomenon s t a r t i ng  ear ly  1997. 

A I t  would appear t h a t ,  bu t  i t  stopped get t ing better 

lack i n  1992 when the stop - -  the company stopped spending 
ioney on preventive maintenance. 

Q B u t  you don't  have any documents from 1992 about the 

itate o f  the company's network, do you, a t  t h a t  time? 
A No, but I - -  no, I do not,  other t h a n  your document 

ihich i s  shown i n  my REP-6. 

Q All we have t o  go on are  the re l a t ive ly  high report  

%ates i n  1990 and 1991? 
A Correct. 

Q I f ,  i n  your view, the report r a t e s  are  indicative of 

naintenance, then tha t ' s  a l l  we've got t o  go on a t  this point,  
.ight? 

A Sure, i t ' s  not very relevant,  '96 t o  '99. 

Q Okay, so get t ing back t o  your statement about the 
lecline s t a r t i n g  i n  1997, you can c a n ' t  o f fe r  an opinion as t o  
vhether this start was actual ly  earlier t h a n  t h a t  or not,  
:orrect? 

A No. 
Q Okay. And l e t ' s  look a t  your chart  R E P - 1 .  

A 

Q Yeah - -  well, for  now. I'm going t o  use i t  l a t e r .  
4nd this is  the chart  t h a t  you believe indicates the f a c i l i t i e s  
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t a r t e d  t o  decline i n  ear ly  '97, correct? 

A Correct. 

Q And you say the report rates starteG r i s i n g  i n  1997. 

.e t 's  look a t  January 1997 report  rate.  What was tha t  report 

*ate? 

A 

Q No, i t ' s  1.74, i s n ' t  it? 

A 

Q '97 January, Florida 1.74. 

A Excuse me, l e t  me get my exh ib i t  f i r s t .  

W i l l  you say i t ' s  1.9? 

Where do you f i n d  that? 

MR. BECK: Ms. Caswell. you're re fe r r ing  t o  REP-1, 

:orrect? 

MS. CASWELL: Yeah, REP-1, Page 1. i t says Flor ida 

iegion Network Troubles per 100 January 1996 through September 

1998. 

THE WITNESS: I got it. 

MS. CASWELL: And M r .  Poucher's point  i s  t ha t  the 

trouble rates started t o  r i s e  i n  ear ly  1997. 

BY MS. CASWELL: 

Q 

A Okay, I have i t  now. 

Q Okay. Le t ' s  look a t  the report f o r  1997. That 

That was 1.74, correct? 

Do you have the document, M r .  Poucher? 

was - - o f  January. 

A Correct. 

Q And what was i t  i n  January o f  1996? 
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A 2.06. 

Q 

A For tha t  month, yes. 

Q 

A 

Q 

A It was higher. 

Q 

So, tha t  was higher i n  '96, r i gh t?  

And February, was tha t  higher i n  '96 or '97? 

It was higher i n  1996. 

I n  March, was it higher i n  1996 or 1997? 

And for Apr i l ,  it was a l i t t l e  b i t  higher fo r  '97, 

:orrect? 

A Correct. 

Q 

A 

Q 

A Yes. I n  June it was about the same. 

Q I n  June i t  was about the same? 

A Yes. 

Q 

And i n  May it was lower i n  1997, correct? 

It was about the same. 

It was a l i t t l e  lower, 3.03 lower, correct? 

So, f o r  the f i r s t  s i x  months, the report ra te  seemed 

i r e t t y  consistent wi th  the rates i n  the same months i n  1996. 

b d ,  i n  fact ,  a number o f  them were lower, correct? 

A Sure. 

Q So, there 's  no evidence i n  these f i r s t  s i x  months of 

any trend toward increased trouble reports, correct? 

A Correct. 

Q 
A Mm-hmm. 

I n  the f i r s t  s i x  months? 
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Q So, there's no evidence of network deterioration from 

his chart, correct? 
A Not i n  terms of the report rate, no. 

Q And t h a t ' s  how you're trying t o  prove network 
eterioration through the report rate, correct? 

A Well - -  
Q 

A 

And I can read you your statement. 
No, t h a t ' s  not correct, and I cannot accept t h a t ,  

i m .  

Q Well - -  
A The report rate, i f  i t ' s  perfectly dry out there, as 

t has been for the last six months here, the report rate is 
loing t o  go down, whether your p lan t  is outstanding or whether 
'our p lan t  i s  bad, because i f  i t  doesn't rain, nothing happens. 
t ' s  only when rain h i t s  t h a t  you f i n d  out whether you have a 
lroblem w i t h  your bad p lan t ,  and that's when a l l  the trouble 
,eports come i n .  

And a l l  we're saying here i n  a l l  of this testimony is  
h a t  the problem is you d i d n ' t  replace the bad p l an t .  And 

herefore, when the rain f ina l ly  h i t ,  you were t o t a l l y  

ncapable of handling the load. 

.here, t h a t  would not have happened. 
If you had good p l a n t  i n  

COMMISSIONER JABER: Mr. Poucher - - 
MS. CASWELL: B u t  - -  
THE WITNESS: Yes, ma'am. 
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COMMISSIONER JABER: - - w i th  respect t o  Page 9 Of 

your testimony, Lines 7 through 10. 

THE WITNESS: Page 9? 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Yeah, Page 9 o f  your testimony. 

Lines 7 through 10, you made the statement and, please, correct 

me i f  I ' m  wrong, because I want t o  understand your posit ion. 

You're making the statement tha t  there was a decline i n  network 

f a c i l i t i e s  i n  1997 and, therefore, the PSC should make a l i n k  

between poor budgeting, poor workforce and lack o f  compliance 

with service rules. 

THE WITNESS: Correct. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: And you substanti ate your 

sentence, your testimony, by re fe r r i ng  t o  REP-1. And the 

question i s  what on REP-1 shows tha t  the report  ra te  was 

start ing t o  r i s e  i n  ear ly  1997? 

THE WITNESS: The f i r s t  s i x  months o f  1997 were 

extremely dry. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Okay. 

THE WITNESS: Verizon made - -  I th ink,  i f  you look a t  

the service reports, they d i d n ' t  commit many v io la t ions during 

tha t  time period e i ther .  It was not u n t i l  the beginning o f  the 

summer rains tha t  the report ra te  began t o  climb. And t h i s  was 

the f i r s t  time i n  several years tha t  i t  had started, reversed, 

and headed back i n  the other d i rect ion,  because p r i o r  t o  tha t  

report ra te  was declining. 
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COMMISSIONER JABER: So, you're looking a t  solely 
.997. You're not comparing '97 t o  '96? 

THE WITNESS: Not - -  I don ' t  t h i n k  - -  I don ' t  t h i n k  

IOU can make an absolute comparison year t o  year, because 
reather does change. 
jet more trouble reports, because of rain. 

Even w i t h  the good p lan t ,  you're going t o  

COMMISSIONER JABER: Okay. Bu t  i f  I wanted t o  
:ompare '96 t o  '97, the trouble reports were actually getting 
letter i n  1997, correct? 

THE WITNESS: Well, what you have t o  do is look a t  
:he whole year, because when you look a t  the entire year, '97 

jeteriorated badly w i t h  the summer rains and then the beginning 
if E l  Nino, which kicked i n  i n  October, November, December and 
:ruly the weather got terrible later on i n  '97 and t h a t ' s  when 
;he report rates turn back around. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: A1 1 right. 
3Y MS. CASWELL: 

Q B u t  Mr. Poucher, you are making a direct connection 
letween report rate and state of decline i n  the company's 
Facilities, correct? T h a t ' s  stated clearly i n  your testimony; 
i s  it not? 

A I t ' s  right i n  there, correct. 

Q Right i n  there. And you would have t o  agree t h a t  the 
-eport rate did not start rising, do not progressively rise for 
the f i rs t  s ix  months of '97 compared t o  '96 - -  
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A Correct. 
Q 
A Yes. 
Q 

;ix months. Do you have any evidence in that regard? 
A Just memory and recollection. I think, if you look 

- - woul dn t you? 

And you mentioned that it was extremely dry in those 

it the results, you had excellent results the first half of '97 

31 so. 

Q 
A Yes. 
Q 

And you're assuming that's because of the weather? 

And do you know if the weather in the first months of 
1997 for six months there was drier or wetter than the first 
six months of 1996? 

A 
it was like. 

No, I can't - - I have no recollection about '96, what 

Q Okay. So, if we're going to make a connection 
between network decline and report rate we can't draw any 
conclusion about network decline for the first six months of 
1997, correct? 

A Well, I think, they stand for what they stand for, 
but I'll answer it, yes. 

Q Okay. I'm sorry, you answered - -  
A Yes. 
Q Yes, we can't make such a conclusion or yes, we can 

make such a conclusion? 
FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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A 
Q Okay. Okay. And in July we see a spike in the 

I'll agree with whichever way you want to put it. 

?port, correct? It's 2.40 for 1997. In July of 1996, it was 
- _  

A Yes, that's correct. 
Q - -  1.93? 
A Mm-hmm. 
Q Do you have a copy of Mr. Ferrell's testimony with 

3U? 
A No, I do not. 
Q Let me show. And what that looks like is a 

ightning stroke count analysis - -  
MR. BECK: 
MS. CASWELL: I think, it's JAF-11. He just took my 

I'm sorry, where are you referring to? 

opy. I think, it's JAF-11. 
A Yes. 

Y MS. CASWELL: 
Q JAF-11, Page 2. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Ms. Caswell, let me make sure, 
his testimony is no longer confidential? 

MS. CASWELL: Correct. 
Y MS. CASWELL: 

Q Do you see the chart with lightning stroke counts, 
Ir. Poucher? 

A Yes. 
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Q And what's the highest number o f  l igh tn ing  strokes 

ecorded fo r  a month on there, i n  what month would tha t  be? 

A I haven't looked a t  every number, but I assume tha t  

u l y  o f  '97 was the highest. 

Q 

A Yes. 

Q Okay. Now, l e t ' s  look a t  the th i rd-quar ter  report 

I ' v e  handed out a l l  

Yeah, over those s i x  years, correct? 

,997 fo r  out o f  service w i th in  24 hours. 

,f the t h i r d  quarter ly reports. Do you have copies there? 

A 

Q 1997. 

A Where's - -  i t ' s  not i n  my testimony. 

Q 

The th i rd-quar ter  report  o f  what? 

No, but they're on the O f f i c i a l  Recognition L i s t .  

:verybody - - d id  you get copies? 

MR. BECK: I have a copy. Do you have a copy fo r  the 

v i  tness? 

3Y MS. CASWELL: 

Q Third quarter. Third-quarter report f o r  1997. 

A Are you through w i th  the l igh tn ing  strokes? Kim, are 

you through wi th  the l ightn ing? 

Q I ' m  through w i th  tha t  chart, yes. I ' d  l i k e  you t o  

look a t  the th i rd-quar ter  report f o r  1997. 

A What page? 

Q Explanation o f  missed service standards Schedule 11, 

3ut o f  service cleared w i th in  24 hours. It doesn't have a page 
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Jmber i n  my copy, and t h a t  would be f o r  the data month July of 

397. 

A Okay. I'm thumbing through this document. Would you 

ell  me wha t  you're looking a t ?  

Q Okay. I t ' s  Schedule 11, explanation of missed 

ervice standards, t h i r d  quarter 1997, data month July 1997. 

A 

Q Correct. 
A Okay. 

Q 

O u t  of service cleared w i t h i n  24 hours? 

And i f  you would look a t  the explanations down below, 

ould you agree t h a t  the explanations cite severe weather i n  

he f i r s t  two weeks of Ju ly  t o  the point of declaring a service 
mergency for three days? 

A Sure. 

Q Okay. And so, considering this explanation, along 

l i t h  the lightning stroke count analysis,  do you t h i n k  i t  would 

le more reasonable t o  a t t r i b u t e  the spike i n  Ju ly  t o  sudden 

ietwork deter iorat ion or t o  weather? 

A 

Q 

I would a t t r i b u t e  i t  t o  both. 

So, the network was not i n  decline f o r  the f i rs t  six 
tonths of 1997 and suddenly i t  s t a r t ed  to  decl ine i n  July when 
:he severe weather h i t ?  

A That ' s  not a t  a l l  what  I said.  

Q Okay. How would you characterize? 
A Well, ask your question. What is your question? 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

121 

Q I asked you if it would be more reasonable to 
ttribute the spike in the trouble report in July to sudden 
letwork deterioration that just began in July or to the 
leather? 

A And I answered that the results in July are a 
:ombination of network deterioration or bad plant and weather. 

Q And you don't think the Commission should consider 
.he effects o f  that weather at all on Verizon's compliance for 
luly. correct, July 1997? 

A Correct, correct. 
Q Okay. And that's because its network is in such a 

ievere state of decline, correct? 
A Correct. 
Q 
A 
Q 
A Correct. 
Q 

At that point in July 1997? 

As well as in other times, probably. 
But I'm just focusing on July 1997. 

And the reason you know why the network was in such 
lecline is by looking at the report rate, correct? 

A As well as Peter Daks' letters and correspondence. 
Q Okay. And we will get to those letters, but for 

burposes of your testimony you're trying to make a point by 
ooking solely at the report rate here, correct, because you're 
;aying the report rate shows it was in decline? 

A Yes, I think, it's a good indicator. I think, it 
FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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?ars out what the company correspondence covers more c lea r l y  

nd more completely. 

Q Okay, and we w i l l  go over tha t .  Are you f a m i l i a r  

i t h  the weather phenomenon known as E l  Nino? 

A Yes. 

Q And would you agree tha t  E l  Nino caused to r ren t i a l  

ains, f looding, l i gh tn ing  and other severe weather toward the 

nd o f  1997 and the f i r s t  quarter o f  1998? 

A That's i n  your testimony, I think.  

Q Uh-huh. And are these e f fec ts  - -  l e t ' s  look a t  the 

ervice qua l i t y  reports again fo r  the f i r s t  quarter o f  1997. 

A Okay. 

Q Let 's  look a t  October f i r s t .  It says explanation o f  

iissed service standards four th  quarter 1997, data month 

ctober 1997, and there 's  an explanation i n  the middle tha t  

ays the Florida region had 8.45 inches o f  ra in ,  i t  ta l ks  about 

xcessive r a i n f a l l ,  and unusually high service problems. 

A Keep going. I don' t  have the exhib i t ,  but I'll - -  
ubject t o  check, t h a t ' s  f ine.  

Q Okay. Well, you could probably accept subject t o  

heck tha t  for October, November, and December, Verizon' s 

hxpl anations fo r  i t s  service misses include severe weather due 

o the effects o f  E l  Nino, correct? 

A Correct, yeah, the fourth quarter was t e r r i b l e ,  bad 

feather, I agree t o  that .  
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Q And then. those explanations would contain the same 

o r t  o f  factors f o r  f i r s t  quarter o f  1998, January, February 

nd March, correct? 

A 

Q 

I think,  they were very consistent, yes. 

And i f  we look a t  the data here, October, November, 

iecember, January, February, March, a1 1 o f  those months had 

iigher report  rates than 1996 over t h a t  same period, r i gh t?  

A Yes. 

Q And that ,  again, would be due t o  the e f fec ts  o f  E l  

lino, correct? 

A Correct. 

Q But you - -  do you s t i l l  believe tha t  the network 

,eport rates, the end o f  1997 i n t o  '98, more l i k e l y  r e f l e c t  

rogressive network deter iorat ion or the ef fects  o f  the 

feather? 

A Both, as I said before. 

Q And even though i t  r e f l e c t s  both, you would advise 

:he Commission t o  ignore the e f fec ts  o f  weather? 

A I f  I were looking a t  a company tha t  d i d n ' t  have a 

'our-year h is to ry  o f  r u l e  v io la t ions,  I would take tha t  i n t o  

iccount, i f  I were the Commission. 

:ompany d i d n ' t  have enough people t o  do the job when the 

reather was good automatically means tha t  they d i d n ' t  have 

!nough people t o  do the job when the weather was bad and, 

:herefore, i t  i s  my recommendation t h a t  you ignore it. 

But the fac t  t ha t  t h i s  
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There are about three months i n  there when E l  Nino 

nlas very, very dominant, October, November, December of ' 97. 

You can ignore those violations, i f  you want to ,  bu t  the 
company would have had a much better chance a t  meeting your 
rules had they had an adequate number of people on the force 
and i f  they had paid more attention t o  replacing their bad 

outside p lan t  prior t o  t h a t .  

Q Do you t h i n k  t h a t  Verizon could have complied w i t h  

the service standards during t h a t  period i f  i t  had had 

we1 1 -maintained pl a n t  there would have been no v i  ol a t i  ons? 
A We'll never know, because they d i d n ' t  do it. 

Q And moving from this chart, specifically, t o  the more 
general issue of weather, you would agree, wouldn't  you, t h a t  
weather i s  a key point of contention t o  this case? 

A Repeat t h a t .  

Q Would you agree t h a t  weather is  a key point of 
contention i n  this case between public counsel and Verizon i n  

regards t o  the fact t h a t  Verizon believes t h a t  the Commission 
should consider weather and you believe the Commission should 
not consider weather i n  assessing willfulness? 

A No, I do not agree w i t h  t h a t ,  and we've stated 
Verizon misses the Commission rules i n  good weather and i n  bad. 

I t  i s  not the weather t h a t  caused Verizon t o  fail t o  meet the 
condition rules. 

Q Okay. So, we have a difference of opinion as t o  
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hether the Commission should consider weather i n  assessing 
hether Verizon's violations were willful, correct? You t h i n k  

t shouldn't - -  
A Yes. 
Q - -  and we t h i n k  i t  should. 
A 

Q Right .  

A 

We have a very difference of opinion. 

And the rules clearly state how you're supposed t o  
leal w i t h  weather, and Verizon never declared a service 
nergency w i t h  the Commission, never declared t h a t  they had 

iver 10% of their customers out of service and, therefore, you 

liolated the rules, and the Commission witness just t o l d  you 

:hat. 

Q B u t  the question the Commission has t o  decide i s  
rhether we wi l l fu l ly  violated the rules, correct? 

A Correct. 
Q Correct. And we could probably t a l k  about weather 

11 1 afternoon, because there's lots of weather information 
iere. but I ' d  like t o  avoid having t o  go through t h a t  
ionth-by-month analysis i n  the hearing, so I'm going t o  try and 

lake this quick. Would you agree t h a t  weather i n  some years 
ind i n  some months and on some days may be, more or less, 
!xtreme t h a n  i n  other years, months or days? 

A Yes. 
Q So even i n  a place like Tampa Bay, characterized by 
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,easonal ly extreme weather, there's still the possi bi 1 i ty of 
!xtraordinary weather, correct? 

A Certainly. 
Q And a number of the documents in this case discuss 

bxtreme weather and its effect on the service results over the 
Ieriod at issue; is that right? 

A Are you talking about the excuses that the company 
lade to the Commission as to why they failed the rules: is that 
t? 

Q The documents would include, for example, Verizon's 
luarterly service reports filed with the Commission - -  

A Correct. 
Q - - and Verizon's responses to Staff's interrogatories 

n this docket, some o f  your own exhibits, and Mr. Ferrell ' s  

!xhi bi ts, correct? 
A Correct. 
Q And it's your position that no matter the nature or 

;everity of the weather event discussed in these documents, the 
:ommi ssi on should not consider weather in determining whether 
'erizon willfully violated the standards, correct? Go ahead. 

A No. It's our position that the Commission ought to 
ook at the whole case and all of the facts and make the 
lecision. They can consider weather, if they want to, but our 
hecommendation is you ignore it because o f  the other 
!xtenuating factors. 
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Q So, they should ignore i t  i n  the willfulness 

letermination, i n  your opinion? 

A Yes. 

Q And i n  your review of Verizon's quarterly service 

-eports submitted t o  the Commission, d id  you notice t h a t  i n  

some instances Verizon cites damaged cables as the reason for 
n i  ssi ng service reports? 

A Yes, I've seen t h a t  reason. 

Q And i n  your experience, does i t  sometimes happen t h a t  
a third party, someone other t h a n  Verizon will cut a Verizon 
phone cable put t ing a number of people out of service a t  the 
same time? 

A Correct. That's generally how i t  happens. 

Q And this k i n d  of t h i n g  could result i n  an unexpecteL 
repair demand that's impossible t o  anticipate; is  t h a t  right? 

Would you repeat t h a t  last sentence? 
This kind o f  thing might result i n  unanticipated 

A 

Q 
repair demand loads; i s  t h a t  right? 

A Well, a company t h a t  doesn't anticipate t h a t  i t ' s  
going t o  have cable cuts is i n  real trouble, bu t  a cable cut 
can present a real problem for the company i n  terms of the 
large number of outages, I would agree t o  say t h a t ,  that's 
okay. 

Q And would you agree t h a t  a company can't anticipate 
dhen or where a cable might be cut? 
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A That's correct, they've got t o  be ready t o  f i x  i t  no 

a t te r  where they are. 

Q But i f  Verizon - - 
CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Excuse me, Ms. Caswell , how close 

r e  you t o  - -  
MS. CASWELL: Oh, not close a t  a1 1. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Okay. We're going t o  take, then, a 

lreak, come back i n  ten minutes. Thank you. 

MS. CASWELL: Okay. 

(Recess taken. 1 
CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Le t ' s  go back on the record. 

Is. Caswell . 
1Y MS. CASWELL: 

Q M r .  Poucher, I think, we were discussing cable cuts. 

A Yes. 

Q Now, i f  Verizon missed service resul ts  i n  par t icu lar  

,eriods because o f  cable cuts or damage caused by others, would 

'ou s t i l l  consider those misses t o  be w i l l f u l ?  

A Certainly. 

Q Even though Verizon d i d  not cut  the cable i t s e l f  and 

lad no way o f  ant ic ipat ing the cable would be cut, you would 

:onsider those misses w i l l f u l ?  

A Well, the i n a b i l i t y  t o  f i x  cable cuts i s  based on the 

i b i l i t y  of your people t o  f i x  cable cuts. A customer doesn't 

:are whether a t ruck ran over a cable, whether i t  was a tornado 
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ir whether i t ' s  water i n  his network interface. All the 

:ustomer cares about i s  getting service back when i t ' s  out of 
service. 

Cable cuts are the responsibility of the company, and 

they mobilize their forces when they have a big one, they know 
they have a l o t  of people out of service. Rarely, I cannot 

imagine a normal cable cut extending beyond a 24-hour period 
for restoration i f  the company handles the problem properly. 

Q And I understand t h a t  cable cuts may lead t o  
violations or t h a t  would be Verizon's explanation, but what 
about a cable cut is willful on Verizon's part? 

A 

What's t h a t ?  
Willfully - -  what do you mean, a willful  cable cut? 

Q Well, the Commission - - I'm wondering t h a t  myself. 
The Commission can't assess a fine unless a v io la t ion  was 
w i  11 ful , correct? 

A Correct. 
Q And you're telling the Commission t o  fine Verizon for 

violations t h a t  were associated w i t h  cable cuts, correct? 
A Among other th ings ,  correct. 
Q 
A 

And why is  a cable cut wi l l fu l  on Verizon's part? 
Well. for one thing,  because i t ' s  one of the reports 

t h a t  the Commission counts when they calculate whether or not 
you've complied w i t h  the rules. So, knowing t h a t  those 
troubles are part of the base, then you have the obl igat ion t o  
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i x  them. You're the only people who can f i x  a cable cut, and 

e can ' t  blame it on somebody else. 
What the problem is ,  i s  you've got t o  get out there 

nd f i x  i t  expeditiously, because you have so many customers 
ut  of service. And my experience has been t h a t  the 
lverwhelming majority of cable cuts are fixed i n  the same day 

.ha t  they're cut. 

Q And I'm s t i l l  trying t o  understand where the 
rillfulness i s  i n  t h a t  scenario. Did Verizon intend t o  cut the 
:able? Did i t  intend t o  violate the rule? 

A That's not my testimony. 
Q And I'm trying t o  - -  
A My testimony is  t h a t  the Commission needs t o  look a t  

;he entire performance of the company i n  f ixing troubles. C u t  
:ables are just part of the bag. 

Q And they're willful violations? 
A There's rainfall troubles and there's cut cable 

roubles, and there's troubles when the truck runs over and 

:nocks down a drop. All these are part of the calculations 
;ha t  this Staf f  makes t o  determine whether you're i n  

:ompl i ance. 
Q B u t  the question i s  not just compliance, bu t  willful 

ioncompl i ance , correct? 
A We've been over t h a t ,  bu t  I will agree. 
Q Okay. I ' d  like t o  continue on w i t h  the specific 
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tems you cite t o  support your theory of network deterioration. 
le've already gone over the report  r a t e ,  and the second t h i n g  

'ou focus on i s  alleged bonding and grounding problems is  tha t  
If evidence of network decl ine? 

A Yes. 
Q 

A 

:o. I t ' s  a grounding of the f a c i l i t y  t h a t  goes in to  a home, 
:he e l ec t r i ca l  power box is  grounded - -  has t o  be grounded, the 
:elephone entrance cable has t o  be grounded, the inside wire 
ias t o  be grounded, every element of outside plant  i n  GTE's 
ietwork has t o  be able t o  be grounded, because t h a t ' s  what 
:akes l i g h t n i n g  and takes i t  away from the f a c i l i t i e s  and takes 
t t o  ground. I t ' s  a protect ive measure t h a t ' s  essent ia l  for  
:he proper operation of your f a c i l i t i e s .  

What is  bonding and grounding? 
Bonding and grounding is  what telephone people refer 

Q 
A Yes. 
Q When was tha t ?  
A 

Have you had any bonding and grounding training? 

I worked w i t h  BellSouth for  a number of years. My 

iob was t o  manage in s t a l l a t ion ,  repa i r ,  and construction forces 
'or an area t h a t  went a l l  the way t o  the Alabama line and 
t a r t e d  here i n  Havana, so we were qui te  famil iar  w i t h  bonding 
ind grounding. 

Q And d id  you have specific t ra in ing  i n  bonding and 
rounding anytime during t h a t  period; you, yourself? 
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A We did not have a bonding and grounding school, but  

Io you want t o  f ind out i f  I'm an expert on i t? 

Q Yeah. 
A Okay. When I was w i t h  Bell System, one of my 

issi gnments was the engineering di rector of network of 
iaintenance for business services, which i s  the part of - -  it 
vas a Georgia operations - - i t  was a part of the company t h a t  
lealt w i t h  a l l  the PBXs, all of the services provided t o  
iusiness customers, including some of the largest business 
:ustoners i n  BellSouth territory. 

We had significant problems w i t h  l ightning.  We had 

;igni f i  cant problems w i t h  bonding and grounding . These were 

:he early years of the beginning of the use of stored 
:ethnology, the beginning of the use of computers i n  central 
Iffices. And our systems, and most a l l  computers, were highly 

iulnerable t o  l igh tn ing ,  power surges i n  those early days, 
ve're t a l k i n g  about 1980, i n  t h a t  time frame. 

I spent a week w i t h  the power expert, the l ightning 

!xpert, Bell Laboratories, who was the guru of l i g h t n i n g  and, I 

:hink, I learned a l o t  about l igh tn ing  and i t s  impact on the 
'acilities t h a t  are used t o  provide telephone service. And I 

:ame back from those experiences w i t h  a better understanding as 
;o why our systems were f a i l i n g  due t o  power surges and 
lightning i n  the network. I t h i n k ,  I understand it. 

Q What period did  you hold t h a t  job you're t a l k i n g  
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bout? What years was that? 
A I'd say, 1978 to 1980. 

Q Do you suppose that since 1978, industry's thinking 
in bonding and grounding has evolved somewhat? 

A Oh, I would hope it has. 
Q Okay. And technology has changed a lot, right, since 

;hat ti me? 
A 
Q 

Technology has changed, but the problem has not. 
Okay. And would you agree that even we1 1 -bonded and 

lrounded plant would be susceptible to the effects of 
ightning? 

A Yes, but what I'm maintaining is that GTE failed to 
lave an effective bonding and grounding program in its outside 
11 ant. 

Q 
A Can I continue - -  
Q Sure. 
A 

And when did you - - 

- -  if you want to talk about their program. This is 
:he Florida Region review from July 13th of 1999. This is a 
-eview that's made with all of the top management of Verizon, 
ind this was the July review, it's a quarterly review. 
*eview on Page 11 - - 

In this 

Q I'm sorry, what - -  Mr. Poucher. can you tell us what 
jocument you're referring to and where it is in your testimony? 

A Yeah, it's in my Surrebuttal Testimony. 
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Q I t h i n k ,  maybe we should save i t  for  Surrebuttal ,  
then, don ' t  you? 

A Well, you're asking about bonding and grounding, and 
[ I l l  point out - -  

Q Okay. 
A - -  the bonding and grounding issues. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Excuse me. I'm going t o  have t o  
-emind you guys t h a t  i t ' s  very diff icul t  for  the court reporter 
to get your discussion down correct ly  i f  you t a l k  t o  one 
another a t  the same time, so please t ry  and let  one another 
f i n i s h  before you s t a r t .  

MS. CASWELL: Okay. 
CHAIRMAN JACOBS: As t o  the line of questioning, i t  

,vas brought up on cross,  I t h i n k ,  i f  i t  is  i n  his Surrebuttal ,  
i t ' s  okay for  him t o  bring i t  up now. 

MS. CASWELL: Okay. 
The t i t l e  o f  this document is  "Current Challenges." A 

4nd the one on this page says outside plant condition and 
nodernization. These are the challenges t h a t  Bell - -  t h a t  
Verizon was te l l ing  i tself ,  here are  our problems: High 

trouble volumes, poor qual i ty  and previous construction and 
repai r , si gni f i can t  bonding and grounding i ssue, maintenance 
required on d ig i t a l  ca r r i e r s .  

And then, down i n  the next page i t  again says these 
are the current i n i t i a t i v e s  t h a t  they were trying t o  i n i t i a t e  
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n July o f  1999 a t  the end of this period of time: Employee 

onding and grounding t ra in ing ,  ac t ive ly  pursuing business 

ases ta rge t ing  reduced t roubles  i n  bonding and grounding 

mprovement. 

Y MS. CASWELL: 

Q Mr. Poucher, where does t h a t  appear i n  your 

urrebut ta l?  I'm not able t o  f ind  i t .  What's the exhib i t  

umber? What are you reading from? What's the exhib i t  number? 

A 

Q 

I'm reading from your Florida review. 
And what's the exhib i t  number i n  your testimony? 

A I don ' t  have i t  r i g h t  here, but I will f ind  

'ou want me t o  go ge t  i t ?  

Q Yeah, I t h i n k ,  we should so we can a l l  refer 
t h i n k ,  we should - -  

MR. BECK: I t h i n k ,  i t ' s  REP-40, I believe.  

MS. CASWELL: 40? Okay, yeah, i t  is. Okay, 

t. Do 

t o  i t .  

i t ' s  40. 

A So, t o  summarize, I would say you had, as of July 

I .3th,  1999, a s ign i f icant  bonding and grounding problem. 

l idn ' t  have t o  be an expert t o  f ind  t h a t  ou t ,  because your 

Ieople t o l d  us. 
IY MS. CASWELL: 

Q I'm sorry,  what d id  you - -  what s t a r t  da te  d id  you 

live for  the beginning of Verizon's inat tent ion t o  bonding and 

lrounding? When did t h a t  s t a r t ?  

A These things don ' t  happen overnight. I t h i n k ,  we're 
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:alking about something t h a t  had happened over a long period of 
:he .  

Q And when did i t  s t a r t ?  When d id  Verizon begin t o  
leg1 ect bonding and grounding? 

A I don't  know. I don ' t  have the slightest idea. I do 
:now t h a t  this document says i n  July of 1999 t h a t  you had a 
i ignificant problem. 
iy testimony, you're going t o  see a letter from Mr. Williams 
:here was a s t a f f  person from Verizon headquarters t h a t  says 
!xactly the same t h i n g  i n  1998. 

I a l so  know t h a t  i n  January of 1998, i n  

Q Okay. Let's look a t  this document. your REP-40 on 
four Rebuttal. Does it  indicate t h a t  Verizon had ident i f ied a 
)onding and grounding problem and was ignoring it  or t h a t  i t  

ras taking some action t o  remedy t h a t  problem? 
A T h i s  indicates t h a t  Verizon had f a i l ed  t o  have an 

!ffective bonding and grounding program i n  place i n  Verizon 
ierri tory i n  Florida July of 1999. That happened over a period 
if time. 
ianagement i n  Verizon headquarters i n  Texas i n  ea r ly  1998. i n  

In exhaustive letter, explaining a l l  of the same problems t h a t  
re're looking a t  here. So, these were well-known problems, 
iothing was done t o  take care o f  them i n  '98 and, obviously, 
iothing had been done u n t i l  l a t e  1999. 

Q Okay. And focusing, again, on this document, Tampa 

I t  was a l so  brought t o  the at tent ion of the top 

lay is the lightning capi ta l  of the world second only t o  the 
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Amazon River  Basin, correct? 

Correct. I was raised i n  S t .  Petersburg, and I can A 

appreciate that .  

Q Okay. And would you expect bonding and grounding t o  

be a continuing emphasis f o r  the company, i f  tha t  were true? 

A I think, my testimony says you ought t o  be the leader 

o f  the world o f  bonding and grounding. 

Q Right. 

A And i t  i s  a shock t o  me tha t  you have a problem i n  

jt. Pete-Tampa, which i s  the l igh tn ing  capi ta l  o f  the United 

States. a t  least .  

Q So, where t h i s  says s ign i f i can t  bonding and grounding 

issue, do you have any de ta i l s  concerning the signif icance o f  

that problem, what exactly the issue was, how the plant was 

affected, anything l i k e  that ,  any d e t a i l s  about the nature o f  

the product? 

A We1 1, i t  says a couple of things. It says you have a 

woblem. On the next page you need bonding and grounding 

improvement, and you a lso  say on t h i s  page tha t  you need 

ionding and grounding t ra in ing,  special t ra in ing ,  f o r  your 

ieople, and I believe tha t  M r .  F e r r e l l  d i d  tha t .  

Q Okay. Where does i t  say - -  okay, employ bonding and 

jrounding t ra in ing.  So, these were the a c t i v i t i e s  the company 

lad decided t o  undertake i n  response t o  bonding and grounding 

:oncerns. correct? 
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A Correct. 

Q And there 's  no ind ica t ion  t h a t  any o f  these 

i c t i v i t i e s  would not be funded, correct? 

A Well, the problem was tha t  they weren't funded 

ta r l i e r ,  and t h a t ' s  the point  o f  my testimony. 

Q So, i s  tha t  a yes or no? 

A Yes. Wait a minute. 

Q I s  there any ind icat ion on t h i s  document that these 

r c t i v i t i e s  were not funded? 

A Yes, not on t h i s  document. 

Q Okay, so not on t h i s  document. 

A But as I assume tha t  you have a problem, because i t  

tadn't been taken care of ea r l i e r ,  and t h a t ' s  my rat ionale, I ' m  

iorry. 

Q And the reason you feel it hadn't been taken care o f  

barlier i s ,  what. have you seen any other documents saying that  

.here was a continuing bonding and grounding problem that  the 

:ompany was ignoring? 

A Yes. I t ' s  i n  my - -  hold on j u s t  a second. 

Q Okay. 

A I f  y o u ' l l  look i n  my Surrebuttal Testimony, Exhibi t  

tEP-35, Page 5. 

Q I ' m  sorry, why are you re fe r r i ng  t o  the res t  o f  that 

jocument? 

A REP-35, you can s t a r t  on Page 1, because I'll explain 
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ihat i t  i s  f i r s t .  

Q Can you j u s t  give me a minute, because I ' m  t r y i n g  t o  

ieparate your - -  what's i n  your Surrebuttal from your Direct ,  

tnd tha t ' s  the problem, because you're going back and for th .  

10 you re fe r  t o  t h i s  document a t  a l l  i n  your Direct  Testimony? 

A Yes. I ' m  not sure where. 

Q Where? 

A I t ' s  i n  my Surrebuttal. 

Q 
A 

But i t ' s  not i n  your Direct ,  correct? 

I t ' s  i n  my exhib i t  so we, obviously, referred t o  it. 

MR. BECK: Kim, I believe, your pending question i s  

rhat evidence d i d  he have t h i s  was a problem before Ju ly  o f  

99, so he's g iv ing  you the evidence t h a t  he has. 

MS. CASWELL: Yeah, and I asked him o f  evidence that  

he company had had a problem and ignored it. 

MU. BECK: Right. And he's about t o  show you the 

anuary '97 document tha t  t a l ks  about it. 

MS. CASWELL: Okay. 

Y MS. CASWELL: 

Okay. And on that document, can I ask you a few Q 
uestions on tha t  document? 

A Sure. 

Q Okay. This was a study - -  t h i s  pertained t o  a study 

one by a headquarters team t o  assess potent ia l  outside p lant  

ssues i n  Florida, correct? 
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A I t ' s  my understanding, yes. 

Q I n  1997 and 1998. And the Flor ida Region requested 

h i s  review t o  be done, correct? 

I don't know a t  a l l  why i t  was done. A I would assume 

hat the Service Assurance team had an ongoing maintenance 

mesponsibility f o r  a l l  o f  Verizon. but t h a t ' s  an assumption. 

Q Mr. Poucher, there was a cover l e t t e r  on t h i s  

locument. Do you reca l l  t ha t  cover l e t t e r ?  

A I ' m  looking a t  Page 1 o f  the l e t t e r  t o  Woodrow 

l i l l iams, and t h a t ' s  REP-35, Page 1. 

Q But there was a cover l e t t e r  on the document besides 

:hat. 

A I don' t  have it. 

Q Do you - -  I can show i t t o  you. 

A Sure. Okay. 

Q Okay. And i f  you look a t  the t h i r d  paragraph, do you 

,ee where i t  says the Florida Region asked Service Assurance t o  

:onduct an anal y s i  s? 

A 

Q 

f you - -  

I ' m  sorry, t h i s  i s  not p a r t  o f  my testimony. 

No, i t ' s  not par t  o f  your testimony, but I asked you 

A Just bear wi th  me. 

Q Okay. 

A I t ' s  not pa r t  o f  your testimony. i t ' s  pa r t  o f  those 

)axes over there. We have three o f  them. That's conf ident ia l .  
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Q 
A 

And I‘ve asked you - - 
Do you want me to talk about this? 
CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Excuse me. We have to remember 

igain. Now, let’s let counsel conduct the inquiry and then if 
IOU have an explanation or a question back we’ll do that. 

Ms. Caswell . 
!Y MS. CASWELL: 

Q Mr. Poucher. all I asked is whether you knew if the 
7orida Region had asked the Service Assurance team to 
rndertake its review or not, and it was your assumption that 
;hey had not asked. The reason I‘m showing you this letter 
rhich was produced in discovery was to try and establish that 
;hey had asked. 

A I can tell you the answer to the question, but that 
- this document is confidential. 
:hat’s fine. 

If you want me to answer, 

Q It’s not confidential if I‘m disclosing it publicly 
-ight now. 

A Fine, okay. Yes, the letter says that the Flor 
legion asked the Service Assurance to conduct an analysis 
iutside plant activity in May o f  1997. 

Q Right. And the team came up with a number o f  

“ecommendations , correct? 

da 
of 

A And the Services Assurance team came up with an 
2xtensive list of things that needed t o  be done in Florida. 
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Q Right. And one of those th ings  concerned - - one of 
those recommendations concerned bonding and grounding? 

A Yes. You asked me a question, i f  there was another 
document? 

Q Right ,  t h a t  indicated there was a problem t h a t  
Veri zon had ignored . 

A Right. And back over on Page 5 is the f ind ing  tha t  
bonding and grounding specifications a re  not understood a t  the 
technician level: i n  other words, i f  the technicians don ' t  
understand what is required t o  bond and ground your plant,  then 
you've got a problem i n  your program, and t h a t  was brought up 

i n  1998. T h i s  is January the 28th of 1998. and it  was s t i l l  

there i n  July of 1999, but i t  is st i l l  an issue. 
Q And again, I'm going t o  ask wouldn't you expect 

bonding and grounding t o  be a recurring issue i n  an area t h a t  
vJas fraught by l ightning,  such a s  Tampa Bay? 

A And my testimony was no. My testimony was t h a t  you 
should be the experts on bonding and grounding and, obviously, 
by these documents you are  not. 

Q Is there - -  t h i s  document - -  doesn't  this document 
indicate t h a t  the company had identified a potential  problem 
and was addressing it? 

A No, i t  does not. That ' s  the point. The company 
identified these problems, your Service Assurance task  force 
identified four pages of problems. We're only ta lking about 
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me of them, bu t  we should t a l k  about a l l  of the rest of them. 
\nd what the problem is ,  is t h a t  these folks had - -  you got 

roblems i n  Florida. Peter Daks said we've got problems i n  
: lorida,  we need more money, and nothing was done, and t h a t ' s  
:he problem. 

Q Let's stick t o  this document for  now. Where i n  this 
locument does i t  say t h a t  nothing was done i n  response t o  the 

iondi ng and grounding recommendations? 
A Well, this is  a recommendation. What I am saying is 

' m  drawing a line between this recommendation and the July 

3th chart  t h a t  I just showed you. T h i s  i s  a chart  t h a t  shared 
,t the top levels of management w i t h i n  a l l  of Verizon, 
ieadquarters a s  well as loca l ly  i n  Florida,  and on July 13th, 

,999, still had a problem. 
Q So, is i t  your - -  
A I t  was not dea l t  w i t h .  My assumption is you don't 

leal w i t h  these problems, because you don ' t  have enough money 
n the budget t o  do i t .  

So, is i t  your assumption t h a t  nothing was done on Q 
Ionding and grounding i n  response t o  this letter a l l  the time 
int i1  we see the 1999 document, nothing a t  a l l  was done on 
,onding and grounding: the company identified the issue, 
:orrect? 

A No, t h a t ' s  not my testimony. 
Q Okay. 
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A My testimony i s  that as o f  Ju ly  1999, the problem 

s t i l l  had not been deal t  with, and I don't know exactly what 

you d i d  between that time, but it obviously wasn't enough. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: M r .  Poucher? 

THE WITNESS: Yes. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: I need t o  make sure I understand 

th is  l e t t e r  and your testimony. 

appears t o  me tha t  i t  actual ly  supports the pos i t ion you take, 

rJhich i s  tha t  the company knew it had a problem. For example, 

the next t o  the l a s t  paragraph on the second page, " A t  t h i s  

l o i n t ,  establ ishing the dedicated preventative maintenance 

team and executing the  TRP i s  the strongest recommendation we 

:an make a t  t h i s  time." 

I read t h i s  l e t t e r ,  and i t  

THE WITNESS: Correct. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Let me t e l l  you my 

Anderstanding, and then I'll ask you a question. This appears 

to me t o  be an acknowledgment by the company tha t  they needed 

to dedicate a workforce t o  a preventative maintenance program. 

So, my question t o  you i s  you don ' t  disagree tha t  t h i s  l e t t e r  

joes that,  tha t  by t h i s  l e t t e r  the company acknowledges it has 

3 problem? 

THE WITNESS: Oh, yes, de f i n i t e l y .  What t h i s  l e t t e r  

ioes i s  t e l l  the people i n  Verizon a l l  o f  the problems that  

they have i n  outside plant,  and the absence o f  a dedicated work 
team fo r  preventative maintenance i s  one o f  the key items. And 
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most every one o f  these recommendations, there's four pages of 
them, involves budgetary issues. You don't implement a program 
without an adequate budget. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: All right. So, you acknowledge 
in January - - at least on January 29th, 1998. the company 
acknowledged it needed to devote more to a preventative 
maintenance program? 

THE WITNESS: Definitely. 
COMMISSIONER JABER: But it's your testimony that the 

company did not do anything to dedicate resources to a 
preventative maintenance program? 

THE WITNESS : That' s correct. 
COMMISSIONER JABER: All right. Now, on what do you 

base that position? How do you know they didn't? 
THE WITNESS: Well, the best document of all is the 

one that I just showed you that detailed the program that 
Verizon was implementing under Mr. Ferrell's leadership in July 
of 1999 that discusses exactly the same things that were in 
this January 1998 letter. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: And that document being the 
F1 ori da Region? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, yes. And there's a tremendous 
parallel. That wasn't a brand new program. Those ideas came 
from this January 1988 document. Peter Daks wrote another 
document that i s  also in our testimony that outlines virtually 
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:he same elements, the need for a dedicated workforce. 
COMMISSIONER JABER: All right. Now, I'm looking at 

;he Florida Region document. 
'ollowing your position. 

I just want to make sure I'm 

THE WITNESS: Okay. 
COMMISSIONER JABER: Where on that document should I 

be looking for support that the company didn't do anything to 
levote resources to a preventative maintenance program? 

THE WITNESS: The point that we make in this 
estimony is that the items that are included in that July 
ecommendation are exactly the same things that you should do 
nd should have been doing all along to provide good service. 
nd those shortcomings were pointed out by Peter Daks in 
everal letters, they were confirmed by this document that 
le're looking at here today, and they are reinforced by the 
'act that this is the way you run a telephone company, this is 
he way you operate it. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: So. your point is the fact that 
hey were still making the same recommendations when the 
lorida Region plan came out indicates that they had not 
levoted resources or money to a program. You're making the 
Issumption that because they were repeating the recommendations 
iothi ng had been done? 

THE WITNESS: Correct. 
COMMISSIONER DEASON: Mr. Poucher, let me ask you a 
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question on t h i s  document. 

t h i r d  paragraph. There's a reference t o  FAPs. DO you know 

what tha t  stands fo r?  

THE WITNESS: This i s  on the second page, Page 2 o f  

I ' m  looking a t  the second page, the 

my testimony? 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: No, no. This i s  Page 2 o f  the 

document which you were j u s t  presented. I understand i t ' s  not 

par t  o f  your testimony and maybe you're not f a m i l i a r  w i th  tha t  

term. I was j u s t  asking i f  you were what the term means. I t ' s  

the f i r s t  sentence o f  the t h i r d  paragraph. 

THE WITNESS: M r .  Diamond w i l l  give you the exact - - 
he knows a l l  the terminology. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay, I'll ask him. 

THE WITNESS: But what they ' re  bas ica l ly  t a l k ing  

about i s  projects tha t  were i den t i f i ed  through TAC Focus which 

i s  t h e i r  analysis program on preventive maintenance. And what 

they're saying i n  t h i s  recommendation i s  tha t  those projects 

should be worked as soon as possible. And there's a whole l o t  

o f  other recommendations tha t  are included i n  t h i s  l e t t e r  tha t  

bear out the  f a c t  t ha t  they d i d n ' t  have a dedicated team, they 

were not paying at tent ion t o  those projects when they came out, 

and they d i d  not have enough money t o  cut them over t o  the new 

f a c i l i t i e s .  That delayed the f i x .  And these are the  problems 

tha t  they saw a f t e r  an extensive analysis of  the outside plant 

maintenance program. 
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3Y MS. CASWELL: 

Q M r .  Poucher, I th ink,  you've said tha t  the 

,ecommendations here had s ign i f i can t  budgetary imp1 ications; i s  

;hat r i g h t ?  

A Yes. 

Q Meaning - -  l e t  me - -  do you see anything i n  t h i s  

locument about how much i t  would cost t o  implement the 

%ecommendati ons? 

A 

Q 

No, there's no pr ice tag on th i s .  

You don't  have any idea how much i t  would cost, do 

IOU? 

A No, I do not. 

Q And t o  the extent tha t  cer ta in  o f  these 

,ecommendations would cost something t o  implement, i s  there any 

ndication that  there was i n s u f f i c i e n t  money avai lable t o  do 

IO? 

A 

I l o t .  

Q 
A 

I think, i f  I went through i t  careful ly,  I could f i nd  

Can you do tha t  now? 

But r i g h t  o f f  the top o f  my head, one of the problems 

;hat they had was i n  one exchange and, I think,  i t  was Winter 

laven, they had put up outside plant cable t o  replace the o ld  

:able, but they d i d n ' t  have enough funding f o r  the cutover, so 

iere's a brand new cable s i t t i n g  up here i n  the a i r ,  but they 

:ouldn't i n s t a l l  it, put i t  t o  work, f i x  the problem, because 
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they d i d n ' t  have enough money t o  do the cutover. T h a t ' s  a 
3erfect example, I t h i n k .  

Q Okay. Let's look a t  t h a t  cable issue. I t ' s  on Page 

3. There's findings i n  the Winter Haven area, there was a 
s i tuat ion where the - -  

A Yeah. 
Q Now. look under recommendations. " A l l  work orders 

ssociated w i t h  working cable and/or t h a t  have "M" or " X "  time 
involved need t o  be reviewed and accepted by the local manager 
)efore closing." Doesn't t h a t  seem t o  indicate t h a t  someone 
fid not do their job i n  submitting the request i n  getting it  
ipproved for funding rather t h a n  there was no funding 

ivailable? What makes you t h i n k  there was no funding 

jvai 1 able? 
A Because of the first  sentence. I t  says, "The cable 

ias placed over a year ago but has not been cut around due t o  
io "M" or " X .  " that's maintenance money. 

Q Uh-huh. And do you t h i n k  - -  
A 

:here. 

Q 

So, I would assume t h a t  they d i d n ' t  have enough money 

B u t  you're assuming t h a t  they d i d n ' t  have enough 
noney. rather t h a n  assuming t h a t  they just hadn't  processed the 
irder t o  get the money, correct? 

A 1'11 stand on w h a t  I said. 

Q B u t  i t ' s  an assumption, correct? 
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A Sure. 
Q In going back to my question about any indication in 

;his document there was insufficient money available to 
implement the recommendations, do you see anything else in here 
:hat says these are programs that need to be done, but you're 
lot going to get the money? 

A The question was these are programs that need to be 
lone. but you're not going to get the money to do them; is 
:hat - -  

Q Is there any indication in the document that there 
iould not be funding for the recommendations set forth here? 

A No, not at all. This is a recommendation of things 
;hat they should be doing. 

Q Right. 
A 
Q Right. And let's look at the last paragraph. It 

jays, "The recommendations made from the second visit are 
iutlined in the trouble reduction program. We are continuing 
;o provide staff assistance to help resolve some of these 
issues," and that would be staff assistance from headquarters: 
~ould it not? 

It wasn't a decision on the budget. 

A Correct. 
Q "However, I believe, many of these must be addressed 

m d  resolved by the Region management team." Does that seem to 
indicate to you that the Region had to take some initiative to 
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imp1 ement the recommendations? 

A Yes. 

Q And do you know for a fact that these recommendations 
vere never implemented? 

A Only from the closeness of the recommendations, the 
; i m i  la r i ty  between those recommendations and the 

*ecommendations o f  the Ju ly  13th, 1999 group. Had these things 

)een done properly, then the July 1999 document would never 

lave been - - would not have been needed. 

Q So, i t ' s  an assumption on your par t  tha t  these things 

{ere not done. You have no documents saying tha t  these things 

:ould not be implemented because o f  a lack o f  funding? 

A No. I th ink ,  i t ' s  a good assumption, though. 

Q Okay. And l e t ' s  look a t  the document you say proves 

;hat nothing was done. Is t ha t  REP-40? Is tha t  the basis for 

/our assumption tha t  nothing was done i n  response t o  the 1997, 

.998 study? 

A P a r t  o f  it. 

Q I'm sorry, d i d  you say part o f  it? 

A Mm-hmm. Okay. I'm on which page? 

Q Is i t  possible tha t  bonding and grounding a c t i v i t i e s  

:ould have been undertaken i n  response t o  t h i s  document, the 

!a r l ie r  document, the recommendations? Is i t  possible? 

A A l l  r i gh t .  Did you ask me whether t h i s  i s  a resu l t  

If the January 1998 - -  
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Q Okay, my question is  are you assuming t h a t  there was 
iothing done on bonding and grounding from the time of this 

,998 document t o  the time of this 1999 document? 
A I'm assuming - -  
Q You're assuming. 

A - -  t h a t  bonding and grounding was a problem i n  1998, 

lanuary. and t h a t  resulted from 1997 visits t o  Florida. And 

' m  also noting t h a t  i n  July of 1999 the problem's still  here 
:learly.  so I would assume i t  wasn ' t  taken care of .  

Q Do you t h i n k  possibly i t  was a recurring problem 

mather than  something t h a t  could be fixed once and forevermore 

l idn ' t  need anymore at tent ion? 

A I t h i n k ,  the bonding and grounding f i x ,  i n  terms o f  

ra in ing  the employees, i s  something t h a t  can be done, should 

ie done. I t h i n k ,  Mr. Ferrell had i t  done. 

Q And do you have any proof, again, t h a t  no t r a in ing  

ras done i n  response t o  the 1998 l e t t e r ?  

A No, I have no proof. 

Q Okay. And do you have any proof t h a t  any of the 

ither measures they recommended were not imp1 emented? 

A 

Q 

You're ta lk ing  about the - -  
I'm ta lk ing  about the recommendations from 1997 and 

,998. which i s REP - 35. 
A Yes. 

Q I'm asking you i f  you have any proof or is  i t  just 
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issumptions that these things weren't done? 

A Well, probably the biggest one was the isolated 
reventive maintenance team outside the regular workforce to 
iork full time on preventive maintenance, that was requested in 
:hat document. Peter Daks asked for the same thing in late 
,997 in his recommendations to headquarters. And here, once 
igain, in 1999 Mr. Ferrell is talking about the need to have a 
ledicated team to do preventive maintenance. 
lssume that nothing happened. 

I've got to 

Q Do you know if it was within Mr. Daks' control to 
mplement that recommendation or whether it depended on funding 
'rom headquarters? 

A In my opinion, it depended on funding from 
ieadquarters, which is why nothing was done. 

Q And what is the basis for that opinion, that there 
ras no funding to implement the recommendation? 

A Just my opinion. 
Q Is that the only instance where you contend that the 

,ame recommendations were made, that in the bonding and 
lroundi ng , and not imp1 emented? 

A You're talking about the recommendations from the 
luly or the 13th '99? Well, let's just go down the July 13th 
:harts; how about that? 

Q 
A 

What is the July 13th chart? 
The ones used in the Region operations review. 
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Q 

A REP-40, Page 1. 

Q 

What document are you re fe r r i ng  to? 

I guess, my question about t h i s  document, moving t o  
h is  document, i s  there any evidence tha t  these things were not 

mpl emented? 

A Okay. Here's the problems tha t  existed i n  1999: 

igh  t rouble volumes. That's an exact para l le l  w i th  Peter 

aks' request t ha t  M r .  Beck read t o  you t o  company headquarters 

bout the fac t  t ha t  we've got t o  do something about the outside 

lant i n  the o l d  areas l i k e  Tampa-St. Pete t h a t  cause 

remendous acceleration of t rouble reports during bad weather. 

hat 's  high trouble volumes. The problem was brought t o  

erizon top management a t  company headquarters, i n  1997 by 

eter Daks, and i t ' s  s t i l l  a problem i n  1999. I assume tha t  

hat problem was not taken care o f .  

The next one i s  poor qua l i t y  and previous 

onstruction and repair.  You w i l l  not f i n d  those words i n  some 

f the  previous documents, but you f i n d  bas ica l l y  the basis for 

t. t h a t  the contract labor t h a t  the company had h i red t o  make 

p the slack d i d  not have the standards o f  qua l i t y  t h a t  

u l l  -t ime company employees had and, therefore, they b u i l t  

uts ide p lant  tha t  was poor qual i ty .  We've already talked 

bout bonding and grounding enough, I hope. They also had 

roblems wi th  t h e i r  d i g i t a l  loop carr iers.  That had been 

dent i f ied  back i n  January o f  '98 i n  tha t  document. 
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Going to Page 2, the temporary closure attack team 
was not mentioned in the January 1998 document, but that was 
the kind of thing that I saw when I went down and visited 
Tampa, and it's a severe problem representative o f  an absence 
or a lack of sufficient personnel to handle the load, and it's 
one of the worse things that you can have in your outside 
plant. 

In July of 1999, the company said it needed an 
3ggressive TAC program. In December o f  '97, Peter Daks said 
Zxactly the same thing, that the TAC program was not sufficient 
to handle the problem. Is that enough? 

Q Do you believe that some or all of these things were 
Mithin the control of local management to implement or was it a 
natter o f  headquarters giving the Region funding to implement 
them? 

A I think, both. I think, the local management would 
)e the implementers, but the company headquarters is the one 
that has to identify the budget dollars, set them aside, and 
nake it happen. 

Q Do you see any - -  on this document REP-40 - -  do you 
see any mention o f  cost of implementing these things? 

A No. I said there's no mention of cost. 
Q Right. And you're assuming that there were no budget 

dollars available earlier to implement them. 
a1 ready established that. 

I think, we've 
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A Yes. 

Q And l e t ' s  look a t  REP-8, which i s  another bonding and 

iroundi ng document. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Ms. Caswell , are you leaving 

!EP - 35? 

MS. CASWELL: Yes, I ' m  leaving REP-35. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay, I have a question about 

:hat. 

M r .  Poucher, as I understand REP-35, there i s  - -  a t  

east on Page 1, there i s  a discussion o f  a May 1997 review and 

hen tha t ' s  followed by a January 199-- I ' m  sorry - -  there 's  a 

lanuary 1997 review; i s  tha t  correct? That's on Page 4. 

THE WITNESS: 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Should tha t  be January 1998? 

THE WITNESS: January '98. I think,  they went back 

I th ink  tha t  they - -  

iust before they released t h i s  l e t t e r .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: So, you th ink  t h a t ' s  a misprint 

.here where it says January '97, it should be January '98? I ' m  

ooking a t  Page 4. 

THE WITNESS: When I read it, it was my assumption 

:hat tha t  was January 1998. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. Well, then, going back 

:o Page 1 under May 1997 review, there's a recommendation. The 

' i r s t  one i s  concerning outside plant t rouble and then here 

igain there 's  t h i s  terminology, FAPs. It says, "FAPs 
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ident i f ied  through TAC Focus should be worked ASAP," and I 

assume that  means as soon as possible, so t h i s  was i n  May there 

was a recommendation t o  do something as soon as possible. 

And i f  we go over t o  the l e t t e r ,  which i s  dated 

January 28th, which Ms. Caswell handed out t o  you on the second 

page, the t h i r d  paragraph, t h i s  i s  what I referred t o  you 

ear l ie r ,  there's the sentence tha t  reads, "One of  the major 

issues facing the Region i s  low performance i n  the area o f  

completing maintenance-related FAPs," whatever FAPs i s .  

I guess, my question i s  i t  appears there was 

something recommended t o  be done as soon as possible i n  May and 

then i n  January i s  s t i l l  a problem and, apparently, it was not 

addressed. Did you - -  i n  your review, d i d  you uncover anything 

dealing wi th FAPs, what they are, and why there was a 

recommendation made t o  do something as soon as possible and why 

it was not done? 

THE WITNESS: Well, f i r s t  o f  a l l ,  these are projects 

to replace bad plant. And the quicker they get them out - - 
COMMISSIONER DEASON: Projects t o  do what? 

THE WITNESS: To replace bad plant,  bad cables t h a t  

have a high incidence o f  t rouble reports, and they're 

i den t i f i ed  by a computer program tha t  analyzes a l l  the trouble 

reports, isolates them t o  the proper cables. Obviously, it 

serves Verizon's i n te res t  once they f i n d  out they have a 

problem t o  expedite the f i x  o f  t ha t  problem, and t h a t ' s  what 
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the recommendation i n  May was saying. 

note tha t  there was f rus t ra t ion  i n  the f i e l d  on Page 4 about 

the lack o f  act ion on i d e n t i f i e d  FAPs and other p lant  problems, 

4nd I don' t  know what those acronyms mean, but those - -  the 

f rust ra t ion i n  the f i e l d  i s  t ha t  the problems were ident i f ied ,  

they knew they were there and they weren't being f i xed  as soon 

3s possible, which i s  the May '97 review. 

And i n  January o f  '98, I th ink,  they perceived the 

Also, i n  the May recommendation, there was also a 

same thing. The point  tha t  I would make i s  tha t  t h i s  program 

i s  the same program that we were t a l k i n g  about tha t  was up a t  

!4 m i l l i o n  i n  1990 and was down t o  4 m i l l i o n  i n  199-- mid '90s. 

Ind i f  you don' t  have enough problems i n  your programs t o  f i x  

these problems, then t h i s  i s  what you're going t o  see. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay, thank you. 

Ms. Caswell , i s  M r .  Diamond the correct person t o  

address FAPs and what they are and how they f i t  i n t o  t h i s  

formula? 

MS. CASWELL: Yeah, we can do tha t .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: I want t o  t r y  t o  remember t o  

ask, but you may want t o  remind him or you may want t o  have him 

jescribe what FAPs are. I ' d  appreciate it. 

MS. CASWELL: Okay. 

BY MS. CASWELL: 

Q M r .  Poucher. l e t ' s  look a t  your REP-8 on your Direct  
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-estimony. I t ' s  a lightning analysis  report .  And what this 

ooks like is an analysis of cross  boxes t h a t  had had trouble 
'eports caused by l ightning over 15 months i n  1997 t o  1998; is  

.hat right? 

A Okay. Keep going. 

Q And the company identified 327 t o t a l  t h a t  appeared t o  
lave l ightning damage, and t h a t  would be some of the inland and 
oastal boxes, correct? 

A Correct. 
Q There's no t o t a l  number of cross boxes i n  here, is  

here? 
A No. 
Q B u t  from Mr. Diamond's testimony, do you recal l  t h a t  

t was 6,500? So, only 327 out of 6,500 were identified as  
lotenti a1 1 y having bonding and grounding problems, correct? 

A I ' d  accept t h a t .  

Q B u t  you say you were shocked t h a t  61% of the cross 

loxes studied had inadequate grounding, but the 61% isn't 61% 

I f  6,500, is  it? 

A No. T h i s  i s  - -  the percentage o f  ones t h a t  they had 
dentified as  problem cross boxes, they were not taken care of .  

Q So, it would be the 61% is  the percentage of the 57 

:hat ac tua l ly  did have bonding and grounding problems a f t e r  the 
:ompany analyzed them, correct? 

A I t h i n k ,  t h a t ' s  correct. 
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Q Do you th ink  t h a t ' s  an inordinately high number o f  

cross boxes wi th  bonding and grounding problems, considering 

the l i gh tn ing  i n  the area? 

A Yes. 

Q 
A 

And what do you base tha t  opinion on? 

Any cross boxes tha t  have bonding and grounding 

3roblems are a real problem i n  your outside plant. We're n t 
talk ing about one customer here. We're t a l k i n g  about hundreds 

i f  customers tha t  are terminated i n  a cross box. Every cross 

)ox needs t o  be bonded and grounded t o  ground so they won't 

j u f  f e r  1 i ghtni ng damage. 

Q Right. And even i f  a cross box i s  bonded and 

jrounded once, tha t  might not necessarily l a s t  forever, 

:orrect, you'd have t o  go i n  and do i t  again? 

A I would accept that .  

Q And does t h i s  analys 

t ry ing  t o  i d e n t i f y  bonding and 

,vas ignoring them? 

s show tha t  Verizon was act ive ly  

grounding problems or tha t  i t  

A This document shows tha t  they had i d e n t i f i e d  

problems. This document shows tha t  they had not taken care of 

them. 

Q Does t h i s  document show tha t  they were taking care of 

it, they were on t h e i r  way t o  correcting the problems? 

A I don' t  know. 

Q Well, we've - -  we've already established tha t  they 
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identified problems, potential problems, i n  some of the boxes, 
:orrect? 

A Correct. 

Q And we have a cross box's complete 
i- 11-98, correct? 

A Yes. 

ine a s  of 

Q So, i t  looks like they were taking action t o  remedy 
he problems they found, correct? 

A 

Q And this would be a s  of June 1998. correct? 
A June 1 1 t h .  1998. 

Q 
ompl eted? 

Yes; as  slow as  they were, yes. they were. 

And is there any indication t h a t  this project was not 

A No. 

Q And is there any indication t h a t  funding was 
nadequate for  the project? 

A Not i n  this document. 

Q Is there any indication anywhere t h a t  funding was 
nadequate for  bonding and grounding? 

A The f a c t  t h a t  the company d i d n ' t  have an effective 
onding and grounding program says t h a t  there was not any 
ign i f icant  funding t o  deal w i t h  t h a t  problem. That 's  the 
o in t  of our testimony. 

Q And again, t h a t ' s  an assumption on your par t  ra ther  
han any document tha t  says you're not gett ing money for 
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)ondi ng and grounding, correct? 

A Correct. 

Q As par t  of i t s  regular service audits, does the 

:ommission S t a f f  review bonding and grounding? 

A Yes, they do. 

Q 

A Okay. 

Q 

Le t ' s  look a t  an audit page from 1998. 

And i t  looks l i k e  the Commission studies two things, 

iercent o f  older loops wi th  adequate ground and percent o f  new 

nstal lat ions.  And what was the percentage i n  both cases o f  

nstal 1 ations wi th  adequate ground? 

A 100%. 

Q So, the Commission d i d n ' t  i d e n t i f y  any bonding and 

rounding problem i n  1998, d id  it? 

A We1 1, they d i d n ' t  look a t  cross boxes. 

'ou how bonding and grounding i s  done by the Commission. 

Let me t e l l  

Q I ' m  sorry, can you answer yes or no and then go on? 

l id  the Commission i d e n t i f y  a problem wi th  bonding and 

iroundi ng? 

A 

:ross boxes. 

Well, we were ta l k ing  about bonding and grounding of 

Are we on tha t  issue or are we on something else 

iere? 

Q Yeah. 

) i d  the Commiss 

.998? 

I ' m 1 ooki ng a t  the ground e f f i c iency  schedule 

on f i n d  any adequate grounding i n  the audit i n  
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A No, the Commission d id  not f i n d  any bonding and 
Jrounding deficiencies when i t  v i s i t e d  the network terminal a t  

:ustomer's premesis t o  measure the ground. And t h i s  i s  the 

rogram that  the Commission does. They go t o  a spec i f ic  

ocation where the network i s  terminated a t  the customer's 

remesis and measure tha t  loop t o  determine whether there's 

nadequate ground. 

nadequate grounding i n  cross boxes, and the Commission does 

lot look a t  that .  

This has nothing t o  do wi th  cross boxes or 

Q But i t  does have t o  do w i th  the grounding, correct? 

'he Commission i s  assessing grounding i n  t h i s  document as it 

loes i n  every audit, correct? 

A Correct, a t  the customer premesis. 

Q Right. L e t ' s  look back a t  your Exhibi t  REP-9, which 

i s  en t i t led ,  "TAC Facts." And, I think,  you already t e s t i f i e d  

chat TAC was one o f  Verizon's established preventive 

naintenance programs, correct? 

A Yes. 

Q And i t  looks from t h i s  document l i k e ,  as pa r t  o f  the 

irogram, the company was analyzing trouble reports, and tha t ' s  

i n  the f i r s t  l i n e ,  correct? 

A Correct. 

Q And the company had met 200% o f  i t s  1998 goal t o  

malyze those reports, r i g h t ?  

A Yes. 
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Q So, i t  was doing better than i t  anticipated i n  terms 
If identifying potential problems, correct? 

A Correct. 

Q And of the 28,000 reports  analyzed, 18,000 had been 
‘unded a1 ready, correct? 

A 

Q 
A Correct. 
Q So, adding up these numbers, i t  looks like a l l  of the 

That’s  what i t  says, yes. 
And there were another 9,623 pending funding, r ight? 

roblems found were funded, r i g h t ?  

A Correct. 

Q So, the document proves t h a t  the company was working 

:o identify potential problems w i t h  funding them, not ignoring 
:hem, doesn’t  i t? 

A Oh, I t h i n k ,  the company was doing the best t h a t  i t  

:ould do i n  Florida t o  t r y  t o  identify i t s  bad plant  and f i x  
,t. That ’s  not our case here. 

Q 

identified, as  reflected i n  this document, correct? 
A 

And t h a t  there was adequate funding f o r  the problems 

Yes, bu t  I t h i n k  you need t o  read Line 3 of t h a t  t o  
‘ully understand t h a t  they were only dealing w i t h  1% of the 
utside plant ,  so we’re talking about a very small f rac t ion  of 
:he outside plant  t h a t  exists i n  Verizon t e r r i t o r y  i n  Florida. 

Q 

A 

Do you know what PMI means? 
I believe t h a t ’ s  one of your internal organizations. 
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I do not know what i t  i s .  

Q And do you think t h i s  statement means tha t  Verizon 
?ad only looked a t  1% o f  i t s  outside plant? 

A Terminated complements. 

Q 
A 

What does terminated complements mean? 

Generally, 100-pair complement w i th in  a cable tha t  

tould probably be larger than that ,  600. 1,200. 

Q And do you bel ieve tha t  the company - -  I don' t  know 

i f  t h a t ' s  true, M r .  Poucher, but  do you believe tha t  the 

:ompany had stopped addressing i t s  trouble a t  t h i s  point ,  i t  

ias not going t o  look a t  any other parts o f  the network? 

A What I believe, Kim,  i s  that  the company maintenance 

rogram was addressing j u s t  the small t i p  o f  the problems o f  

:he - -  i n  ,the outside plant and Verizon, and they were dealing 

i i t h  only 1%. This i s  a company chart. This i s  not our chart. 

\nd they're point ing out tha t  they've only addressed 1% of the 

;otal  complements i n  the company. And I would remind you that  

:his i s  not my chart. Down a t  the bottom they're t e l l i n g  t h e i r  

iigher management deter iorat ion o f  outside p lant  never stops. 

Q Can you - -  
A And the assumption I would take from tha t  i s  tha t  

rou've got t o  keep spending money. And i f  you don' t  stay ahead 

If it, i t ' s  going t o  get ahead o f  you. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: M r .  Poucher, do you know what 

i s  meant by the second l i n e  there when they speak i n  terms o f  

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

166 

trouble reports funded. How do you fund a trouble report? 

that analyzes a l l  of the trouble reports, and then they're 
hatched against the company records regarding serving cable and 
serving facilities, and what they do i s  they identify w i t h i n  

specific complements of cables the highest incidence of 

trouble, and they go after those, and this program identifies 
it. 

THE WITNESS: As I said, this is a computer program 

Then, they work up a project, that's the FAP. and 

then i t  goes t o  the outside plan t  and they string i n  a new 
:able, and then somebody has t o  cut it over, and that's a long 

involved and difficult  process, and i t  requires a l o t  of 

Funding t o  do i t .  

i t ' s  called preventive maintenance. 
I t ' s  a long-term program, and that 's why 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: So, do you interpret t h a t ,  
:hen, t h a t  an effort was made t o  fund some type of plan 

improvement or correction or replacement which would resolve 
18,408 trouble reports from occurring again? Is t h a t  the way 

iou interpret t h a t ?  
THE WITNESS: Correct. And you don ' t  know how much 

iigher the trouble report might have gone, but  they identify 
chem by the number of trouble reports i n  the past. And, of 

:ourse, the objective here i s  t o  f i x  your outside plan t  cable 
Iefore you receive a trouble report about i t ,  because by then 
IOU only have 24 hours. 
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But i f  you get out i n  advance, and i f  you f i x  the bad 

:able. then tha t  takes the edge o f f  those t rouble reports when 

t does rain. And t h a t ' s  what we've been t e l l i n g  the 

:ommission a l l  along here i s  tha t  the f a i l u r e  t o  spend enough 

lo l lars  t o  deal w i th  those problems before they became a 

rouble report i s  what caused Verizon t o  v io la te  your rules. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Do you have any information as 

:o the number o f  t rouble reports the 18,408 compares to? 

THE WITNESS: There were 18,000 trouble reports i n  

I n  other words - -  :hose complements t h a t  they were funding. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: We1 1 , what were the t o t a l  

[mount o f  trouble reports? Do you have any idea? 

THE WITNESS: Don't know. A l l  t h a t  t h i s  program did 

ras give them a t o t a l  number o f  t rouble reports tha t  they were 

roing t o  get r i d  o f  so tha t  they d i d n ' t  come back. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay, thank you. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Ms. Caswell , i s  t h i s  a point  where 

ie can break? 

MS. CASWELL: Sure. Okay, w e ' l l  break for lunch, 

:ome back a t  1:30. 

(Lunch recess taken. 1 
_ _ _ _ -  

(Transcript continues i n  sequence i n  Volume 2. I 
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